
 

Governance, Audit, Risk Management 

and Standards Committee  AGENDA 
 
 

DATE: 

 

Monday 1 December 2014 

 

TIME: 

 

7.30 pm 

 

VENUE: 

 

Committee Room 5, 

Harrow Civic Centre 

 
 
 

 

 MEMBERSHIP      (Quorum 3) 

   

  Chairman: 

 

Councillor Antonio Weiss  

 

  Councillors: 

 
Ghazanfar Ali 
Nitin Parekh 
Primesh Patel 

 

Barry Macleod-Cullinane (VC) 
Amir Moshenson 
Bharat Thakker 
 

  
 

 
 

Reserve Members: 

 
1. Kiran Ramchandani 
2. Jeff Anderson 
3. Kairul Kareema Marikar 
4. Ms Pamela Fitzpatrick 
 

1. Kanti Rabadia 
2. Pritesh Patel 
3. Chris Mote 
 

  
 

 
 
 

Contact:  Vishal Seegoolam, Senior Democratic Services Officer 

Tel:  020 8424 1883     E-mail:  vishal.seegoolam@harrow.gov.uk 
 



Governance, Audit, Risk Management and Standards Committee - 1 December 2014 

 
 
 AGENDA - PART I   

 
1. ATTENDANCE BY RESERVE MEMBERS    
 
 To note the attendance at this meeting of any duly appointed Reserve Members. 

 
Reserve Members may attend meetings:- 
 
(i) to take the place of an ordinary Member for whom they are a reserve; 
(ii) where the ordinary Member will be absent for the whole of the meeting; and  
(iii) the meeting notes at the start of the meeting at the item ‘Reserves’ that the 

Reserve Member is or will be attending as a reserve; 
(iv) if a Reserve Member whose intention to attend has been noted arrives after 

the commencement of the meeting, then that Reserve Member can only act 
as a Member from the start of the next item of business on the agenda after 
his/her arrival. 

 
2. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST    
 
 To receive declarations of disclosable pecuniary or non pecuniary interests, arising 

from business to be transacted at this meeting, from: 
 
(a) all Members of the Committee; 
(b) all other Members present. 
 

3. MINUTES   (Pages 1 - 4) 
 
 That the minutes of the meeting held on 17 September 2014 be taken as read and 

signed as a correct record. 
 

4. PUBLIC QUESTIONS *    
 
 To receive any public questions received in accordance with Committee Procedure 

Rule 17 (Part 4B of the Constitution). 
 
Questions will be asked in the order notice of them was received and there be a 
time limit of 15 minutes. 
 
[The deadline for receipt of public questions is 3.00 pm, Wednesday 26th 
November 2014. Questions should be sent to publicquestions@harrow.gov.uk   

No person may submit more than one question]. 
 

5. PETITIONS    
 
 To receive petitions (if any) submitted by members of the public/Councillors under 

the provisions of Committee Procedure Rule 15 (Part 4B of the Constitution). 
 

6. DEPUTATIONS    
 
 To receive deputations (if any) under the provisions of Committee Procedure Rule 

16 (Part 4B) of the Constitution. 
 



Governance, Audit, Risk Management and Standards Committee - 1 December 2014 

7. REFERENCES FROM COUNCIL AND OTHER COMMITTEES/PANELS    
 
 To receive references from Council and any other Committees or Panels (if any). 

 
8. INFORMATION REPORT - TREASURY MANAGEMENT STRATEGY 

STATEMENT AND ANNUAL INVESTMENT STRATEGY: MID-YEAR REVIEW 
2014-15   (Pages 5 - 18) 

 
 Report of the Director of Finance and Assurance. 

 
9. INFORMATION REPORT - ANNUAL AUDIT LETTER   (Pages 19 - 32) 
 
 Report of the Director of Finance and Assurance. 

 
10. INFORMATION REPORT - CORPORATE ANTI-FRAUD TEAM (CAFT) MID YEAR 

REPORT 2014-15   (Pages 33 - 112) 
 
 Report of the Director of Finance and Assurance. 

 
11. INFORMATION REPORT - INTERNAL AUDIT MID-YEAR REPORT 2014/15   

(Pages 113 - 128) 
 
 Report of the Director of Finance and Assurance. 

 
12. ANY OTHER URGENT BUSINESS    
 
 Which cannot otherwise be dealt with. 

 
 AGENDA - PART II - NIL   

 
 * DATA PROTECTION ACT NOTICE   
 The Council will audio record item 4 (Public Questions) and will place the audio recording on the 

Council’s website, which will be accessible to all. 
 
[Note:  The questions and answers will not be reproduced in the minutes.] 
 

 



This page is intentionally left blank



�

� ��������	�
�����
���������������������������������������������������������� �� ���

�
�
�

����������	
����	
���


����������
���


���������
��������




�������

�

��
���������
����

�
�
��������	� !� ����	�""�����������#�����
� � �
�
����
��	� !� �$�%��&����"��

!� '���(���	"�����""������
!� ��������$�������
�

!� )�����*����$�
!� *�����$�*���"�
!� '$�����+$������
�

�������������	�
��
����
����
�

�� ,������������
�

��������������-�

!� .����������������������
�
�

���� ��������������������������������
�
��� !"�#	��+��������$����$����/���������������������������������	�0�
�

�$�� #�������
���
%������������
�
��� !"�#	��+��������$����$��&�""�/��������������/�����	"���1�
�
������2�������3������������&��		���������4����
�
���.�����5�/���	���	"������������	�����(� ��������� ��� �$���$���/�&��/�����
��������&��$��5�	�"������������*��������	$����
�
����	�""���'���(���	"�����""�������	"������������	�����(� ��������� ��� �$���
$��/�������������&��$��5�	�"������������*��������	$�����$����$�5�����
����	�"�0� � 6�� /��� �"��� �� ������� �&� �$�� �������� ��� �$�� ����� /$��� ���

Agenda Item 3
Pages 1 to 4

1



�

��7��� � ��������	�
�����
����������������������������������������������������������

	�������� �$�� ���������� �&� ��	�� �&&�	�� �����	��� ��	"����� �$�� ���������� �&�
��*0� � 6�� /��"� ������� ��� �$�� �����/$�"��� �$��������� /��� 	�������� ���
���������0�
�
����	�""���*�����$�*���"��	"������������	�����(� ��������� ��� �$���$��/�����
������������'���"�(�#���6��$��	$��"0��6��/��"������������$�������/$�"���
�$���������/���	��������������������0�
�
����	�""���,�������������	"������������	�����(� ��������� ��� �$���$��$����
&���"(� ������� /$�� /��� �� ������� �&� �$�� ����	�"8�� 5�	�"� �����������
*��������	$���0���
�
����	�""�����������#������	"������������	�����(� ��������� ��� �$���$��/�����
������������6����/���""���0��6��/��"�������� ����$�������/$�"��� �$���������
/���	��������������������0�
�

�&�� ����������
�
�������� �&� �$�� ���������� 9������ /$(� �&&�	���� /���� ���� ����� ��� �$��
�����������$������������0� ����������"���	�������� �$�����������/$��
/������������������&��$�������������$��"��"���������������$���������
����
�$����������������������	(0�
�
+$����������������� �$�� ������� ������ ��&����� ��� �$��.���	�����&�5���"����
��������	�������	�����������/��$���&����""�&����"��������"���"������0�
�
��� !"�#	��+$����$�����������&��$����������$�"�������:�"(�����
����������
���������������������	����	����	��0�
�

'(�� )�����*�����
��+�)�����
�������#�,�����
�����
�
��� !"�#	� � +�� ����� �$��� ��� ���"�	� 9��������� /���� ���� ��� ���������� ���
�������������	���������$����������0�
�

'��� ��%��������%�
���
���������
������
��������-)�������
�
+$����/��������0�
�

��� !"�#��.������
�

''�� ���������,�
%��������������������/�����0������1����2�
�����������
�
��� !"�#	� � +$��� �$�� ������������ �&� �������� ��� �$�� ����������� ���
6������������/����������������������������������������$��"��������������
�$�������0�
�

'3�� ������������������
�
+$����/��������0�
�

2



�

��������	�
�����
���������������������������������������������������������� �������

'4�� �56 ���.� 5���) �.�2�������7
�������������������'(�32�4���
�
+$������������ ��	������� ������� �&� �$��.���	���� �&� ;����	������������	��
/$�	$����������$������	�"8�������"���������	������������<���=�&������4>���
����$������������������������������	�����������0�
�
��� !"�#	��+$����$����������������0�
�

'8�� ������
��
%������
�������)�
��������������
�
+$������������ ��	����� �� ������� /$�	$� �������� ���������� ��� �$��������	��
*��	�������"��0�
�
.������ �$�� ��	������� ��� �$��� ����
� �������� �&� �$�� ���������� ������ ��
������� �&� 9�������/$�	$� �&&�	���� �������� �$��� �$�(�/��"� ���� ��� �������
�$����"��������&��������������������&�����$���������0���������""(�������&�
�$�� 	�������� ������ /���� ���&�"� ��� �&&�	���� /��"� ���/��� 	�������
��������������������$���������������������		����0�
�
�� ������� �&� �$�� ���������� 	�������� �$��� ��� /��"� ��� �&&�	�"�� &��� ��� ���
���������$���	����������������$��������������9���������������0��+$��
��������������������"�����������	����������$���$�������?�	���$���
���	��
�$������������$����������0� � 2�� �$���������&������������������/����
�$���$�������?�	���$���
��$�������/��"��������������������$����@����������
�&��$�����������0�
�
��� !"�#	��+$����$���������"��&� �$���������������	��*��	�������"������
�"������ ��� �$���$���� ���?�	���$���� ������ ��� �$���� ��/��� ������������ &���
�������"�����$��������������������/�#����������������;�""�����	�"0���
�

'9�� ����������
%����
�����'(�32�4���
�
+$�� ���������� ��	����� �� ������� /$�	$� ���� ���� �$�� ������ ���������� �&�
�		������&������4���0�
�
��� !"�#	��+$���
�
<�=� �$�� ��������&� �$��A@�����"��������������������������� &���� �$��������&�

�$�����4�����		������&����$������	�"�����$��*�������;����������B�
�
<�=� �$������������������ �&��		������ &��� �$������	�"� ��� �$������	�"8��

*������� ;��� &��� �$�� &����	��"� (���� ���4���� ��� �������� ��� �$��
���������$����&��(��$���$����������$�����B�

�
<4=� �$�������"���������	������������&������4��������������B�
�
<�=� �$�� .���	���� �&� ;����	�� ��� �������	�� ��� ���$�����
� &�""�/����

	����"������� /��$� �$�� �$���
� ��� ����� ��(� &���"� ���������� ��� �$��
�		������ �������� &���� �$�� A@�����"� ����� ������ ��� �$�� �������� �&� �$��
�		�������(��$��������B�

�

3



�

������� � ��������	�
�����
����������������������������������������������������������

<C=� �$��*�������;��������"���������&����4�����������B�
�
<-=� �$��������(������������&��		�������������0�
�
<)���1��+$���������
�$������	�����	������04����
�	"�������70�4���=0�
�
�
�
�
�
<�����=��DE)�255D���)+D)2D�#A2���
�$�������
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�

4



 
 

 

REPORT FOR: 
 

GOVERNANCE, AUDIT, 

RISK MANAGEMENT AND 

STANDARDS COMMITTEE 

Date of Meeting: 

 

1 December 2014 

Subject: 

 

INFORMATION REPORT  
Treasury Management Strategy Statement 
and Annual Investment Strategy: Mid-year 
review 2014-15 

Responsible Officer: 

 

Simon George, Director of Finance and 
Assurance 

Exempt: 

 

No 
 

Wards affected: 

 

All 

Enclosures: Appendix A – Economic update and 
Interest Rate 

 
 

Section 1 – Summary and Recommendations 
 
This report sets out the mid-year review of treasury management activities for 
2014/15.  The counterparty schedule was amended by Council decision in 
November 2014.  The change is discussed in the report. 

  
Recommendations:  
To note the Treasury Management Mid-Year Report for 2014/15. 

 

Reason  

(a) To promote effective financial management and comply with the Local 
Authorities (Capital Finance and Accounting) Regulations 2003 and 
other relevant guidance. 

(b) To keep Members informed of Treasury Management activities and 
performance. 

 

Agenda Item 8
Pages 5 to 18

5



 

Section 2 – Report 

Background 

1 Treasury management is defined as: 
“The management of the local authority’s investments and cash flows, its 
banking, money market and capital market transactions; the effective 
control of the risks associated with those activities; and the pursuit of 
optimum performance consistent with those risks.” 
 

2 The Council operates a balanced budget, which broadly means cash 
raised during the year will meet its cash expenditure.  Part of the treasury 
management operations ensure this cash flow is adequately planned, with 
surplus monies being invested in low risk counterparties, providing 
adequate liquidity initially before considering optimising investment return. 

 
3 The second main function of the treasury management service is the 

funding of the Council’s capital plans.  These capital plans provide a guide 
to the borrowing need of the Council, essentially the longer term cash flow 
planning to ensure the Council can meet its capital spending operations.  
This management of longer term cash may involve arranging long or short 
term loans, or using longer term cash flow surpluses, and on occasion any 
debt previously drawn may be restructured to meet Council risk or cost 
objectives.  

Introduction 

4 The Chartered Institute of Public Finance and Accountancy’s (CIPFA) 
Code of Practice on Treasury Management (revised 2011) has been 
adopted by the Council.  

 
5 The primary requirements of the Code are as follows:   

• Creation and maintenance of a Treasury Management Policy 
Statement which sets out the policies and objectives of the 
Council’s treasury management activities. 

• Creation and maintenance of Treasury Management Practices 
which set out the manner in which the Council will seek to achieve 
those policies and objectives. 

• Receipt by the full council of an annual Treasury Management 
Strategy Statement - including the Annual Investment Strategy and 
Minimum Revenue Provision Policy - for the year ahead, a Mid-year 
Review Report and an Annual Report (stewardship report) covering 
activities during the previous year. 

6



• Delegation by the Council of responsibilities for implementing and 
monitoring treasury management policies and practices and for the 
execution and administration of treasury management decisions. 

• Delegation by the Council of the role of scrutiny of treasury 
management strategy and policies to a specific named body.  For 
this Council the delegated body is Governance, Audit, Risk 
Management and Standards Committee.  

6 The purpose of this report is to specifically meet one of the above 
requirements, namely the mid year report of treasury managements 
activities for financial year 2014/15.  The report covers the following: 

• Treasury Position as at 30 September 2014; 

• An economic update and Interest Rates; 

• Compliance with Prudential Indicators. 

 

Treasury Position as at 30 September 2014. 
 
7 The Council’s treasury position as at 30 September 2014 is detailed 

below: 

Principal 

Average 

Rate Average Life Principal 

Average 

Rate Average Life

£m % £m %

Total Investments 148.5 0.93 218 days 130.8 1.11 174 days

Borrowing

Public Works Loan Board 218.5 4.09 36.7 yrs 218.5 4.09 37.2 yrs

Market Loans 115.8 4.53 37.5 yrs 121.8 4.58 36.1 yrs

Total Debt 334.3 4.24 37.0 yrs 340.3 4.26 36.8 yrs

As at 30 September 2014 As at 31 March 2014

 
 
Review of Investment Portfolio 
8 The Council remains a cautious investor placing security and liquidity 

considerations ahead of income generation.  It is a very difficult investment 
market in terms of earning the level of interest rates commonly seen in 
previous decades as rates are very low and in line with the 0.5% Bank 
Rate.  Indeed, the Funding for Lending scheme has reduced market 
investment rates even further.  During the first half of the year the rates on 
offer for the call account has been 0.25%, three months are broadly in the 
range of 0.35% to 0.50% and for over one year period the rate is just under 
1%.  The potential for a prolonging of the Eurozone sovereign debt crisis, 
and its impact on banks, prompts a low risk and short term strategy.  Given 
this risk environment, investment returns are likely to remain low. 

 
9 The Council held £148.5m of investments as at 30 September 2014 

(£130.8m at 31 March 2014) and the investment portfolio yield for the first 
six months of the year is 0.93% against the three months LIBOR of 0.55%.  
The Council’s investment income revised budget is £1.102m, the forecast 
outturn is a favourable variance of £167k resulting from higher than 
anticipated cash balances. 

7



 
10 The only counterparties actively in use during the period have been Lloyds 

and Royal Bank of Scotland group, Enhanced Money Market Fund and 
Sevenska Handelsbanken. 

 
11 The performance of the investment portfolio is benchmarked on a quarterly 

basis by Capita both against their risk adjusted model and the returns from 
other local authorities.  As at 30 September 2014, the average yield on the 
portfolio of 0.93% exceeded the model return by 0.11%.   

 
12 In addition to the investment of cash balances, The Council at its meeting 

in July 2013 approved a loan of £15m to West London Waste Authority to 
finance the cost of a new energy from waste plant.  The term of the loan is 
25 years at an interest rate of 7.604% on a reducing balance.  The 
drawdown as at September 2014 is £5m of the total loan and the remaining 
facility of £10m will be used by June 2016.  For the financial year 2014/15, 
the outturn forecast on the interest accrued is £400k which is included as 
part of the investment income. 

 
13 The table below sets out the position as at 30 September 2014. 

£m % £m % £m %
Specified Investments

Banks & Building Societies 10.1 7.2 0 0 15.2 10.2

Money Market Funds 1.6 1.1 1.6 1.2 1.6 1.1

Non –Specified Investments

Banks & Building Societies 109.1 77.5 109.1 83.5 111.6 75.2

Enhanced Money Market Funds 20 14.2 20.1 15.3 20.1 13.5

Total 140.8 100 130.8 100 148.5 100.00

2013/14 2014/15

Sep-13 Mar-14 Sep-14

 
14 The counter party limit for Enhanced Money Market Fund (Insight) was 

exceeded by £109k.  This was due to the reinvestment of interest earned.  
The position was corrected in October 2014 by withdrawing part of the 
investment. Controls are already implemented to review the adherence to 
the counter party limits on daily basis to ensure compliance with the 
approved limits. 

 
15 At its meeting in November the Council has approved HB Public Law Ltd. 

which is wholly owned by Harrow Council to be added to the counter party 
list.  The Council has approved a start up loan of £100k for three years and 
therefore has increased the limit of over 24 months investment from £10m 
to £10.5m.  To date there has not been any drawdown on this loan by HB 
Public Law Ltd. 

 
Borrowing Portfolio  
16 The table below analyses the maturity profile of borrowing.   

8



Maturity structure of borrowing % % £m %

under 12 months 20 0 0 0.00%

12 months and within 24 months 20 0 0 0.00%

24 months and within 5 years 30 0 32 9.57%

5 years and within 10 years 40 5 5 1.50%

10 years and above 90 30 297.3 88.93%

Total 334.3 100.00%

upper 

limit

lower 

limit LOBO final maturity

 
  
17 The maturity category for ‘5 years and within 10 years’ does not meet the 

lower limit criteria as the £12m loan matures in April 2019 which has 
moved in the first half of this  financial from this category to the one above 
of ‘24 months and within 5 years’ category.  These limits will be reviewed 
as part of setting the strategy for 2015/16. 

 
18 The Council held £334.3m of borrowing as at 30 September 2014 

(£340.3m at 31 March 2014) and the average borrowing rate is 4.24%.  
The forecast outturn on borrowing cost is a small favourable variance of 
£185k on a revised budget of £7.710m. 

 
Debt Rescheduling 
19 Debt rescheduling opportunities have been limited in the current economic 

climate and consequent structure of interest rates.  Therefore, no debt 
rescheduling was undertaken during the first six months of the year. 

 

Economic update and Interest Rates 
 
20 An Economic update for the first part of the 2014/15 financial year along 

with the interest rate forecast provided by Capita is included as Appendix 
A. 

Compliance with Prudential Indicators 

Capital Expenditure 
21 The Council’s capital expenditure plans are the key drivers of treasury 

management activity.  The output of the capital expenditure plans is 
reflected in the prudential indicators, which are designed to assist 
Members’ overview and confirm capital expenditure plans. The table 
below summarises the capital expenditure and funding for the current 
financial year: 

 

9



 

2013/14 2014/15 2014/15

Actual Estimate Forecast

£'000 £'000 £'000

Expenditure 

Non - HRA 29,022 69,571 78,209

HRA 6,261 9,527 6,865

TOTAL 35,283 79,098 85,074

Funding:-

Grants 9,404 46,675 39,792

Capital receipts 4,434 13,483 740

Revenue financing 6,748 7,428 6,865

Section 106 76 366 266

TOTAL 20,662 67,952 47,663

Net financing need for the year 14,621 11,146 37,411  
 
22 The increase in the net financing requirement for the capital programme is 

due to the carry forward of slippage from 2013/14 and reduced capital 
receipts from disposal programme than budgeted for.  This will have an 
impact on the annual change in capital financing requirement and net 
borrowing requirement as detailed in tables below.  

 
Capital Financing Requirement (CFR) 
23 The CFR is the total historic outstanding capital expenditure which has not 

yet been paid for from either revenue or capital resources.  It is essentially 
a measure of the Council’s underlying borrowing need.  Any new capital 
expenditure, which has not immediately been paid for, will increase the 
CFR. 

 Capital Financing Requirement  2013/14  2014/15  2014/15 

Actual Estimate  Forecast 

Outturn  

£'000 £'000 £'000

CFR as at 31 March

Non – HRA 244,215         264,985         265,586         

HRA 149,538         149,524         149,513         

TOTAL 393,753         414,509         415,099         

Annual change in CFR 

Non – HRA 26                  3,922-             21,371           

HRA 36-                  25-                  25-                  

TOTAL 10-                  3,947-             21,346            
 
24 The forecast outturn for CFR remains in line with the budget at £415m, 

however the annual change in CFR has increased significantly  
 
25 Debt outstanding should not normally exceed CFR.  The expectation is 

that the under borrowing will increase as cash balances are used to fund 
debt repayment.  The Council forecast outturn shows in the table below 
that the under borrowing is in line with the estimate and will increase 
compared to 2013/14.   

 

10



Changes to Gross Borrowing 2013/14 2014/15 2014/15

Actual Estimate Forecast 

Outturn 

£'000 £'000 £'000

Debt 1st April 350,358 340,261 340,293

Change in Debt -10065 -6000 -6,000

Other long term liabilities (OLTL) 1st April 23,923 22,121 21,841

Expected change in OLTL -2,082 -1,535 -1,900

Actual gross debt at 31st March 362,134 354,847 354,234

CFR 31st March 393,753 414,509 415,099

Under / (over) borrowing 31,619 59,662 60,865  
 
26 The table below shows the net borrowing after investment balances are 

taken into account. 
Net Borrowing 2013/14 2014/15 2014/15

Actual Estimate Forecast 

Outturn 

£'000 £'000 £'000

brought forward 1 April 273,284 243,937 230,942

carried forward 31 March 230,942 256,382 269,107

Change in net borrowing -42,342 12,445 38,165  
 
Operational Boundary and Authorised Limit 
27 Operational Boundary – This is the limit is based on the Council’s plans for 

capital expenditure, capital financing requirement and cash flow 
requirements for the year.   

 
28 Authorised Limit – This represents a limit beyond which external debt is 

prohibited. It reflects the level of external debt which, while not desired, 
could be afforded in the short term, but may not be sustainable in the 
longer term.  This is the statutory limit determined under section 3 (1) of 
the Local Government Act 2003.  The Government retains an option to 
control either the total of all councils’ plans, or those of a specific council, 
although this power has not yet been exercised. 

2013/14 2014/15 2014/15

Actual Estimate Forecast 

Outturn

£m £m £m

Authorised Limit for external debt 

Borrowing and other long term liabilities 362 414 354

Operational Boundary for external debt

Borrowing 340 345 334

Other long term liabilities 22 22 20

Total 362 367 354

Upper limit for fixed interest rate exposure

Net principal re fixed rate borrowing 340 345 334

Upper limit for variable rate exposure

Net principal re variable rate borrowing 0 0 0

Upper limit for principal sums invested over 364 

days

25 40 40

 
 
Affordability Indicators 
29 Ratio of Financing Cost to Revenue Stream – This indicator identifies the 

trend in the cost of capital (borrowing, depreciation, impairment and other 

11



long term obligation costs net of investment income) against the net 
revenue stream.   

  2013/14 2014/15 2014/15 

  

Actual Estimate  Forecast 
Outturn 

  % % % 

Non - HRA 12 14 14 

HRA  45 43 47 

 
30 Incremental impact of Capital Investment Decisions on Council Tax and 

Housing Rents – This indicator identifies the revenue costs associated 
with proposed changes to the capital programme and the impact on 
Council Tax and Housing Rents. 

2013/14 2014/15 2014/15

Actual Estimate Forecast 

Outurn

£ £ £

Incremental impact of capital investment decisions 

Increase in Council Tax (band D) per annum  21.71           11.43 60.81

Increase in average housing rent per week 2.65 -0.14 -1.39  
 
31 The capital receipts from disposal programme are considerably less than 

budgeted for and this has a significant impact on the increase in Council 
Tax band D as shown in the table above. 

 
Local HRA indicators 
32 The ratio of gross revenue stream to debt shows a gradual increase which 

indicates that the ability of HRA to finance its debt is improving.  As the 
number of dwellings reduces over the period, the debt outstanding per 
dwelling is estimated to increase. However, the annual increases are only 
marginal and the ratio compared to the average value of each dwelling is 
low enough for the measure to raise no concern. 

 
2013/14 2014/15 2014/15

Actual Estimate Forecast 

Outturn 

Debt  (CFR) (£m) 149.5 149.5 149.5

Gross Revenue Stream (£m) 31.1 31.7 31.8

Ratio of Gross Revenue Stream to Debt (%) 21 21 21

Average Number of Dwellings 4933 4904 4892

Debt outstanding per dwelling (£) 30,306 30,485 30,560  
 
33 HRA Debt Limit is shown in the table below 

2013/14 2013/14 2014/15

Actual Estimate Forecast 

Outturn 

£'000 £'000 £'000

HRA Debt Limit 149,648 149,648 149,648

HRA CFR 149,537 149,524 149,501

Headroom 111 124 147  
 

Financial Implications 
34 Financial matters are integral to the report. 
 

12



Equalities implications 
35 There are no direct equalities impacts arising from the decisions within 

this report. 

 
Council Priorities 
36 This report deals with the Treasury Management activity and the 

Prudential Code which underpin the delivery of the Council’s vision and 
priorities. 

  

Section 3 - Statutory Officer Clearance 
 

    
Name: Simon George……………….   Chief Financial Officer 
  
Date: 18th November 2014……….. 

   

 
 
 

 

Ward Councillors notified: 

 

 
n/a 

 

 
 
 

Section 4 - Contact Details and Background 

Papers 
 
 

Contact:  Ian Talbot (Treasury and Pension Fund Manager)   Tel: 020-
8424-1450 / Email: ian.talbot@harrow.gov.uk  

 
Background Papers: 
http://moderngov:8080/documents/s112592/TMS.pdf 
 
 

13



Appendix AAppendix AAppendix AAppendix A    

3333    Economic updateEconomic updateEconomic updateEconomic update    

3.1 Economic performance to date and outlook 

3.1.1     U.K. 

After strong UK GDP quarterly growth of 0.7%, 0.8% and 0.7% in quarters 2, 3 and 4 respectively 

in 2013, (2013 annual rate 2.7%), and 0.7% in Q1 and 0.9% in Q2 2014 (annual rate 3.2% in Q2), 

it appears very likely that strong growth will continue through 2014 and into 2015 as forward 

surveys for the services and construction sectors, are very encouraging and business investment 

is also strongly recovering.  The manufacturing sector has also been encouraging though the latest 

figures indicate a weakening in the future trend rate of growth.  However, for this recovery to 

become more balanced and sustainable in the longer term, the recovery needs to move away from 

dependence on consumer expenditure and the housing market to exporting, and particularly of 

manufactured goods, both of which need to substantially improve on their recent lacklustre 

performance.  This overall strong growth has resulted in unemployment falling much faster through 

the initial threshold of 7%, set by the Monetary Policy Committee (MPC) last August, before it said 

it would consider any increases in Bank Rate.  The MPC has, therefore, subsequently broadened 

its forward guidance by adopting five qualitative principles and looking at a much wider range of 

about eighteen indicators in order to form a view on how much slack there is in the economy and 

how quickly slack is being used up. The MPC is particularly concerned that the current squeeze on 

the disposable incomes of consumers should be reversed by wage inflation rising back above the 

level of inflation in order to ensure that the recovery will be sustainable.  There also needs to be a 

major improvement in labour productivity, which has languished at dismal levels since 2008, to 

support increases in pay rates.  Most economic forecasters are expecting growth to peak in 2014 

and then to ease off a little, though still remaining strong, in 2015 and 2016.  Unemployment is 

therefore expected to keep on its downward trend and this is likely to eventually feed through into a 

return to significant increases in pay rates at some point during the next three years.  However, just 

how much those future increases in pay rates will counteract the depressive effect of increases in 

Bank Rate on consumer confidence, the rate of growth in consumer expenditure and the buoyancy 

of the housing market, are areas that will need to be kept under regular review. 

Also encouraging has been the sharp fall in inflation (CPI), reaching 1.5% in May and July, the 
lowest rate since 2009.  Forward indications are that inflation is likely to fall further in 2014 to 
possibly near to 1%. Overall, markets are expecting that the MPC will be cautious in raising 
Bank Rate as it will want to protect heavily indebted consumers from too early an increase in 
Bank Rate at a time when inflationary pressures are also weak.  A first increase in Bank Rate 
is therefore expected in Q1 or Q2 2015 and they expect increases after that to be at a slow 
pace to lower levels than prevailed before 2008 as increases in Bank Rate will have a much 
bigger effect on heavily indebted consumers than they did before 2008.  
 
The return to strong growth has also helped lower forecasts for the increase in Government 
debt by £73bn over the next five years, as announced in the 2013 Autumn Statement, and by 
an additional £24bn, as announced in the March 2014 Budget - which also forecast a return to 

14



a significant budget surplus, (of £5bn), in 2018-19.  However, monthly public sector deficit 
figures have disappointed so far in 2014/15. 

3.1.2     U.S. 

In September, the Federal Reserve continued with its monthly $10bn reductions in asset 
purchases, which started in December 2014. Asset purchases have now fallen from $85bn to 
$15bn and are expected to stop in October 2014, providing strong economic growth continues.  
First quarter GDP figures for the US were depressed by exceptionally bad winter weather, but 
growth rebounded very strongly in Q2 to 4.6% (annualised). 
 
The U.S. faces similar debt problems to those of the UK, but thanks to reasonable growth, 
cuts in government expenditure and tax rises, the annual government deficit has been halved 
from its peak without appearing to do too much damage to growth, although the weak labour 
force participation rate remains a matter of key concern for the Federal Reserve when 
considering the amount of slack in the economy and monetary policy decisions. 

3.1.3     Eurozone 

The Eurozone is facing an increasing threat from weak or negative growth and from deflation.  
In September, the inflation rate fell further, to reach a low of 0.3%.  However, this is an 
average for all EZ countries and includes some countries with negative rates of inflation.  
Accordingly, the ECB took some rather limited action in June to loosen monetary policy in 
order to promote growth. In September it took further action to cut its benchmark rate to only 
0.05%, its deposit rate to -0.2% and to start a programme of purchases of corporate debt.  
However, it has not embarked yet on full quantitative easing (purchase of sovereign debt).  
Concern in financial markets for the Eurozone subsided considerably during 2013.  However, 
sovereign debt difficulties have not gone away and major issues could return in respect of any 
countries that do not dynamically address fundamental issues of low growth, international 
uncompetitiveness and the need for overdue reforms of the economy, (as Ireland has done).  
It is, therefore, possible over the next few years that levels of government debt to GDP ratios 
could continue to rise for some countries. This could mean that sovereign debt concerns have 
not disappeared but, rather, have only been postponed.  
 

3.1.3     China and Japan 

Japan is causing considerable concern as the increase in sales tax in April has suppressed 
consumer expenditure and growth.  In Q2 growth was -1.8% q/q and -7.1% over the previous 
year. The Government is hoping that this is a temporary blip. 
As for China, Government action in 2014 to stimulate the economy appeared to be putting the 
target of 7.5% growth within achievable reach but recent data has raised fresh concerns. 
There are also major concerns as to the creditworthiness of much bank lending to corporates 
and local government during the post 2008 credit expansion period and whether the bursting 
of a bubble in housing prices is drawing nearer. 
 

3.2 Interest rate forecasts  

The Council’s treasury advisor, Capita Asset Services, has provided the following forecast: 
 

15



 
 
Capita Asset Services undertook a review of its interest rate forecasts in mid August, after the 
Bank of England’s Inflation Report. By the beginning of September, a further rise in 
geopolitical concerns, principally over Ukraine but also over the Middle East, had caused a 
further flight into safe havens like gilts and depressed PWLB rates further.  However, there is 
much volatility in rates as news ebbs and flows in negative or positive ways. This latest 
forecast includes a first increase in Bank Rate in quarter 1 of 2015.  
 
Our PWLB forecasts are based around a balance of risks.  However, there are potential 
upside risks, especially for longer term PWLB rates, as follows: - 

• A further surge in investor confidence that robust world economic growth is firmly expected, causing a flow 

of funds out of bonds and into equities. 

• UK inflation being significantly higher than in the wider EU and US, causing an increase in the inflation 

premium inherent to gilt yields.  

Downside risks currently include:  

• The situation over Ukraine poses a major threat to EZ and world growth if it was to deteriorate into economic 

warfare between the West and Russia where Russia resorted to using its control over gas supplies to 

Europe. 

• UK strong economic growth is currently dependent on consumer spending and the unsustainable boom in 

the housing market.  The boost from these sources is likely to fade after 2014. 

• A weak rebalancing of UK growth to exporting and business investment causing a weakening of overall 

economic growth beyond 2014. 

• Weak growth or recession in the UK’s main trading partners - the EU and US, inhibiting economic recovery 

in the UK. 

• A return to weak economic growth in the US, UK and China causing major disappointment in investor and 

market expectations. 

• A resurgence of the Eurozone sovereign debt crisis caused by ongoing deterioration in government debt to 

GDP ratios to the point where financial markets lose confidence in the financial viability of one or more 

countries and in the ability of the ECB and Eurozone governments to deal with the potential size of the crisis. 

• Recapitalising of European banks requiring more government financial support. 

• Lack of support by populaces in Eurozone countries for austerity programmes, especially in countries with 

very high unemployment rates e.g. Greece and Spain, which face huge challenges in engineering economic 

growth to correct their budget deficits on a sustainable basis. 

16



• Italy: the political situation has improved but it remains to be seen whether the new government is able to 

deliver the austerity programme required and a programme of overdue reforms.  Italy has the third highest 

government debt mountain in the world. 

• France: after being elected on an anti austerity platform, President Hollande has embraced a €50bn 

programme of public sector cuts over the next three years.  However, there could be major obstacles in 

implementing this programme. Major overdue reforms of employment practices and an increase in 

competiveness are also urgently required to lift the economy out of stagnation.   

• Monetary policy action failing to stimulate sustainable growth in western economies, especially the 

Eurozone and Japan. 

• Heightened political risks in the Middle East and East Asia could trigger safe haven flows back into bonds. 

• There are also increasing concerns that the reluctance of western economies to raise interest rates 

significantly for some years, plus the huge QE measures which remain in place (and may be added to by 

the ECB in the near future), has created potentially unstable flows of liquidity searching for yield and 

therefore heightened the potential for an increase in risks in order to get higher returns. This is a return of the 

same environment which led to the 2008 financial crisis.  

 
 

17



18

This page is intentionally left blank



 
 

 

REPORT FOR: 
 

GOVERNANCE, AUDIT, 

RISK MANAGEMENT AND 

STANDARDS COMMITTEE 

Date of Meeting: 

 

1 December 2014 

Subject: 

 

INFORMATION REPORT  
Annual Audit Letter 

Responsible Officer: 

 

Simon George, Director of Finance and 
Assurance 

Exempt: 

 

No 
 

Wards affected: 

 

All 

Enclosures: Annual Audit Letter 

 
 

Section 1 – Summary and Recommendations 
 
 
This report provides the Committee with an opportunity to consider the Annual 
Audit Letter 

 

Reason  

The Accounts and Audit (England) Regulations 2011 requires the committee 
to consider the Annual Audit Letter  
 

 

Agenda Item 9
Pages 19 to 32

19



C:\moderngov\Data\AgendaItemDocs\9\1\1\AI00089119\$wzmbor44.doc 

Section 2 – Report 

Background 

1 The Council’s External Auditor (Deloitte LLP) writes to the Council 
annually in an Audit Letter summarising the important findings from his 
audit work. 
 

2 The 2013/14 Annual Audit Letter is attached as an appendix to this report 
an covers the following matters: 

 
•••• Accounts and Governance 
•••• Value for Money 
•••• Grants 
•••• Audit Fees 

 
3 The key conclusions emerging from the Auditor’s work were: 

• The Council received an unqualified audit opinion and value for money 
conclusion. 

• The summarised recommendations on page 3 were considered by the 
Committee at its meeting in September 2014 and most of these will be 
implemented during the financial year 2014/15.    

• The Council had continued to demonstrate strong financial resilience 
and has robust systems and processes to manage financial risks and 
opportunities and prioritise its resources within tighter budgets. 

 
Financial Implications 
4 There are no direct financial implications arising from this report. 
 

Equalities implications 
5 There are no equalities implications. 

 
Council Priorities 
6 The Annual Audit Letter provides assurance that the Council has 

managed its finances and delivered value for money in accordance with 
Council’s corporate vision and priorities. 

  

Section 3 - Statutory Officer Clearance 
 

    
Name: Simon George…………….   Chief Financial Officer 
  
Date: 18th November 2014……….. 

   

 
 
 

 

Ward Councillors notified: 

 

 
n/a 

 

20



C:\moderngov\Data\AgendaItemDocs\9\1\1\AI00089119\$wzmbor44.doc 

 
 
 

Section 4 - Contact Details and Background 

Papers 
 
 

Contact:  Hasina Shah (Treasury and Pension Fund Manager)   Tel: 
020-8424-1573 / Email: hasina.shah@harrow.gov.uk  

 
Background Papers:  
http://moderngov:8080/documents/s116418/Appendix%202%2
0final%20ISA260%20Auditor%20Report.pdf 

21



C:\moderngov\Data\AgendaItemDocs\9\1\1\AI00089119\$wzmbor44.doc 

 

22



 

20 October 2014 

 

London Borough of Harrow 

Annual Audit Letter to the 

Members of the Council 

for the year ended  

31 March 2014 

 

 
 

 

 

 

23



Contents 

Executive summary 1 

1. Introduction 2 

2. Financial reporting 3 

3. Value for money conclusion 4 

4. Grants 5 

5. Responsibility statement 6 

Appendix 1:  Analysis of professional fees 7 

24



 

Annual Audit Letter 1 

Executive summary 

We are required to provide an annual audit letter which reports our conclusions from the audit of the London 

Borough of Harrow (“the Council”) for the year ended 31 March 2014. This executive summary highlights the most 

significant matters which we would like to bring to your attention; it should therefore be read in conjunction with the 

following sections of the letter: 

Financial statements We issued an unqualified opinion on the Council’s accounts for the year 
ended 31 March 2014. 

At the same time we issued our opinion, we issued our audit certificate.  We 
were able to do this in the absence of receiving any potential objections to the 
year ended 31 March 2014 accounts and because our work on the whole of 
government accounts return and other work specified in the Code was 
complete.   

In September 2014 we also issued our certificate on the 31 March 2013 
accounts having completed our work on potential objections received in 
relation to that year of account. 

 

The Council’s local government 

pension scheme annual report 

We issued an unqualified opinion on information in the Council’s pension 
scheme annual report for the year ended 31 March 2014. 

 

Value for money conclusion We issued an unqualified conclusion on the Council’s arrangements for 
securing value for money during the year ended 31 March 2014. 

 

Whole of Government Accounts 

consolidation return 

We have completed our work and issued our assurance statement, which was 
unqualified. 

 

Grants We undertake work on grant claims and other returns on behalf of the Audit 
Commission and provide certificates to grant funders on compliance with 
aspects of the terms on which funds have been claimed.  We will provide a 
separate, detailed letter to the Council in early 2015 on the outcome of this 
work, but at this point there are no matters which we consider need to be 
brought to your attention.  

 
There are no individually significant recommendations which we wish to bring to Members’ attention here.   

25



 

2 Annual Audit Letter  

1. Introduction 

The purpose of this letter 

The purpose of this Annual Audit Letter (“Letter”) is to summarise the key issues arising from the work that we have 
carried out during the year. 

We have addressed this Letter to the members of the Council as it is the responsibility of the members to ensure 
that proper arrangements are in place for the conduct of its business and that it safeguards and properly accounts 
for public money.  

The Letter will be published on the Audit Commission website at www.audit-commission.gov.uk and should also be 
posted on the Council’s website. 
 

Responsibilities of the Appointed Auditor and the Council and scope of our work 

This Letter has been prepared in the context of the Statement of Responsibilities of Auditors and Audited Bodies 
issued by the Audit Commission. This is available from www.audit-commission.gov.uk. 

We have been appointed as the Council’s independent external auditors by the Audit Commission, the body 
responsible for appointing auditors to local public bodies in England, including local authorities.  As your appointed 
auditor, we are responsible for planning and carrying out an audit that meets the requirements of the Audit 
Commission’s Code of Audit Practice (“the Code”). Under the Code, we review and report on: 

· the Council financial statements; 

· the Council’s local government pension scheme annual report; and  

· whether the Council has made proper arrangements for securing economy, efficiency and effectiveness in its 
use of resources (value for money conclusion). 

We also provide an assurance report to the National Audit Office on the financial information prepared by the 

Council for consolidation into the Whole of Government Accounts. 

It is the responsibility of the Council to ensure that proper arrangements are in place for the conduct of its business 

and that public money is safeguarded and properly accounted for.  We have considered how the Council is fulfilling 

these responsibilities.  

As an additional responsibility to those set out in the Code, we also undertake grant certification work on behalf of 

the Audit Commission. 

 

 

 
  

26



 

Annual Audit Letter 3 

2. Financial reporting 

Key issues arising from the audit of the accounts 

We have issued a separate report for the year ended 31 March 2014, which details the findings from our audit of 
the financial statements and the Council’s value for money arrangements. 

In that report we explained how we focused our work on areas which involved more complex accounting 
judgements and estimation including: 

· accounting for grant income; · management override of control;  

· valuation of property; and · valuation of the local government pension fund liability. 

 

We did not identify any significant issues in the course of our testing of these areas. 

Our report to the Governance, Audit, Risk Management and Standards Committee also includes some 
recommendations to assist with future financial control and reporting.  These recommendations are in respect of: 
procedural improvements in relation to property valuations based on best practice seen elsewhere; ensuring that 
infrastructure assets are suitably identified on records retained by both the operational and finance departments; 
ensuring debit items are cleared in a timely manner from the creditors ledger; and formalising guidance on usage of 
cost centres to ensure consistency of approach across the authority. 

Key issues arising from the audit of the pension scheme accounts within the pension scheme annual 
report 

We have reported separately to the Governance, Audit and Risk Management Committee in respect of the work we 
performed on the pension scheme.  We have issued an unqualified opinion on the pension scheme accounts within 
the pension scheme annual report. 

Whole of Government Accounts 

Whole of Government Accounts (WGA) are commercial-style accounts covering all the public sector and include 
some 1,700 separate bodies.  Auditors appointed by the Audit Commission have a statutory duty under the Code of 
Audit Practice 2010 to review and report on the whole of government accounts return.  Our report is used by the 
National Audit Office (“NAO”) for the purposes of their audit of the Whole of Government Accounts.  We have 
issued our unqualified opinion in this regard. 

Issue of audit certificate 

We have issued our audit certificate for the year ended 31 March 2014. 

27



 

4 Annual Audit Letter  

3. Value for money conclusion 

The scope of our work 

We are required to issue a conclusion on whether we are satisfied that the Council has put in place proper 
arrangements for securing economy, efficiency and effectiveness in its use of resources.  This is known as the 
value for money conclusion.   

Our conclusion is given in relation to the following criteria specified by the Audit Commission: 

Specified criteria for auditors’ VFM conclusion Focus of the criteria for 2013 

The organisation has proper arrangements in place 

for securing financial resilience. 

The organisation has robust systems and processes to 

manage financial risks and opportunities effectively, and 

to secure a stable financial position that enables it to 

continue to operate for the foreseeable future. 

The organisation has proper arrangements for 

challenging how it secures economy, efficiency and 

effectiveness. 

The organisation is prioritising its resources within 

tighter budgets, for example by achieving cost 

reductions and by improving efficiency and productivity. 

Approach to our work 

We draw sources of assurance relating to our VFM responsibilities from: 

· the audited body's system of internal control as reported on in its Annual Governance Statement; 

· the results of the work of the Commission, other inspectorates and review agencies to the extent that the 

results come to our attention and have an impact on the our responsibilities; 

· any work mandated by the Commission – of which there was none in 2012/13; and 

· any other locally determined risk-based VFM work that auditors consider necessary to discharge our 

responsibilities. 

Risk assessment 

We undertook a risk assessment to identify potential risks to the value for money conclusion. Based on this work, 

we considered that the following could be risks for VFM.  We undertook further procedures in relation to these to 

ensure that the risks arising in these areas have been mitigated by the arrangements in place within the Authority: 

· low level of general reserves;  

· future funding gaps; and 

· impact of deletion of CEO post and potential for reinstatement. 

Overall conclusion 

On the basis of the work performed in relation to the risks above, and having considered control weaknesses 

identified in the course of our audit, we issued an unqualified VFM conclusion having determined that neither the 

identified risks nor the identified control weaknesses would impact this. 

28



 

Annual Audit Letter 5 

4. Grants 

Under Section 28 of the Audit Commission Act 1998, the Commission is responsible for making arrangements for 

certifying claims and returns in respect of grants or subsidies made or paid by Central Government or a Public 

Authority to a Local Authority. The Commission, rather than its appointed auditors, has the responsibility for 

agreeing certification arrangements with the respective grant-giving bodies, principally government departments. 

The appointed auditor carries out work on individual claims as an agent of the Commission under these 

arrangements which comprise certification instructions which the auditor must follow. 

Our programme is in progress at the time of writing.  We will issue a separate Annual Audit Letter in respect of the 

grants programme in early 2015, following the completion of the programme.  At this point there are no matters 

which we consider need to be brought to your attention. 

 

29



 

6 Annual Audit Letter  

5. Responsibility statement 

The Statement of Responsibilities of Auditors and Audited Bodies issued by the Audit Commission explains the 

respective responsibilities of auditors and of the audited body and in this report is prepared on the basis of, and our 

audit work is carried out, in accordance with that statement.  

This report should be read in conjunction with the "Briefing on audit matters" circulated to you previously and sets 

out those audit matters of governance interest which came to our attention during the audit.  Our audit was not 

designed to identify all matters that may be relevant to the Council and this report is not necessarily a 

comprehensive statement of all deficiencies which may exist in internal control or of all improvements which may 

be made. 

This report has been prepared for the Council, as a body, and we therefore accept responsibility to you alone for its 

contents.  We accept no duty, responsibility or liability to any other parties, since this report has not been prepared, 

and is not intended, for any other purpose. 

 

Deloitte LLP 

Chartered Accountants  

St Albans 

20 October 2014 

30



 

Annual Audit Letter 7 

Appendix 1:  Analysis of professional 

fees 

The professional fees earned by Deloitte in respect of the period 1 April 2013 to 31 March 2014 are as 

follows: 

  
2013/14 
£’000 

2012/13 
£’000 

Fees payable in respect of our work under the 
Code of Audit Practice  [1] 196 193 

Fees payable in respect of our work under the 
Code of Audit Practice – extensions to audit work [2] 8 8 

Fees payable in respect of the WGA return  5 5 

Fees payable in respect of the certification of 
grants  40 43 

Fees payable in respect of our work under the 
Code of Audit Practice in respect of the Pension 
Fund  21 21 

Other [3] - 16 

  
  

Audit services provided   270 286 

  
  

 

[1] In March 2014 the Audit Commission agreed a rebate to be distributed across local audit bodies. The 

announcement came following a meeting of the Audit Commission’s Board, who met to discuss the 

strategy for managing any retained earnings prior to its closure at the end of March 2015. The decision 

was made as part of the Board’s role in setting the Commission’s strategy and objectives and for 

determining its budget and the way it carries out its functions.  The rebate was set at 13.7 per cent of 

the 2012/13 annual audit fee.  The rebate sent to Harrow was £27,146, with a further £2,874 in 

relation to the pension fund. 

The fee above includes £2,750 in relation to our work on the business rates provision which has been 

approved by the Audit Commission. 

 [2]  Extensions to audit work are the fees charged in relation to our procedures required in addressing 

objections to the accounts.   

 Since 31 March 2014 we have completed our work on a potential objection received in relation to the 

2012/13 year end.  Since issuing our ISA260 report, the Audit Commission has approved a fee of 

£4,692 in relation to this work.  This fee will be disclosed as a cost in the 2014/15 financial 

statements given the timing of the work and is hence excluded from the table above. 

 [3]  ‘Other’ relates to work for the 2011-12 audit and relates to overruns charged additional work required 

to finalise the audit of the financial statements. 

 

 

 

 

31



 

Deloitte refers to one or more of Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu Limited (“DTTL”), a UK private company limited by guarantee, and its network of 

member firms, each of which is a legally separate and independent entity. Please see www.deloitte.co.uk/about for a detailed description of the 

legal structure of DTTL and its member firms. 

Deloitte LLP is the United Kingdom member firm of DTTL. 

© 2014 Deloitte LLP. All rights reserved. 

Deloitte LLP is a limited liability partnership registered in England and Wales with registered number OC303675 and its registered office at 2 

New Street Square, London EC4A 3BZ, United Kingdom. Tel: +44 (0) 20 7936 3000 Fax: +44 (0) 20 7583 1198. 

Member of Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu Limited 

 

 

32



 

REPORT FOR: 

 

GOVERNANCE, AUDIT 

AND RISK 

MANAGEMENT  

COMMITTEE 

Date of Meeting: 

 

1st December 2014 

Subject: 

 

INFORMATION REPORT – 

Corporate Anti-Fraud Team 

(CAFT) Mid Year Report 2014-15  

  

Responsible Officer: 

 

Simon George – Director of Finance & 
Assurance 

Exempt: 

 

No 

Enclosures: 

 

Appendix 1 – CAFT structure pre and 
post consultation 
Appendix 2 – CIPFA Code of Practice 
on Managing the Risk of Fraud and 
Corruption 
Appendix 3 – Protecting the Public 
Purse 2014 

 
 

Section 1 – Summary 
 

 
This mid year report details the Corporate Anti-Fraud Team performance 
against the Service Fraud Plan for 2014/15.  It also provides some information 
about the future work of the CAFT since benefit fraud work has transferred to 
the Department for Work & Pensions.  The Committee is asked to consider 
from a fraud risk perspective where in their opinion the priorities for team lie in 
both the short term and medium to longer term.  
 

FOR INFORMATION  

 

Section 2 – Report 
 
Of the thirteen objectives set in the Fraud Service Plan for 2014-15, one has 
exceeded expectation, one was partially achieved, two have been fully 
achieved, five are on target to be achieved, two have been discontinued and 
removed from the plan and two are behind target. 
 

Agenda Item 10
Pages 33 to 112

33



2.1 Objective - Achieve 16 Housing/Council Tax Benefit sanctions 
(work transfers to DWP on 01/10/14) 

  
Progress – Partially achieved 
The team achieved 12 sanctions up to and including the end of the 2nd 
quarter, which fell just short of the target of 16.  However, 7 sanctions 
were administered in the early part of October 2014 as ownership of 
these cases was retained by the authority as they did not meet the 
DWP case transfer criteria.   
 
Much of the 2nd quarter focus of the team was geared towards 
preparing to transfer the housing benefit fraud investigation work to the 
DWP Single Fraud Investigation Service (SFIS) on 1st October 2014.  
All live investigation work that met the transfer criteria transferred to the 
DWP which amounted to 35 live case files and 76 referrals that had not 
yet been processed.  The main tasks involved were:- 
  

• Identifying those employees deemed to be in scope to transfer 
to the DWP under a ‘TUPE like‘ arrangement and resolving the 
associated HR matters.  

• Live case file housekeeping and selecting the appropriate cases 
for transfer with officers. 

• Supporting Housing Benefit and the DWP SFIS in establishing a 
relationship moving forward so that housing benefit fraud 
investigation work continues in a seamless manner. 

• Communications internally and externally to inform that this work 
was no longer the responsibility of the authority.      

 
The work transfer deadline was achieved and 3 FTE employees also 
transferred with the work.  In conjunction with the SFIS transfer work, a 
decision was also made to consult on the restructure the team to reflect 
the loss of the benefit fraud work and to deliver efficiency savings.  See 
Appendix 1 for CAFT structure pre and post consultation which 
illustrates the post of Investigation Team Leader and Intelligence 
Officer have been deleted delivering a saving of £80,000.  At present 
there are two vacant Investigation Officer posts that will be recruited to 
in the coming months.                      
 

2.2 Objective - Identification of 15 housing tenancies subject to 
misuse and target for possession action 
 
Progress – behind target 
To date 3 tenancies have been brought back into Council control which 
is short of the target at the half way stage.  Expected positive outcomes 
are down against target, but not through any lack of investigation 
activity.   
 
Recent  cases investigated by the team has seen a recent backlog of 
cases where tenants are resisting the opportunity to terminate their 
tenancies during the course of an investigation and in some cases 
have led to the authority pursuing court action to recover the 
properties. This trend is reflected across the country at recent national 

34



forum covering other fraud types but focusing on tenancy fraud and 
has the following common characteristics as follows; 

 

• Individuals refuse to reveal any reasonable information concerning 
their use and occupation activities in the home when a significant 
amount of effort is made to contact tenants at different times of the 
day. 

 

• A failure to co-operate with enquiries when tenants have been 
asked to attend appointments and meetings and supply records 
concerning links to the property. 

 
Currently, there are 15 live housing investigations, 6 reports 
recommending possession action have been passed to Housing 
Management to consider the findings and as a result of these reports, 
Housing have instructed Legal Services to seek possession on 3 cases 
for various non occupation/subletting suspicions. 
 
A protocol between the CAFT and Housing Management has also 
been agreed which will go live on 1st December 2014.  This will provide 
a framework for information exchange, expected standards of 
performance on both services and a common goal, that of protecting 
the Council’s social housing scheme from misuse.     

 

2.3 Objective – To undertake a Housing Tenancy Datamatch 

  
Progress – On target  
The authority provided a snapshot of its live tenancy data to Experian 
earlier in the year and this data was matched against its credit bureau 
data in an attempt to identify individuals that could possibly be residing 
away from the tenancy address. 
 
In total the authority was provided with the following match types and 
numbers of matches. 
 

Risk profile Numbers of matches 

Very high 14 

High 177 

Medium 436 

Low 302 

Total 929 

 
Working in partnership with Housing Management, the team has 
undertaken a preliminary 1st phase sift on all ‘Very high’ and is on 
target to complete a sift of the ‘High’ matches by the end of November 
2014.  ‘Medium’ and ‘Low’ risk matches will be processed and 
complete by the end of January 2015.  
  
Those cases where evidence emerges that the match appears to show 
the tenant is not occupying the address as their principle home or that 
they are subletting, will become full blown criminal investigations and 
possession action will be sought. 

 

35



2.4 Objective – Harrow to join the Pan London Housing Fraud Hub in 
2014/15 
 
Progress – On target  
The London Housing Fraud Hub is a project involving a number of 
London Boroughs that input common housing register, housing 
tenancy and council tax support data on a monthly basis into a shared 
but secure data repository accessible only by members.   
 
The main objective of the hub is to support front line service delivery 
and to act as a filter at the gateway to prevent fraud entering the 
housing system so that individuals can be challenged about anomalies 
before a housing duty is accepted and costs are incurred. 
 
To date 14 London Boroughs have become members sharing their 
data, and another 4 including Harrow are due to join before the end of 
the financial year.  The hub is the first of its kind in the country where 
multiple authorities are sharing data proactively on a monthly basis to 
verify identity and other individual personal details that apply for 
housing services. 

 
2.5 Objective - A blue badge proactive fraud drive delivered in each  

quarter 
 
Progress – On target  
The team led ‘Operation Rio’ in June 2014 on Northolt Road, South 
Harrow in partnership with Parking Enforcement and The Metropolitan 
Police.  This resulted in 6 badges being confiscated and as a result of 
these incidents 4 individuals accepted cautions for the offence of 
misusing the badge and paid £200 towards the cost of the investigation 
and 1 individual is due to attend an appointment in the coming weeks. 
 
As in 2.1 above, given the work priority of preparing for the SFIS 
transfer of benefit fraud work, no blue badge operation was undertaken 
in quarter two.  There is an Operation planned for quarter three in 
December 2014 and it is envisaged that two further operations will be 
delivered in quarter four. 
 
The team will continue to risk assess all fraud referrals alleging blue 
badge misuse in accordance with its priorities so to ensure that 
resources are targeted at the right cases. 

 
2.6      Objective - Fraud risk audit of Direct Payment cases 

 
Progress – behind target 
This area of work is still deemed to be at risk to fraud given the work 
undertaken in 2013/14 where four fraud cases were uncovered 
amounting to misappropriation of £112,000 of council money.  
However, work stalled on this objective given the SFIS transfer work 
and the officer with responsibility for this objective transferred to the 
Department for Work & Pensions. 
 

36



The project has been transferred to another Investigation Officer on the 
team and they will continue with reviewing high value live cash 
personal budget cases to ensure that the basis upon which the budget 
was agreed has not changed and that the budget is being spent in 
accordance with the care plan.    

 
2.7 Objective - Fraud risk audit of Insurance cases 

 
Progress – discontinued and objective removed from the plan 
This objective has been removed from the CAFT Service Plan due to a 
lack of capacity on the team.  The officer with responsibility for this 
objective transferred to the Department for Work & Pensions and the 
post was deleted. 
  

2.8 Objective - Identify and pursue four cases suitable for Proceeds of 
Crime Act 2002 (POCA) action and recover £15,000 
 
Progress – discontinued and objective removed from the plan 
To date in 2014/15 no cases have been identified for POCA action.  
Given the fact that all other historical cases where POCA action has 
been undertaken by the team have been housing benefit fraud cases, it 
is doubtful whether this objective will be met given that this work is no 
longer undertaken by the team.   
 
Whilst this objective has been removed from the plan as it is unrealistic 
to recover £15,000 in 2014/15, the potential is always present to 
consider cases for POCA action if a fraud is uncovered and assets 
identified.         

 
2.9      Objective - National Fraud Initiative 2014/15 data submission  

 
Progress - Achieved 
The National Fraud Initiative(NFI)  is a 2 yearly nationwide public 
sector data matching exercise co-ordinated by the Audit Commission in 
which contributing organisations submit bulk data for services such as 
housing rents, council tax and support, housing benefits, direct 
payments, blue badges, payroll, creditors and insurance for fraud and 
error matching. 
 
All data sets required by the Audit Commission were extracted from 
legacy systems and uploaded to the secure website by the October 
2014 deadline in preparation for the matching exercise to begin.  The 
matched records will be returned to the authority for sifting in January 
2015. 
 
The team will continue to support the various services in processing 
the matches and any cases deemed to be fraud related will be picked 
up as reactive referrals by the team.    

 
 
 

37



2.10    Objective - The identification of £20,000 income via administrative 
penalties, corporate fraud work and Housing Benefit overpayment 
recovery work. 
 
Progress – exceeded  
Income generated to date amounted to just in excess of £36,000 made 
up of a combination of monies recovered through housing benefit 
administrative penalties and contributions towards investigation costs 
paid by individuals cautioned for blue badge misuse.  

 
2.11 Objective – Deliver Anti-Fraud Week campaign 

 
Progress – On target 
Building on the success of the Councils 1st anti-fraud week in February 
2014, a further campaign is planned to take place in February 2015 
which will see a real push to raise awareness of fraud and the impact 
upon all council services.    

 
2.12 Objective - Pilot Identity Authentication Solutions software in 

Housing Services 
 

Outcome – Achieved 
The team organised for Housing Services to trial a piece of Identity 
Documentation Verification software for a 3 month period between 
June – August 2014 whereby individuals applying to the authority for 
assistance with housing, had their ID documents scanned using the 
smart software.  The trial was not publicised and it ran discretely 
alongside normal housing services.     
 
In total, 235 scans were taken of a variety of identity documents and 
they verified as authentic.  No documents were found to be fraudulent 
or compromised which provides the authority with some level of 
assurance that it is not being targeted by identity fraudsters. 
 
No decision has been made as to whether the software will be installed 
on a permanent basis in housing or other front facing services as it 
would need to be funded. 
 

2.13 Objective - Fraud risk review of housing waiting list 
 

Outcome – On target 
A proactive fraud risk review is currently being undertaken on all 
individuals/families registered on band A and A* on the Council’s 
waiting list to verify that the circumstances upon which the banding was 
set, is still the case.  In addition to this piece of proactive work, 
verification is also being undertaken on all applications that are set to 
‘live’ on the waiting list. 
 
The progress to date is as follows:- 
 
Proactive referrals from waiting list A & A* 

 

RAG rating Numbers 

38



 

Green (OK) 
 

47 

Amber (further checks 
required) 
 

7 

Red (investigation 
underway) 
 

7 

Recommended removal 
from register 
(housekeeping)  
 

7* 

Recommended removal 
from register (fraud)  
 

5** 

Sanctions 
(caution/prosecution) 
 

0 

 
*  Housing Needs agreed with the recommendations and removed 7 applications from the waiting list or 

reduced banding 

** Housing Needs agreed with the recommendations and removed 5 applications from the waiting list or 

reduced banding and all cases now subject to fraud investigation   
 

   Reactive referrals from housing needs 
 

RAG rating 
 

Numbers 

Green (OK) 
 

9 

Amber (further checks 
required) 
 

3 

Red (investigation 
underway) 
 

1 

To be looked at 
 

2 

Recommended removal 
from register 
(housekeeping) 
 

0 

Recommended removal 
from register (fraud) 
 

0 

Sanctions 
(caution/prosecution) 
 

0 

     
A progress meeting with Housing Needs is scheduled to take place shortly to 
measure the effectiveness of this piece of work and whether there is merit in 
continuing a review on the other bands of B and C 

39



 
2.14 Future work of the Corporate Anti-Fraud Team 
 
On 1st October 2014 all housing benefit fraud work transferred to the 
Department for Work & Pensions, Single Fraud Investigation Service.   As 
stated in 2.1 above, 3 FTE employees also transferred with the work and the 
CAFT was restructured to reflect the loss of this work.  The current 
establishment is shown in Appendix 1.   
 
This change has triggered a shift in the type and composition of work the 
team picks up moving forward.  Historically, the team received the vast 
majority of its work through reactive housing benefit referrals combined with 
proactive corporate fraud work involving housing, blue badges, social care, 
insurance, grants and internal matters.  Moving forward, the team will now 
need to be far more proactive in its approach to countering fraud as the 
reactive referral numbers will not be sufficient.      
 
This changing landscape of counter fraud work is the challenge now facing 
the authority and the committee is asked for its views on where the team 
should be focussing its energy and resources both now and in the future. 
 
2.15 CIPFA Code of Practice on Managing the Risk of Fraud and 

Corruption (Appendix 2) 
 
CIPFA’s recently issued code of practice will support organisations seeking to 
ensure they have the right governance and operational arrangements in place 
to counter fraud and corruption.  It is a voluntary code that has 5 principles:- 
 

• Acknowledge responsibility 

• Identify risks 

• Develop a strategy 

• Provide resources 

• Take action 

The code builds on CIPFA's previous guidance the Red Book (Managing the 
Risk of Fraud, Actions to Counter Fraud and Corruption).  It is shorter and 
clearly sets out the importance of top level support from the governing body 
and leadership team of the organisation wishing to utilise the code as a 
measurement of its governance arrangements. 

It is envisaged that this code will form the framework of both Internal Audit 
and External Audit assessment of counter fraud arrangements within Local 
Government.  The Committee is therefore asked for its views on the Code and 
whether it is recommended that the Code is adopted by the authority as a tool 
by which it can provide assurance on countering fraud and corruption to 
Senior Management, Elected Members and the Public. 

2.16 Protecting the Public Purse Report 2014 – Audit Commission 
(Appendix 3) 

The Committee is asked to note this report for information only. 

40



 

Section 3 – Further Information 
 
None 
 

Section 4 – Financial Implications 

 
The financial implications have been shown where relevant, in the report. 
 

Section 5 - Equalities implications 
 
None 
 

Section 6 – Corporate Priorities  
 
The performance and outcomes of the Corporate Anti-Fraud Team 
contributes to all of the corporate priorities by detecting, investigating and 
pursuing matters of fraud and losses associated with fraud affecting council 
business   
 

 
 

   
 

Name: Simon George X  Chief Financial Officer 

  
Date: 17/11/14 

   

 

Section 7 - Contact Details and Background 

Papers 
 

Contact:  Justin Phillips, Corporate Anti-Fraud Manager  
 
 

Background Papers:  None 

41



 

Appendix 1 
 
 
CAFT Structure Pre SFIS Consultation 
 
 

                      
 
                            
 
 
 
 
 
 

CAFT Structure Post SFIS Consultation 
 

 
 
 
Posts 2 & 3 are subject to continued non general funding via the Housing Revenue 
Account and may reduce to 1 FTE for 15/16. 
 

1.  Corporate Anti-
Fraud Service 

Manager 

2.  Investigation 
Officer (Housing) 

Fixed term contract 

3.  Investigation 
Officer (Housing) 

Fixed term contract 

4.  Corporate 
Investigation 

Officer  

5.  Corporate 
Investigation 

Officer  

6.  Corporate 
Investigation 

Officer  

Corporate Anti-Fraud 
Service Manager  

 

Investigation Team 
Leader  

 

Investigation Officer 
(Housing) Fixed 

term contract  

Investigation Officer 
(Housing) Fixed 

term contract 

Investigation Officer Investigation Officer Investigation Officer 

Intelligence Officer  

42



 

 

 

 

CIPFA Code of Practice on Managing the Risk of Fraud and 

Corruption 

 

 

Code of Practice Principles 

 

Leaders of public sector organisations have a responsibility to embed 

effective standards for countering fraud and corruption in their 

organisations in order to support good governance and demonstrate 

effective financial stewardship and strong public financial management. 

The five key elements of the code are to: 

· Acknowledge the responsibility of the governing body for countering 

fraud and corruption; 

· Identify the fraud and corruption risks; 

· Develop an appropriate counter fraud and corruption strategy; 

· Provide resources to implement the strategy;  

· Take action in response to fraud and corruption. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

© CIPFA  
  

43



 

 
© CIPFA  

 

Acknowledge Responsibility 

The governing body should acknowledge its responsibility for ensuring that the 

risks associated with fraud and corruption are managed effectively across all parts 

of the organisation. 

Specific steps should include: 

· The organisation’s leaders acknowledge the threats of fraud and 

corruption, the harm they can cause and the potential for savings from 

managing the risk; 

· The organisation’s leaders acknowledge the importance of a culture that is 

resilient to the threats of fraud and corruption and aligns to the standards 

of good governance; 

· The governing body acknowledges its responsibility for managing its fraud 

and corruption risks and will be accountable for the actions it takes 

through its governance reports; 

· The governing body sets a specific goal of improving its resilience to fraud 

and corruption. 

 

Identify Risks 

Fraud risk identification is essential to understand specific exposures to risk, 

changing patterns in fraud and corruption threats and the potential consequences 

to the organisation and its service users. 

Specific steps should include: 

· Fraud risks are routinely considered as part of the organisation’s strategic 

risk management arrangements; 

· The organisation identifies the risks of corruption in its governance 

framework; 

· The organisation uses estimates of fraud loss, and where appropriate 

measurement exercises, to quantify the harm that different fraud risks 

cause. 

 

Develop a Strategy 

An organisation needs a counter fraud strategy setting out its approach to 

managing its risks and defining responsibilities for action. 

Specific steps should include: 

· The governing body formally adopts a counter fraud and corruption 

strategy to address the identified risks and align with the organisation’s 

acknowledged responsibilities and goals; 

· The strategy includes consideration of all the pro-active and reactive 

components of a good practice response to fraud risk management: 

o Pro-active  

§ Developing a counter-fraud culture to increase resilience to 

fraud; 

§ Deterring fraud attempts by publicising the actions the 

organisation takes against fraudsters; 

44



 

 
© CIPFA  

 

§ Preventing fraud through the implementation of appropriate 

and robust internal controls and cyber security measures. 

o Reactive 

§ Detecting fraud through data and intelligence analysis; 

§ Implementing effective whistleblowing arrangements; 

§ Investigating fraud referrals; 

§ Applying sanctions, both civil and criminal; 

§ Seeking redress, including the recovery of assets and 

money. 

· The strategy includes clear identification of responsibility and 

accountability for delivery of the strategy and for providing oversight. 

 

Provide Resources 

The organisation should make arrangements for appropriate resources to support 

the counter fraud strategy.  

Specific steps should include: 

· An annual assessment of whether the level of resource invested to counter 

fraud and corruption is proportionate for the level of risk; 

· The organisation utilises counter fraud staff with appropriate skills and 

professional accreditation; 

· The organisation grants counter fraud staff unhindered access to its 

employees, information and other resources as required; 

· The organisation has protocols in place to facilitate data and intelligence 

sharing to support counter fraud activity. 

 

Take Action  

The organisation should put in place the policies and procedures to support the 

counter fraud and corruption strategy and take action to prevent, detect and 

investigate fraud. 

Specific steps should include: 

· The organisation has put in place a policy framework which supports the 

implementation of the counter fraud strategy. As a minimum the 

framework includes: 

o Counter fraud policy,  

o Whistleblowing policy,  

o Anti-money laundering policy,  

o Anti-bribery policy,  

o Anti-corruption policy 

o Gifts and hospitality policy and register,  

o Pecuniary interest policy and register, 

o Codes of conduct and ethics, 

o Cyber security policy. 

· Plans and operations are aligned to the strategy and contribute to the 

achievement of the organisation’s overall goal of improving resilience to 

fraud and corruption;  

45



 

 
© CIPFA  

 

· There is a report to the governing body at least annually on performance 

against the counter fraud strategy from the lead person(s) designated in 

the strategy. Conclusions are featured in the annual governance report; 

· The governing body receives a report at least annually on the impact and 

cost effectiveness of its counter fraud activities. 

 

Applying the Code in Practice 

 

Where organisations are making a statement in an annual governance report 

about their adherence to this code, one of the following statements should be 

approved by the governing body and signed by the person responsible for signing 

the annual governance report.1 

 

Statement 1 

 

Having considered all the principles, I am satisfied that the organisation 

has adopted a response that is appropriate for its fraud and corruption 

risks and commits to maintain its vigilance to tackle fraud. 

 

Statement 2 

 

Having considered all the principles, I am satisfied that, subject to the 

actions identified below, the organisation has adopted a response that is 

appropriate for its fraud and corruption risks and commits to maintain its 

vigilance to tackle fraud. 

  

Actions to be taken to manage the risk of fraud: 

 

Action: 

 

Responsibility: Target Date: 

 

 

  

                                                 
1 Further guidance on the implementation of the code and an assessment tool to 

support evaluation will be made available by CIPFA. 

46



 

 
© CIPFA  

 

Glossary 

As the code can apply to a wide range of organisations generic terms are used to 

describe governance and leadership responsibilities. 

 

Governing Body: 

The person(s) or group with primary responsibility for overseeing the strategic 

direction, operations and accountability of the organisation. Examples include, the 

Board, Council. 

 

The organisation’s leaders: 

The organisation’s leaders will be members of the governing body or the 

organisation’s executive management team. Examples include, Cabinet Members, 

Chair of Board, Accounting Officer, Chief Executive, Executive Directors, Vice-

Chancellor, Principal, Head Teacher. 

 

 
 

 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
Copyright 

 

The copyright of this document is owned by CIPFA.  This document may be 

reproduced for the purpose of assisting the consultation process only. No part of 

this document can be reproduced in other ways without the express consent of 

CIPFA.  

47



48

This page is intentionally left blank



Fighting fraud in local government

October 2014

Protecting the 

public purse

2014

49



 

 

The Audit Commission’s role is to protect the public 

purse.

We do this by appointing auditors to a range of local 

public bodies in England. We set the standards we 

expect auditors to meet and oversee their work. Our aim 

is to secure high-quality audits at the best price 

possible. 

We use information from auditors and published data to 

provide authoritative, evidence-based analysis. This 

helps local public services to learn from one another and 

manage the financial challenges they face.

We also compare data across the public sector to 

identify where services could be open to abuse and help 

organisations fight fraud.

 

 

50



 

 

Audit Commission !"#$%&$'() $*% +,-.'& +,"/% 0123 1 
 

4#($%($/ 

Summary and recommendations ....................................................................2 

5%&#66%(78$'#(/ 999999999999999999999999999999999999999999999999999999999999999999999999999999999999999 : 

Chapter 1: Introduction ....................................................................................8 

;*% &*8()'() &#,($%"<="8,7 .8(7/&8+% 99999999999999999999999999999999999999999999999999999999 > 

;*% 68'( '//,%/ &#,(&'./ =8&% '( $8&?.'() ="8,7 99999999999999999999999999999999999999999 21 

Chapter 2: The latest figures on detected fraud in councils .......................12 

@%(%='$ ="8,7 9999999999999999999999999999999999999999999999999999999999999999999999999999999999999999999999 2: 

A#(<-%(%='$ ="8,7 999999999999999999999999999999999999999999999999999999999999999999999999999999999999999 2B 

C#,/'() $%(8(&D ="8,7 9999999999999999999999999999999999999999999999999999999999999999999999999999999 2> 

E")8('/%7 8(7 #++#"$,('/$'& ="8,7 9999999999999999999999999999999999999999999999999999999999999 01 

F8'.'() $# 7%$%&$ ="8,7 99999999999999999999999999999999999999999999999999999999999999999999999999999999 02 

Chapter 3: Longer term trends in frauds detected by councils ..................22 

;*% /*'=$ '( =#&,/ ="#6 -%(%='$ ="8,7 $# (#(<-%(%='$ ="8,7 999999999999999999999999999 00 

G($%"(8. ="8,7 999999999999999999999999999999999999999999999999999999999999999999999999999999999999999999999 0B 

F"8,7 '( 68'($8'(%7 /&*##./ 9999999999999999999999999999999999999999999999999999999999999999999999 0H 

4#,(&'./I "%/+#(/% $# (8$'#(8. +#.'&'%/ 999999999999999999999999999999999999999999999999999999 0> 

C#,/'() $%(8(&D ="8,7 9999999999999999999999999999999999999999999999999999999999999999999999999999999 J1 

Chapter 4: Effective stewardship of public funds ........................................34 

!"%K%($'#( 8(7 7%$%""%(&% 999999999999999999999999999999999999999999999999999999999999999999999999 J3 

G(K%/$')8$'#( 8(7 7%$%&$'#( 999999999999999999999999999999999999999999999999999999999999999999999999 JB 

L8(&$'#( 8(7 "%7"%// M"%&#K%"D #= .#//%/N 9999999999999999999999999999999999999999999999999 31 

4G!FO 4#7% #= !"8&$'&% #( P8(8)'() $*% 5'/? #= F"8,7 8(7 
4#"",+$'#( 99999999999999999999999999999999999999999999999999999999999999999999999999999999999999999999999999 30 

F"8,7 -"'%='()/ 999999999999999999999999999999999999999999999999999999999999999999999999999999999999999999 3Q 

4G!FO 4%($"% =#" 4#,($%" F"8,7 999999999999999999999999999999999999999999999999999999999999999 3Q 

Appendix 1: Data tables of detected frauds and losses by region .............47 

Appendix 2: Checklist for councillors and others responsible for 
governance .....................................................................................................48 

Appendix 3: Case studies: targeting fraudsters, financial recovery (in 
particular use of POCA) .................................................................................53 

References ......................................................................................................61 

51



 

 

Audit Commission !"#$%&$'() $*% +,-.'& +,"/% 0123 2 
 

4,556"7 6(8 "%&#55%(86$'#(/ 

This is the last report in the Protecting the public purse (PPP) series 

from the Audit Commission before we close in March 2015. It draws on 

the learning from the Commission’s 25-year experience in counter-

fraud in local government. 

9 :*% ;#55'//'#( +,-.'/*%8 PPP "%+#"$/ <"#5 2==2 $# 0111 6(8 6)6'( 

<"#5 011= $# 0123> PPP "%+#"$/ *6?%@ 

 "6'/%8 6A6"%(%// #< $*% '5+#"$6(&% #< <')*$'() <"6,8B 

 +"#5#$%8 $"6(/+6"%(&7 6(8 6&&#,($6-'.'$7 6-#,$ &#,($%"C<"6,8 '( 
.#&6. )#?%"(5%($ -#8'%/B 

 '5+"#?%8 86$6 #( <"6,8 8%$%&$'#(D '(&.,8'() -%(&*56"E'()B 6(8 

 +"#5#$%8 )##8 +"6&$'&% '( <')*$'() <"6,8> 

The scale of fraud against local government is large, but difficult to 

quantify with precision. 

9 F( 012GD $*% H6$'#(6. I"6,8 J,$*#"'$7 %/$'56$%8 $*6$ <"6,8 &#/$ .#&6. 

)#?%"(5%($ K0>2 -'..'#(D -,$ $*'/ '/ +"#-6-.7 6( ,(8%"%/$'56$%> 

9 L6&* +#,(8 .#/$ $# <"6,8 "%8,&%/ $*% 6-'.'$7 #< .#&6. 6,$*#"'$'%/ $# +"#?'8% 

+,-.'& /%"?'&%/> 

9 :*% 5#"% &#,(&'./ .##E <#" <"6,8D 6(8 <#..#A )##8 +"6&$'&%D $*% 5#"% $*%7 

A'.. <'(8> F(&"%6/'() .%?%./ #< 8%$%&$'#( 567 -% 6 +#/'$'?% /')( $*6$ 

&#,(&'./ $6E% <"6,8 /%"'#,/.7 "6$*%" $*6( 6 /')( #< A%6E%('() #< &#($"#./> 

In total, local government bodies detected fewer cases of fraud in 

2013/14 compared with the previous year, continuing the decline noted 

in PPP 2013. However, their value increased by 6 per cent.

9 :*% (,5-%" #< 8%$%&$%8 &6/%/ <%.. -7 G +%" &%($ $# M,/$ #?%" 213D111D 

A*'.% $*%'" ?6.,% '(&"%6/%8 -7 N +%" &%($ $# #?%" K2OO 5'..'#(> 

9 :*% (,5-%" #< 8%$%&$%8 &6/%/ #< housing benefit and council tax 

benefit fraud <%.. -7 2 +%" &%($ $# (%6".7 3PD111D A*'.% $*%'" ?6.,% "#/% 

-7 P +%" &%($ $# (%6".7 K20= 5'..'#(> 

9 :*% (,5-%" #< 8%$%&$%8 &6/%/ #< non-benefit <"6,8 <%.. -7 3 +%" &%($ $# 

M,/$ #?%" QPD311D A*'.% $*%'" ?6.,% "#/% -7 0 +%" &%($ $# KQ= 5'..'#(> 

52



 

 

Audit Commission !"#$%&$'() $*% +,-.'& +,"/% 0123 3 
 

In the past 5 years, councils have shifted their focus from benefit fraud 

to non-benefit fraud. From 2016, they will no longer deal with benefit 

fraud.  

4 5%$6%%( 2772 8(9 0111: (%8".; 8.. <"8,9 9%$%&$%9 -; &#,(&'./ 68/ <#" 

*#,/'() -%(%<'$ 8(9 .8$%" &#,(&'. $8= -%(%<'$> ?,"'() $*'/ $'@%: &#,(&'./ 

*89 <'(8(&'8. '(&%($'A%/ $# .##B <#" $*#/% <"8,9/> 

4 C*%/% '(&%($'A%/ %(9%9 '( 011D: 8(9 &#,(&'./ *8A% '(&"%8/'().; <#&,/%9 

#( (#(E-%(%<'$ <"8,9 '( $*% +8/$ <'A% ;%8"/> 5%(%<'$ <"8,9/ /$'.. &#@+"'/% 

3F +%" &%($ #< 8.. &8/%/ #< 9%$%&$%9 <"8,9: 8(9 D7 +%" &%($ #< $*%'" A8.,%> 

4 5; 012D: 8.. -%(%<'$ <"8,9 '(A%/$')8$'#( 6'.. *8A% $"8(/<%""%9 <"#@ &#,(&'./ 

$# $*% G'().% H"8,9 I(A%/$')8$'#( G%"A'&% JGHIGK: ",( -; $*% ?%+8"$@%($ 

<#" L#"B 8(9 !%(/'#(/> C*% )#A%"(@%($M/ <,(9'() #< N2D @'..'#( <"#@ 

0123: 868"9%9 ,(9%" &#@+%$'$'A% -'99'(): $# *%.+ &#,(&'./ "%<#&,/ $*%'" 

%<<#"$/ #( (#(E-%(%<'$ <"8,9 9,"'() $*% $"8(/'$'#( 6'.. %(9 8$ $*% /8@% 

$'@%> 

Councils will need to focus on the non-benefit frauds that present the 

highest risk of losses, including those that arise from the unintended 

consequences of national policies.

4 5%$6%%( 0117O21 8(9 012PO23: &#,(&'./ &#(/'/$%($.; 9%$%&$%9 @#"% 

council tax discount fraud $*8( 8(; #$*%" $;+% #< (#(E-%(%<'$ <"8,9> I( 

$*% @#/$ "%&%($ ;%8": (%8".; F1:111 &8/%/ 6%"% <#,(9: 6#"$* N2D>7 

@'..'#(> 

4 ?%$%&$%9 Right to Buy <"8,9 &8/%/ *8A% '(&"%8/%9 (%8".; <'A%E<#.9 /'(&% 

0117O21 $# 27P +%" ;%8"> I( 012PO23 $*%/% 6%"% 6#"$* N20>P @'..'#(> C*% 

"'/% '( $*% (,@-%" #< $*%/% <"8,9/ <#..#6%9 .8")% '(&"%8/%/ '( $*% 

9'/&#,($ $*"%/*#.9 #A%" $*'/ +%"'#9> 

4 C*% (,@-%" #< 9%$%&$%9 &8/%/ #< social care <"8,9 *8/ @#"% $*8( 

$"%-.%9 /'(&% 0117O21 $# 3PQ> I( 012PO23: $*%; 6%"% 6#"$* ND>0 @'..'#(> 

4 ?%$%&$%9 &8/%/ #< insurance <"8,9 "#/% <"#@ R0 '( 0117O21 $# 00D '( 

012PO23 8(9 6%"% 6#"$* N3>Q @'..'#(> 

Overall, councils are detecting more non-benefit frauds, but detection 

rates for some types of frauds have fallen. 

4 I( 0121O22: &#,(&'./ 9%$%&$%9 P27 &8/%/ #< business rates <"8,9 6#"$* 

NF>R @'..'#(> I( 012PO23: $*%; 9%$%&$%9 Q3 &8/%/ 6#"$* N2>0 @'..'#(> 

4 I( 0121O22: &#,(&'./ 9%$%&$%9 23F &8/%/ #< procurement <"8,9 6#"$* 

(%8".; N23>D @'..'#(> I( 012PO23: $*%; 9%$%&$%9 20R &8/%/ 6#"$* .%// $*8( 

N3>F @'..'#(> 

  

53



 

 

Audit Commission !"#$%&$'() $*% +,-.'& +,"/% 0123 4 
 

4 5 /67.. 6'(#"'$8 #9 :; &#,(&'./ failed to detect any non-benefit frauds 

'( 012:<23= >*'/ (,6-%" '/ ?#@( -8 6#"% $*7( *7.9 /'(&% 0120<2:A @*'&* 

'/ %(&#,"7)'()= B," %C+%"'%(&% /,))%/$/ '$ '/ %C$"%6%.8 ,(.'D%.8 $*7$ (# 

(#(E-%(%9'$ 9"7,? #&&,""%? 7$ $*%/% &#,(&'./= 

4 F#,(&'./ -%.'%G% $*7$ #")7('/%? &"'6'(7./ +"%/%($ 7 .#@ "'/D #9 9"7,?A -,$ 

$*%"% '/ &#(&%"( $*7$ #")7('/%? &"'6% '/ 6#"% +"%G7.%($ '( +"#&,"%6%($ 

9"7,?= 

Councils are detecting more housing tenancy fraud

4 >*% (,6-%" #9 /#&'7. *#6%/ "%&#G%"%? 9"#6 $%(7(&8 9"7,?/$%"/ 

'(&"%7/%? -8 2H +%" &%($ '( $*% .7/$ 8%7" $# :A1:1= 

4 I( 012:<23A &#,(&'./ #,$/'?% J#(?#( "%&#G%"%? 6#"% $*7( $@# '( 9'G% K31 

+%" &%($L #9 $*%/% *#6%/= >*'/ "%+"%/%($/ 7 67"D%? '6+"#G%6%($ '( $*%'" 

+%"9#"67(&%= I( 011;A @*%( $*% 5,?'$ F#66'//'#(M/ PPP "%+#"$/ 9'"/$ 

*')*.')*$%? $*'/ '//,%A &#,(&'./ #,$/'?% J#(?#( 7&&#,($%? 9#" .%// $*7( H 

+%" &%($ #9 7.. /#&'7. *#6%/ "%&#G%"%?= 

4 >*%/% 9'),"%/ ?# (#$ '(&.,?% 9"7,? 7)7'(/$ *#,/'() 7//#&'7$'#(/A @*'&* 

+"#G'?% $*% 67N#"'$8 #9 /#&'7. *#6%/= 

. . . and more fraud in schools.

4 O%$%&$%? &7/%/ #9 9"7,? '( 67'($7'(%? /&*##./ *7G% "'/%( -8 P +%" &%($ 

$# 01PA @#"$* Q0=: 6'..'#(= R% *7G% (# ?7$7 #( 9"7,? '( (#(E67'($7'(%? 

/&*##./= 

4 S#/$ #9 $*%/% 9"7,?/ @%"% &#66'$$%? -8 /$799A /,))%/$'() $*7$ /#6% 

/&*##./ 678 *7G% @%7D )#G%"(7(&% 7""7()%6%($/ $*7$ 6%7( $*%8 7"% 

6#"% G,.(%"7-.% $# 9"7,?= 

Local government bodies have a duty to protect the public purse. A 

corporate approach to tackling fraud helps them to be effective 

stewards of scarce public resources and involves a number of core 

components.

4 Prevention and deterrenceT '$ '/ (#$ &,""%($.8 +#//'-.% $# U,7($'98 

7&&,"7$%.8 $*% 9'(7(&'7. -%(%9'$ 9"#6 ?%$%""'() 9"7,?A -,$ +"#9%//'#(7./ '( 

$*% 9'%.? -%.'%G% $*% +"#/+%&$ #9 ?%$%&$'#( '/ $*% 6#/$ +#@%"9,. ?%$%""%($= 

F#,(&'./ /*#,.? @'?%.8 +,-.'&'/% @*7$ 9"7,? '/A $*% .'D%.'*##? #9 ?%$%&$'#(A 

7(? $*% +%(7.$'%/ 9"7,?/$%"/ 97&%= 

4 Investigation and detectionT -%$@%%( 011;<21 7(? 012:<23A $*% 6%7( 

7G%"7)% (,6-%" #9 9,.. $'6% %U,'G7.%($ KV>WL 9"7,? '(G%/$')7$#"/ 

%6+.#8%? -8 &#,(&'./ ?%&.'(%? /$%7?'.8 9"#6 H=0 $# 3=XA 7 97.. #9 21 +%" 

&%($ #G%" $*% +%"'#?= B," 7(7.8/'/ /,))%/$/ $*7$ 7 97.. '( V>W (,6-%"/ '/ 

7//#&'7$%? @'$* .#@%" 9"7,? ?%$%&$'#( .%G%./ K/%% F*7+$%" 3L= 

  

54



 

 

Audit Commission !"#$%&$'() $*% +,-.'& +,"/% 0123 5 
 

 

4 Recovery and redress5 67$%" 01289 :*%( &%($"6. )#;%"(<%($ (# .#()%" 

&#($"'-,$%/ 7,(=/ 7#" &#,($%">7"6,= 6&$';'$?9 &#,(&'./ :'.. (%%= $# "%&#;%" 

<#"% .#//%/ $*6( $*%? *6;% '( $*% +6/$@ A*%? &6( ,/% .%)'/.6$'#( /,&* 6/ 

$*% !"#&%%=/ #7 B"'<% C&$ $# =# /#@ 

4 Openness and transparency5 &#,(&'./ /*#,.= .##D 7#" 7"6,= 6(= "%&#"= 

*#: <6(? 7"6,=/ $*%? =%$%&$@ E#'() /# :#,.= /*#: .%6=%"/*'+9 6..#: 

$*%< $# &#<+6"% $*%'" +%"7#"<6(&% :'$* #$*%" #")6('/6$'#(/9 6(= 6.%"$ 

$*%< $# %<%")'() 7"6,= "'/D/ <#"% %77%&$';%.?@ 

4 F( 012G9 #(.? $*"%% '( 7';% H80 +%" &%($I &#,(&'./ $##D ,+ $*% #77%" #7 

"%&%';'() #(% #7 $*% B#<<'//'#(J/ (%: fraud briefings9 :*'&* &#($6'( 

&#<+6"6$';% '(7#"<6$'#( #( $*%'" =%$%&$'#( .%;%./@ 

From April 2015, the Commission’s counter-fraud activities will transfer 

to new organisations.

4 K*%( $*% B#<<'//'#( &.#/%/9 $*% L6$'#(6. M"6,= F('$'6$';%J/ HLMFI =6$6 

<6$&*'() /%";'&% :'.. $"6(/7%" $# $*% B6-'(%$ N77'&%@ 

4 A*% "%<6'(=%" #7 #," &#,($%">7"6,= /$677 6(= 7,(&$'#(/9 '(&.,='() $*% 

PPP /%"'%/ 6(= 7"6,= -"'%7'()/9 :'.. $"6(/7%" $# $*% B#,($%" M"6,= B%($"%9 

",( -? $*% B*6"$%"%= F(/$'$,$% #7 !,-.'& M'(6(&% 6(= C&&#,($6(&? 

HBF!MCI@ 

 

55



 

 

Audit Commission !"#$%&$'() $*% +,-.'& +,"/% 0123 6 
 

Recommendations

All local government bodies should:

45 ,/% #," &*%&6.'/$ 7#" &#,(&'..#"/ 4(8 #$*%"/ "%/+#(/'-.% 7#" 4,8'$ 4(8 

)#9%"(4(&% :;++%(8'< 05 $# "%9'%= $*%'" &#,($%">7"4,8 4""4()%?%($/ 

:!4"4@ 2015A 

-5 48#+$ 4 &#"+#"4$% 4++"#4&* $# 7')*$'() 7"4,8B $# %(/,"% $*%C 7,.7'. $*%'" 

/$%=4"8/*'+ "#.% 4(8 +"#$%&$ $*% +,-.'& +,"/% 7"#? 7"4,8 :!4"4@ DE5A 

&5 4&$'9%.C +,"/,% +#$%($'4. 7"4,8/ '8%($'7'%8 $*"#,)* $*%'" +4"$'&'+4$'#( '( 

$*% F4$'#(4. G"4,8 H('$'4$'9% :FGH5 :!4"4@ I5A 

85 4//%// $*%?/%.9%/ 4)4'(/$ $*% 7"4?%=#"6 '( JH!G;K/ (%= J#8% #7 

!"4&$'&% #( L4(4)'() $*% M'/6 #7 G"4,8 4(8 J#"",+$'#( :!4"4@ 22N5A 

4(8 

%5 %()4)% 7,..C ='$* $*% (%= JH!G; J#,($%" G"4,8 J%($"% :!4"4@ 2O05@ 

Councils in particular should:

75 +"#$%&$ 4(8 %(*4(&% $*%'" '(9%/$')4$'9% "%/#,"&%/B /# $*4$ $*%C 

?4'($4'( #" '?+"#9% $*%'" &4+4&'$C $# 8%$%&$ 7"4,8 :!4"4@ 2115A 

)5 -% 4.%"$ $# $*% "'/6 #7 #")4('/%8 &"'?%B (#$4-.C '( +"#&,"%?%($ :!4"4@ 

O25A 

*5 -% 4.%"$ $# $*% "'/6/ #7 7"4,8B +4"$'&,.4".C '( )"#='() "'/6 4"%4/ /,&* 4/ 

M')*$ $# P,C :!4"4@ N25 4(8 /#&'4. &4"% :!4"4@ N35A 

'5 4++.C $*% .%//#(/ 7"#? $*% 4++"#4&* %(&#,"4)%8 -C PPP $# $4&6.% 

*#,/'() $%(4(&C 7"4,8B $# #$*%" $C+%/ #7 7"4,8 :!4"4@ ND5A 

Q5 7#&,/ #( +"%9%($'#( 4(8 8%$%""%(&% 4/ 4 &#/$>%77%&$'9% ?%4(/ #7 

"%8,&'() 7"4,8 .#//%/ $# +"#$%&$ +,-.'& "%/#,"&%/ :!4"4@ E15A 

65 7#&,/ ?#"% #( "%&#9%"'() .#//%/ 7"#? 7"4,8B ,/'() .%)'/.4$'#( /,&* 4/ 

$*% !"#&%%8/ #7 J"'?% ;&$ :!4"4@2235A 4(8 

.5 $46% ,+ $*% J#??'//'#(K/ #77%" #7 "%&%'9'() 4 7"4,8 -"'%7'() $# *%.+ 

$*%? -%(&*?4"6 $*%'" +%"7#"?4(&% 4(8 +"#?#$% )"%4$%" $"4(/+4"%(&C 

4(8 4&&#,($4-'.'$C :!4"4@ 20R5@ 

 

56



 

 

Audit Commission !"#$%&$'() $*% +,-.'& +,"/% 0123 7 
 

The government should consider: 

45 46(76$'() .#&6. )#8%"(4%($ -#7'%/ $# &#4+.%$% $*% 6((,6. /,"8%9 #: 

7%$%&$%7 :"6,7 6(7 &#"",+$'#(; $# %(/,"% '$ "%46'(/ 6 &#4+"%*%(/'8% 

6(7 "#-,/$ /#,"&% #: 76$6 #( :"6,7 '( $*% .#&6. +,-.'& /%&$#" <!6"6= 

20>5? 

(5 %@$%(7'() $*% "%A,'"%4%($ $# "%+#"$ '(:#"46$'#( #( 7%$%&$%7 &6/%/ #: 

:"6,7 $# 6&67%4'%/ 6(7 :"%% /&*##./ <!6"6= 3B5? 

#5 &#44'//'#('() "%/%6"&* '($# $*% %@$%($ #: $*% 6((,6. .#// $# .#&6. 

6,$*#"'$9 :"6,7 6(7 $*% &#/$/ 6(7 -%(%:'$/ #: :"6,7 +"%8%($'#( 

6&$'8'$'%/ <!6"6= BC5?  

+5 %(&#,"6)'() DE!FG $# ,/% $*% 7%$%&$%7 :"6,7 6(7 &#"",+$'#( /,"8%9 

'( $*% :,$,"% $# '(8%/$')6$% $*% %@$%($ $# H*'&* :"6,7/$%"/ ,/% 7')'$6. 

6(7 #(I.'(% $%&*(#.#)9 $# 7%:"6,7 .#&6. )#8%"(4%($ <!6"6= B>5? 

A5 %@$%(7'() +#H%"/ :#" &#,(&'./ $# '(8%/$')6$% 6.. :"6,7/; $# +"#$%&$ $*% 

+,-.'& +,"/% <!6"6= J25? 6(7 

"5 H#"K'() H'$* &#,(&'./ $# 6($'&'+6$% 6(7 4'$')6$% 6(9 ,('($%(7%7 "'/K/ 

#: :"6,7 &"%6$%7 -9 (%H +#.'&'%/ <!6"6= 305= 

57



 

 

Audit Commission !"#$%&$'() $*% +,-.'& +,"/% 0123 8 
 

4*5+$%" 26 7($"#8,&$'#( 

This is the last report in the Protecting the public purse

(PPP) series from the Audit Commission before it closes at 

the end of March 2015. 

1 9*% :'"/$ /%"'%/ #: PPP "%+#"$/ "5( :"#; 2<<2 $# 0111= >:$%" 5 )5+ #: ('(% 

?%5"/@ A% "%.5,(&*%8 $*% /%"'%/ :#..#A'() "%B,%/$/ :"#; .#&5. )#C%"(;%($ 

-#8'%/= D'(&% $*%(@ A% *5C% "%+#"$%8 :'),"%/ #( :"5,8 8%$%&$%8 -? $*#/% 

#")5('/5$'#(/ %5&* ?%5"= 

2 >/ '( %5".'%" "%+#"$/@ PPP 2014 8%/&"'-%/ ?%5"E#(E?%5" &*5()%/ '( &5/%/ 

5(8 C5.,%/ #: 8%$%&$%8 :"5,8@ -5/%8 #( $*% 4#;;'//'#(F/ 5((,5. /,"C%? #: 

.#&5. )#C%"(;%($ -#8'%/= >/ '$ '/ $*% .5/$ "%+#"$ '( $*'/ /%"'%/@ '$ 5./# 

8%/&"'-%/ $"%(8/ '( $*% +5/$ :'C% ?%5"/@ 5(8 8"5A/ #( $*% .%5"('() :"#; $*% 

4#;;'//'#(F/ 0GE?%5" %H+%"'%(&% '( &#,($%"E:"5,8 '( .#&5. )#C%"(;%($= 

3 PPP 2014 5';/ $# '(:#"; $*% 8%C%.#+;%($ #: %::%&$'C% &#,($%"E:"5,8 '( 

.#&5. )#C%"(;%($ 5:$%" $*% 4#;;'//'#( &.#/%/= 7$ '/ 8%/')(%8 :#" $*#/% 

"%/+#(/'-.% :#" )#C%"(5(&% '( .#&5. )#C%"(;%($@ +5"$'&,.5".? &#,(&'..#"/@ 5(8 

8%/&"'-%/6 

I $*% 5;#,($ #: 8%$%&$%8 :"5,8 "%+#"$%8 -? .#&5. )#C%"(;%($ -#8'%/i '( 

012JK23@ &#;+5"%8 A'$* 0120K2J L4*5+$%" 0MN 

I .#()%" $%"; $"%(8/ L,+ $# 0G ?%5"/M '( .%C%./ #: 8%$%&$%8 :"5,8@ 5(8 $*% 

.%//#(/ .#&5. )#C%"(;%($ -#8'%/ &5( 8"5A :"#; $*'/ '(:#";5$'#( L4*5+$%" 

JMN 

I $*% %::%&$'C% /$%A5"8/*'+ #: $*% +,-.'& +,"/%@ '(&.,8'() $5O'() ;%5/,"%/ 

$# "%&#C%" .#//%/ :"#; :"5,8 L4*5+$%" 3MN 5(8 

I ;%5/,"%/ $# -,'.8 #( PPP’s .%)5&?@ /# $*5$ .#&5. )#C%"(;%($ -#8'%/ &5( 

&#($'(,% $# +"#$%&$ $*% +,-.'& +,"/% L4*5+$%" GM= 

 

i  P#" $*% +,"+#/%/ #: $*'/ /,"C%? A% 8%:'(% :"5,8 5/ 5( '($%($'#(5. :5./% 

"%+"%/%($5$'#(@ '(&.,8'() :5'.,"% $# 8%&.5"% '(:#";5$'#( #" 5-,/% #: +#/'$'#( $*5$ '/ 

&5""'%8 #,$ $# ;5O% )5'(@ &5,/% .#// #" %H+#/% 5(#$*%" $# $*% "'/O #: .#//= Q% 

'(&.,8% &5/%/ A*%"% ;5(5)%;%($ 5,$*#"'/%8 5&$'#( *5/ -%%( $5O%( '(&.,8'()@ 

-,$ (#$ .';'$%8 $#@ 8'/&'+.'(5"? 5&$'#(@ &'C'. 5&$'#( #" &"';'(5. +"#/%&,$'#(= 

58



 

 

Audit Commission !"#$%&$'() $*% +,-.'& +,"/% 0123 9 
 

4 4++%(5'&%/ $# $*'/ "%+#"$ &#($6'(7 

8 56$6 $6-.%/ #9 5%$%&$%5 9"6,5/ 6(5 .#//%/ -: "%)'#( ;4++%(5'< 2=> 

8 6( ,+56$%5 &#,($%"?9"6,5 &*%&@.'/$ 9#" $*#/% "%/+#(/'-.% 9#" )#A%"(6(&% 

;4++%(5'< 0=> 6(5 

8 &6/% /$,5'%/ *')*.')*$'() ,/% #9 .%)'/.6$'#(B '( +6"$'&,.6" $*% !"#&%%5/ #9 

C"'D% 4&$B $# "%&#A%" D#('%/ 9"#D 9"6,5/$%"/ ;4++%(5'< E=F 

5 G6&* PPP "%+#"$ *6/ '5%($'9'%5 $*% /&6.% #9 5%$%&$%5 9"6,5 6(5 $*% 

56D6)% '$ &6,/%/iF 

The scale and impact of fraud

8 H#&6. )#A%"(D%($ 9"6,5 '(A#.A%/ /,-/$6($'6. .#// $# $*% 

+,-.'& +,"/%F I*% D#/$ "%&%($ %/$'D6$% #9 $*% 6((,6. 

.#// $# .#&6. )#A%"(D%($ J6/ K0F2 -'..'#(B %<&.,5'() 

-%(%9'$ 9"6,5 ;L%9F2=F 

8 I*'/ 6.D#/$ &%"$6'(.: ,(5%"%/$'D6$%/ $*% $",% &#/$ #9 

9"6,5F M#" %<6D+.%B '$ 5#%/ (#$ '(&.,5% 9"6,5 '( D6N#" 

/%"A'&%/ /,&* 6/ %5,&6$'#( 6(5 /#&'6. &6"%F 

8 G6&* +#,(5 .#/$ $# 9"6,5 "%+"%/%($/ 6 .#// $# $*% 

+,-.'& +,"/% 6(5 "%5,&%/ $*% 6-'.'$: #9 .#&6. 

)#A%"(D%($ -#5'%/ $# +"#A'5% /%"A'&%/ $# +%#+.% J*# 

(%%5 $*%DF M"6,5 '/ (%A%" 6 A'&$'D.%// &"'D%F 

Source: Audit Commission

The changing counter-fraud landscape

6 O*%( $*% C#DD'//'#( &.#/%/B '$/ P6$'#(6. M"6,5 Q('$'6$'A% ;PMQ= 56$6 

D6$&*'() /%"A'&% J'.. $"6(/9%" $# $*% C6-'(%$ R99'&%F I*% "%D6'('() &#,($%"?

9"6,5 9,(&$'#(/ #9 $*% C#DD'//'#( J'.. $"6(/9%" $# $*% (%J C#,($%" M"6,5 

C%($"%B .6,(&*%5 '( S,.: 0123 -: $*% C*6"$%"%5 Q(/$'$,$% #9 !,-.'& M'(6(&% 

6(5 4&&#,($6(&: ;CQ!M4=F 

7 I*% CQ!M4 C#,($%" M"6,5 C%($"% J'.. 6./# +,-.'/* $*% (%<$ Fighting 

Fraud Locally /$"6$%): 9#" .#&6. )#A%"(D%($B 9#..#J'() $*% &.#/,"% #9 $*% 

P6$'#(6. M"6,5 4,$*#"'$: ;PM4= '( T6"&* 0123F U#J%A%"B $*%"% 6"% (# 

6""6()%D%($/ $# &#($'(,% $*% PM4V/ Annual Fraud Indicator, '( +6"$'&,.6"B 

J*'&* '/ $*% 6((,6. %/$'D6$% #9 $*% .%A%. #9 9"6,5 &#DD'$$%5 6)6'(/$ .#&6. 

6,$*#"'$'%/F 

 

i  4,5'$ C#DD'//'#( "%+#"$/ &6( -% #-$6'(%5 $*"#,)* $*'/ .'(@7 *$$+7WWJJJF6,5'$?

&#DD'//'#(F)#AF,@W'(9#"D6$'#(?6(5?6(6.:/'/W(6$'#(6.?/$,5'%/W 

59



 

 

Audit Commission !"#$%&$'() $*% +,-.'& +,"/% 0123 10 
 

8 4$*%" &*5()%/ '(&.,6% $*% &"%5$'#( #7 $*% 85$'#(5. 9"':% ;)%(&<= 

%/$5-.'/*%6 '( 0123= >*'&* *5/ $5?%( #@%" /#:% #7 $*% 5&$'@'$'%/ +"%@'#,/.< 

&5""'%6 #,$ -< $*% A%"'#,/ 5(6 4")5('/%6 9"':% ;)%(&< BA49;CD 

9 E#" &#,(&'./= $*% :#/$ ':+#"$5($ &*5()% '( $*%'" &#,($%"F7"5,6 

5""5()%:%($/ '/ $*% $"5(/7%" #7 :#/$ #7 $*%'" -%(%7'$ 7"5,6 '(@%/$')5$#"/ $# $*% 

A'().% E"5,6 G(@%/$')5$'#( A%"@'&% BAEGAC= >*'&* '/ :5(5)%6 -< $*% 

H%+5"$:%($ 7#" I#"? 5(6 !%(/'#(/ BHI!CD J*% $"5(/'$'#( $# $*% AEGA -%)5( 

'( K,.< 0123 5(6 >'.. -% &#:+.%$% -< L5"&* 012MD 

10 J*% H%+5"$:%($ 7#" 9#::,('$'%/ 5(6 N#&5. O#@%"(:%($ BH9NOC *5/ 

5>5"6%6 P2M :'..'#( $*"#,)* 5 &*5..%()% 7,(6 7#" $># <%5"/ 7"#: 0123D 

9#,(&'./ >*#/% -'6/ >%"% /,&&%//7,. >'.. "%&%'@% 5 /*5"% #7 $*'/ 7,(6 $# 

/,++#"$ $*%'" %77#"$/ $# "%7#&,/ $*%'" &#,($%"F7"5,6 5&$'@'$'%/ #( (#(F-%(%7'$ 

7"5,6 6,"'() $*% ':+.%:%($5$'#( #7 $*% AEGAD A':'.5" 7,(6'() :5< (#$ -% 

5@5'.5-.% $# &#,(&'./ '( $*% 7,$,"%D 

The main issues councils face in tackling fraud

11 Q%&5,/% #7 $*%/% &*5()%/= $*% 0123 /,"@%< 5/?%6 &#,(&'./ $# '6%($'7< 

$*% $#+ $*"%% '//,%/ $*%< 75&% '( $5&?.'() 7"5,6D 9#,(&'./ "%+#"$ $*5$ $*% 

/'().% :#/$ ':+#"$5($ '//,% '/ $*% (%%6 $# %(/,"% $*%< *5@% %(#,)* &#,($%"F

7"5,6 &5+5&'$< BE'),"% 2CD 

E'),"% 2R Main issues faced by councils in tackling fraud

Source: Audit Commission (2014)

 

SST

32T

UVT

UST

UMT

0VT

0MT

VT

ST

95+5&'$< B/,77'&'%($ &#,($%" 7"5,6
"%/#,"&%C

 Q%$$%" 65$5 /*5"'()

9#"+#"5$% 5++"%&'5$'#( #7 $*% 7'(5(&'5.
-%(%7'$/ #7 $5&?.'() 7"5,6

W77%&$'@% 7"5,6 "'/? :5(5)%:%($

95+5-'.'$< B*5@'() 5++"#+"'5$% &#,($%"
7"5,6 /?'.. /%$/C

G(&"%5/%6 +"'#"'$< )'@%( $# $5&?.'()
7"5,6

G:+"#@%6 +5"$(%"/*'+ >#"?'()

O"%5$%" +,-.'& /,++#"$ 7#" $5&?.'()
7"5,6

4$*%"

Top 3 
issues for 

councils: 

capacity, data-

sharing and 

corporate 

recognition of 

the financial 

benefits of 

tackling fraud 

60



 

 

Audit Commission !"#$%&$'() $*% +,-.'& +,"/% 0123 11 
 

12 4( $*% /,"5%67 &#,(&'./ '8%($'9'%8 #$*%" &#(&%"(/ $*:$ '(8'&:$% : (%%8 9#" : 

;#"% %99%&$'5% &#"+#":$% :++"#:&* $# 9')*$'() 9":,8< =*%/% '(&.,8%> 

? &#..%&$'() :(8 ,/'() 8:$: %99%&$'5%.6@  

? ,(8%"/$:(8'() $*% ';+#"$:(&% #9 $*% 9'(:(&':. -%(%9'$/ #9 9')*$'() 9":,8@ 

? $*% (%%8 9#" %99%&$'5% "'/A ;:(:)%;%($@ 

? ';+"#5'() &#,($%"B9":,8 /$:99 /A'../@ :(8  

? +:"$(%"/*'+ C#"A'()< 

13 PPP 2014 :88"%//%/ :.. $*%/% '//,%/< D*:+$%" 0 /%$/ #,$ $*% /&:.% #9 $*% 

9":,8 $*%6 "%.:$% $#7 :(8 *#C $*'/ *:/ &*:()%8 /'(&% 0120E2F< 

61



 

 

Audit Commission !"#$%&$'() $*% +,-.'& +,"/% 0123 12 
 

4*5+$%" 06 7*% .5$%/$ 8'),"%/ #( 9%$%&$%9 8"5,9 '( 
&#,(&'./ 

Local government bodies detected fewer cases of fraud in 

2013/14 compared with the previous year, continuing the 

decline noted in PPP 2013. However, the value of losses

from detected fraud increased.

14 :5&* PPP "%+#"$ 9"5;/ #( 95$5 &#..%&$%9 -< $*% 4#=='//'#(>/ 5((,5. 

/,"?%< #8 9%$%&$%9 8"5,9 '( .#&5. )#?%"(=%($ -#9'%/@ PPP 2014 ,/%/ 95$5 

8"#= $*% 0123 /,"?%<A ;*'&* &#?%"%9 $*% 012BC23 8'(5(&'5. <%5"@ 

15 7*% .5$%/$ /,"?%< 5&*'%?%9 5 211 +%" &%($ "%/+#(/% "5$%A ;'$* "%/+#(/%/ 

8"#= 3D3 .#&5. )#?%"(=%($ -#9'%/i@ 7*%/% "%/,.$/6 

E =5+ $*% ?#.,=% 5(9 ?5.,% #8 9'88%"%($ $<+%/ #8 9%$%&$%9 8"5,9F 

E +"#?'9% '(8#"=5$'#( 5-#,$ %=%")'() 5(9 &*5()'() 8"5,9 "'/G/F 5(9 

E *%.+ $# '9%($'8< )##9 +"5&$'&% '( $5&G.'() 8"5,9@ 

 

16 H#&5. )#?%"(=%($ -#9'%/ 9%$%&$%9 8%;%" 8"5,9/ '( 012BC23 IJ,/$ #?%" 

213A111K &#=+5"%9 $# $*% +"%?'#,/ <%5" IJ,/$ ,(9%" 21LA111K I75-.% 2K@ 7*% 

?5.,% #8 8"5,9 9%$%&$%9 '( 012BC23 '(&"%5/%9 #?%" $*% +"%?'#,/ <%5"A "'/'() 

8"#= M2LN ='..'#( $# M2NN ='..'#(@ 

 

 

 

i  O.. :().'/* +"'(&'+5. &#,(&'./A .#&5. 5,$*#"'$'%/ 8#" +5"G/A ;5/$%A $"5(/+#"$A 8'"% 5(9 

"%/&,%A 5(9 !#.'&% 5(9 4"'=% 4#=='//'#(%"/ 5"% "%P,'"%9 $# &#=+.%$% $*% 

/,"?%<@ 

100% of

local 

government 

bodies 

surveyed for 

PPP 2014 

responded

£188
million, 

of local 
government 
fraud detected 
in 2013/14, the 
highest value 

on record 

62



 

 

Audit Commission !"#$%&$'() $*% +,-.'& +,"/% 0123 13 
 

45-.% 26 Cases and value of detected fraud, excluding tenancy fraud' - 

Change between 2012/13 and 2013/14

Type of fraud For detected 

fraud in 

2013/14 

(excludes 

tenancy fraud)

For detected 

fraud in 

2012/13 

(excludes 

tenancy fraud)

Change in 

detected fraud

2012/13 to 

2013/14 (%)

4#$5. 7"5,8    

4#$5. 95.,% :2;;<03=<300 :2>><=??<=@1 A? 

B,C-%" #7 

8%$%&$%8 &5/%/ 

213<2D0 21?<;=; ED 

F9%"5)% 95.,% 

+%" &5/% 

:2<;1; :2<??@ A= 

G#,/'() 5(8 &#,(&'.  

$5H -%(%7'$ii 

 

4#$5. 95.,% :20;<=>D<@D1 :201<211<;@3 A> 

B,C-%" #7 

8%$%&$%8 &5/%/

3?<?=1 3?<=?3 E2 

F9%"5)% 95.,% 

+%" &5/% 

:0<>?0 :0<@@> A; 

I#,(&'. $5H 8'/&#,($/   

4#$5. 95.,% :2?<;=@<0D1 :2=<@?><??@ E23 

B,C-%" #7 

8%$%&$%8 &5/%/ 

3=<30; @3<1=3 E= 

F9%"5)% 95.,% 

+%" &5/% 

:D30 :D?0 E? 

J$*%" 7"5,8/    

4#$5. 95.,% :30<D;1<??0 :D;<0=;<3D2 A22 

B,C-%" #7 

8%$%&$%8 &5/%/ 

;<123 @<;31 AD> 

F9%"5)% 95.,% 

+%" &5/% 

:@<0;; :?<@@; E2= 

Source: Audit Commission
 

i  K% "%+#"$ *#,/'() $%(5(&L 7"5,8 '( 45-.% DM 

ii  N( F+"'. 012D< $*% )#9%"(C%($ '($"#8,&%8 I#,(&'. 45H O%8,&$'#(< $# "%+.5&% 

I#,(&'. 45H P%(%7'$ QI4PRM I#,(&'. 45H O%8,&$'#( '/ (#$ 5 -%(%7'$< -,$ $# 5'8 

L%5"E#(EL%5" &#C+5"'/#(/< '$ '/ '(&.,8%8 '( *#,/'() -%(%7'$ 5(8 &#,(&'. $5H 

-%(%7'$ 7"5,8 7'),"%/ 7#" 012DS23M  

63



 

 

Audit Commission !"#$%&$'() $*% +,-.'& +,"/% 0123 14 
 

17 4*% 5 +%" &%($ "%6,&$'#( '( $*% $#$7. (,8-%" #9 &7/%/ #9 6%$%&$%6 9"7,6 

#:%" $*% +"%:'#,/ ;%7" <7/ (#$ ,('9#"8 7&"#// &#,(&'./= >$ '/ .7")%.; 6,% $# 

97../ '( ?#(6#( -#"#,)*/ 7(6 8%$"#+#.'$7( 6'/$"'&$/= @('$7"; 7,$*#"'$'%/ 7(6 

6'/$"'&$ &#,(&'./ 6%$%&$%6 8#"% 9"7,6 '( 0125A23 $*7( $*% +"%:'#,/ ;%7" 

BC'),"% 0D= 

 

C'),"% 0E Detected fraud cases

F#8+7"'/#( -; .#&7. )#:%"(8%($ #")7('/7$'#( 0120A25 7(6 0125A23 

 

Source: Audit Commission (2014)

 

  

64



 

 

Audit Commission !"#$%&$'() $*% +,-.'& +,"/% 0123 15 
 

18 4 /'5'.6" +'&$,"% %5%")%/ 7#" &*6()%/ '( $*% 86.,% #7 9%$%&$%9 7"6,9/: 

;*'/ *6/ '(&"%6/%9 -< = +%" &%($ #8%"6..> 7"#5 ?2@A 5'..'#( $# ?2AA 5'..'#(> 

-,$ 86"'%/ 6&"#// &#,(&'. $<+%/ BC'),"% DE:

 

C'),"% DF Detected fraud by value

G#5+6"'/#( -< .#&6. )#8%"(5%($ #")6('/6$'#( '( 0120H2D 6(9 

012DH23 

Source: Audit Commission (2014) 

19 ;*% 86.,% #7 9%$%&$%9 7"6,9 "#/% '( 5%$"#+#.'$6( 9'/$"'&$ &#,(&'./> ,('$6"< 

6,$*#"'$'%/> 9'/$"'&$ &#,(&'./ 6(9 &#,($< &#,(&'./ &#5+6"%9 I'$* $*% +"%8'#,/ 

<%6": J$ 7%.. '( K#(9#( -#"#,)*/ -< 22 +%" &%($: 

 

65



 

 

Audit Commission !"#$%&$'() $*% +,-.'& +,"/% 0123 16 
 

Benefit fraud

20 4( 01256237 *#,/'() -%(%8'$ 9(: &#,(&'. $9; -%(%8'$ 8"9,:/ &#<+"'/%: 3= 

+%" &%($ #8 9.. 8"9,: &9/%/7 -,$ 9&&#,($%: 8#" >? +%" &%($ #8 $*% @9.,% #8 9.. 

:%$%&$%: 8"9,:/A 

21 4( 01256237 :'/$"'&$ &#,(&'./ :%$%&$%: 017B?C -%(%8'$ 8"9,: &9/%/D 9( 

'(&"%9/% #8 2B +%" &%($ &#<+9"%: $# $*% +"%@'#,/ E%9" FG'),"% 3HA I*%E 

:%$%&$%: (#$ J,/$ $*% *')*%/$ $#$9. #@%"9.. &#<+9"%: K'$* #$*%" &#,(&'./7 -,$ 

9./# $*% *')*%/$ 9/ 9 +"#+#"$'#( #8 $*%'" -%(%8'$ &9/%.#9:/ F2A> +%" &%($HA 4( 

&#($"9/$7 L#(:#( -#"#,)*/ "%&#":%: -#$* $*% .#K%/$ #@%"9.. (,<-%" #8 

:%$%&$%: &9/%/ #8 -%(%8'$ 8"9,: F:%/+'$% 9 "'/% #8 2> +%" &%($ #@%" $*% 

+"%@'#,/ E%9"H 9(: $*% .#K%/$ 9/ 9 +"#+#"$'#( #8 $*%'" &9/%.#9:7 9$ 1AB +%" 

&%($A 

G'),"% 3M Detected benefit fraud cases

N#<+9"'/#( #8 &#,(&'. $E+%/ '( 0120625 9(: 0125623 

Source: Audit Commission (2014)

22 O#$* <%$"#+#.'$9( :'/$"'&$ &#,(&'./ 9(: ,('$9"E 9,$*#"'$'%/ "%+#"$%: 

/,-/$9($'9..E 8%K%" &9/%/ #8 -%(%8'$ 8"9,: $*9( $*% +"%@'#,/ E%9"D :#K( 03 

+%" &%($ 9(: 21 +%" &%($ "%/+%&$'@%.EA P9&* :%$%&$%: 9"#,(: $*% /9<% 

+"#+#"$'#( #8 $*%'" #@%"9.. &9/%.#9:7 9$ 1A? +%" &%($ 9(: 2A1 +%" &%($ 

"%/+%&$'@%.EA 

 

 Q

 =7111

 217111

 2=7111

 017111

 0=7111

L#(:#( O#"#,)*/ R%$"#+#.'$9( S'/$"'&$/ T('$9"E U,$*#"'$'%/ S'/$"'&$ N#,(&'./

C
a

s
e

s

0120625 0125623

17% rise 

in the number 
of cases of 
benefit fraud 
detected by 
district 
councils 

66



 

 

Audit Commission !"#$%&$'() $*% +,-.'& +,"/% 0123 17 
 

Non-benefit fraud

23 45-.% 0 *')*.')*$/ $*% .5")%/$ 6"5,7/ '( $*% 8#$*%"9 )"#,+ '( 45-.% 2: ;*'&* 

-%$;%%( $*%< 5&&#,($ 6#" =>?@A <'..'#( #6 $*% =2BB@0 <'..'#( 7%$%&$%7 -C 

&#,(&'./ '( 012>D23@ 

45-.% 0E Other frauds against councils in 2012/13 and 2013/14

Fraud type Number 

of cases 

2013/14

Value 

2013/14 

(£ 

million)

Number 

of cases 

2012/13

Value 

2012/13 

(£ 

million)

Change in 

case

number

2012/13 to 

2013/14

(%)

Change in 

case value 

2012/13 to 

2013/14

(%)

F')*$ $# G,C 2H> 20@3 210 A@H IBH I221 

J#&'5. &5"% 3>B ?@> 011 3@1 I22H IAB 

K(/,"5(&% 00? 3@B L3 >@1 I01A I?1 

!"#&,"%<%($ 20L 3@3 01> 2@H M>L I2>0 

N-,/% #6 

+#/'$'#( 

>32 3@1 0B> 3@A I01 M22 

O'/5-.%7 

+5"P'() 

&#(&%//'#(/ 

QG.,% G57)%R 

3:1AA 0@1 0:H12 2@A I31 I>> 

G,/'(%// 

"5$%/ 

B3 2@0 23H L@0 M33 MB> 

!5C"#.. 3>0 2@3 >2H 0@3 I>A M30 

Source: Audit Commission (2014)

24 S5"% '/ (%%7%7 '( '($%"+"%$'() $*%/% "%/,.$/: 5/ 5((,5. +%"&%($5)% 

&*5()%/ '( T5.,% &5( -% 566%&$%7 -C 5 6%; T%"C &#/$.C 6"5,7/ '( %'$*%" C%5"@ 

U#" %V5<+.%: $*% T5.,% #6 -,/'(%// "5$%/ 6"5,7 6%.. -C B> +%" &%($: .5")%.C 

-%&5,/% $*%"% ;5/ 5( ,(,/,5..C *')* T5.,% Q=A <'..'#(R /'().% 6"5,7 '( #(% 

&#,(&'. '( 0120D2>@ !"#&,"%<%($ 6"5,7 '/ 5(#$*%" %V5<+.% #6 5 6%; &#/$.C 

6"5,7/W &5/%/ *5T% 65..%( -C #T%" 5 $*'"7 Q>L +%" &%($R: -,$ $*%'" T5.,% *5/ 

<#"% $*5( 7#,-.%7 Q2>0 +%" &%($R@ 

25 45P%( $#)%$*%": $*% (,<-%" #6 &5/%/ #6 (#(M-%(%6'$ 6"5,7 '( 45-.% 0 *5/ 

"'/%( -C >H +%" &%($ -%$;%%( $*% $;# C%5"/: ;*'.% $*%'" #T%"5.. T5.,% *5/ 

"'/%( -C 01 +%" &%($@ 

  

67



 

 

Audit Commission !"#$%&$'() $*% +,-.'& +,"/% 0123 18 
 

26 4( 01256237 $*% .8")%/$ (#(9-%(%:'$ :"8,;/ -< =8.,% >%"% :#"?  

@ A')*$ $# B,< C $*'/ :"8,; *8/ /%%( 8 D8"E%; '(&"%8/% '( &8/%/ F,+ GH +%" 

&%($I 8(; 8 D#"% $*8( ;#,-.'() '( =8.,% $# J20K3 D'..'#( F,+ 221 +%" 

&%($IL 

@ /#&'8. &8"% C &8/%/ *8=% D#"% $*8( ;#,-.%; $# 35G F,+ 22H +%" &%($I 

8(; $*%'" =8.,% *8/ '(&"%8/%; -< D#"% $*8( *8.: FMG +%" &%($I $# JNK5 

D'..'#(L 

@ '(/,"8(&%i C &8/%/ *8=% D#"% $*8( $"'+.%; F,+ 01M +%" &%($I 8(; $*%'" 

=8.,% *8/ "'/%( -< D#"% $*8( *8.: FN1 +%" &%($I $# J3KG D'..'#(L 8(; 

@ ;'/8-.%; +8"E'() F8./# E(#>( 8/ OB.,% B8;)%P :"8,;I C 8/ '( 01206257 $*'/ 

+"#;,&%/ $*% .8")%/$ (,D-%" #: Q#$*%"R &8/%/7 8(; '( 01256237 &8/%/ 

'(&"%8/%; -< 31 +%" &%($ $# 371MM >'$* 8 =8.,% #: J0 D'..'#(K 

 

 

i  S*'/ :"8,; 8"'/%/ D#/$ &#DD#(.< :"#D D%D-%"/ #: $*% +,-.'& >*# D8E% :8./% 

&.8'D/ :#" &#D+%(/8$'#( :#" 8&&';%($/ FE(#>( 8/ O$"'+/ 8(; /.'+/PIK

205%
increase in the 

number of 

cases of 

insurance 

fraud for 

2013/14 worth 

£4.8 million

68



 

 

Audit Commission !"#$%&$'() $*% +,-.'& +,"/% 0123 19 
 

Housing tenancy fraud

27 4*% (,5-%" #6 /#&'7. *#5%/ "%&#8%"%9 6"#5 $%(7(&: 6"7,9/$%"/ 

'(&"%7/%9 -: 2; +%" &%($ '( $*% .7/$ :%7" <47-.% =>? 

47-.% =@ Detected tenancy fraud by region

0120A2= $# 012=A23 

Region Number of 

properties in 

housing stock 

(% of national 

housing stock)

Number of 

properties 

recovered

in 2013/14

Number of 

properties 

recovered

in 2012/13

Percentage 

change in 

the number 

of properties 

recovered

2012/13 to 

2013/14

B#(9#( 32CD0=E <0;> 2DE1F 2D;=; G2E 

H%/$ 

I'9.7(9/ 

01EDF31 <20> 30; 32J G0 

K#,$* L7/$ 2F3D=2= <21> 20C 2=0 M0 

L7/$ #6 

L().7(9 

2;CD02J <C> 2EF 2== G32 

L7/$ 

I'9.7(9/ 

2E0DC;1 <22> 2=J 210 G== 

N#"O/*'"% P 

$*% Q,5-%" 

0=3D==; <23> 231 21E G=1 

K#,$* H%/$ 211DEJF <J> 222 ;J GCE 

R#"$* L7/$ 220D333 <F> ;C =3 GF3 

R#"$* H%/$ 21CD13; <J> =J 20J MF2 

4#$7. 2DF12D23E <211> =D1=1 0DJ30 G2; 

Source: Audit Commission (2014)

 

28 S.. -,$ $T# "%)'#(/ 9%$%&$%9 5#"% $%(7(&: 6"7,9/ '( 012=A23 $*7( '( $*% 

+"%8'#,/ :%7"? 4*% %U&%+$'#(/ T%"% $*% R#"$* H%/$D T*%"% &#,(&'./ 9%$%&$%9 

F2 +%" &%($ 6%T%" &7/%/D 7(9 $*% K#,$* L7/$D T*%"% &#,(&'./ 9%$%&$%9 

/.')*$.: 6%T%" &7/%/ <9#T( 0 +%" &%($>? 

 

69



 

 

Audit Commission !"#$%&$'() $*% +,-.'& +,"/% 0123 20 
 

Organised and opportunistic fraud

29 4*% 0125623 /,"7%8 9/:%; &#,(&'./ $# '(;'&9$% $*% %<$%($ $# =*'&* $*%8 

-%.'%7%; >"9,; =9/ ;,% $# #")9('/%; &"'?'(9. 9&$'7'$8@ "9$*%" $*9( $# 

'(;'7';,9./ 9&$'() 9.#(%A 4*% /,"7%8 ,/%; $*% B9$'#(9. C"'?% D)%(&8 

;%>'('$'#( #> #")9('/%; &"'?% 9/ E&"'?% +.9((%;@ &##";'(9$%; 9(; &#(;,&$%; 

-8 +%#+.% =#":'() $#)%$*%" #( 9 &#($'(,'() -9/'/A 4*%'" ?#$'79$'#( '/ #>$%(@ 

-,$ (#$ 9.=98/@ >'(9(&'9. )9'(F GH%>A 0IA 

30 J(.8 50 #> 5K5 &#,(&'./ "%+#"$%; >"9,;/ $*%8 -%.'%7%; =%"% .'(:%; $# 

#")9('/%; &"'?%A 4*%8 =%"% ?#/$ .':%.8 $# ;%$%&$ $*% '(7#.7%?%($ #> 

#")9('/%; &"'?% '( *#,/'() -%(%>'$ G22 &#,(&'./I@ =*'&* +"#-9-.8 "%>.%&$/ $*% 

)"%9$%" (,?-%" #> ;%$%&$%; >"9,;/ '( $*'/ &9$%)#"8A 

31 4*%/% "%/,.$/ /,))%/$ $*9$ #")9('/%; &"'?'(9./ ;# (#$ &#??'$ ?,&* 

>"9,; 9)9'(/$ &#,(&'./A L#/$ .#&9. 9,$*#"'$8 >"9,; '(7%/$')9$#"/ -%.'%7% $*9$ 

#++#"$,('/$'& >"9,;/$%"/ +#/% $*% )"%9$%/$ "'/:A M#=%7%"@ $*%"% '/ )"#='() 

&#(&%"( 9-#,$ #")9('/%; &"'?'(9./ $%(;%"'() >#" +,-.'& /%"7'&% &#($"9&$/@ >#" 

%<9?+.%@ $# .9,(;%" ?#(%8 GH%>A 5@ + KKIA C#,(&'./ /*#,.; -% 9.%"$ $# $*% 

"'/: #> #")9('/%; &"'?% 9(; %(/,"% $*%'" ;%>%(&%/ "%?9'( 9++"#+"'9$% >#" $*% 

$9/:A 

 

70



 

 

Audit Commission !"#$%&$'() $*% +,-.'& +,"/% 0123 21 
 

Failing to detect fraud

32 4( PPP 2013 56%78 39: ;% "%+#"$%< $*=$ >? <'/$"'&$ &#,(&'./ *=< (#$ 

<%$%&$%< = /'().% (#(@-%(%7'$ 7"=,<: &#A+="%< ;'$* #(.B ? &#,(&'./ =A#() 

C#(<#( -#"#,)*/: A%$"#+#.'$=( <'/$"'&$/ =(< ,('$="B =,$*#"'$'%/ &#A-'(%<8 4( 

012DE23: $*% %F,'G=.%($ 7'),"%/ ;%"% DH <'/$"'&$ &#,(&'./ D ,('$="B =,$*#"'$'%/ 

=(< 2 A%$"#+#.'$=( <'/$"'&$ 5I'),"% H9i8 

I'),"% HJ Number of detected non-benefit cases by council type 

(excluding county councils) in 2013/14

Source: Audit Commission

33 K*'.% '$ '/ %(&#,"=)'() $*=$ $*% (,A-%" #7 &#,(&'./ $*=$ <'< (#$ <%$%&$ 

=(B (#(@-%(%7'$ 7"=,< *=/ 7=..%( -B *=.7: '$ "%A='(/ <'/=++#'($'() $*=$ D? 

&#,(&'./ 7='.%< $# <%$%&$ =(B (#(@-%(%7'$ 7"=,<8 02 <'/$"'&$ &#,(&'./ =(< #(% 

,('$="B =,$*#"'$B "%+#"$%< (# <%$%&$%< (#(@-%(%7'$ 7"=,</ '( -#$* B%="/8 L," 

%M+%"'%(&% /,))%/$/ '$ '/ %M$"%A%.B ,(.'N%.B $*=$ (# (#(@-%(%7'$ 7"=,< ;=/ 

&#AA'$$%< =)='(/$ $*%A8 

34 O%="@#(@B%=" $"%(</ *%.+ .#&=. )#G%"(A%($ -#<'%/ A=(=)% &,""%($ 7"=,< 

"'/N/8 C#()%" $%"A $"%(</ -%$$%" %(=-.% $*%A $# ,(<%"/$=(< ;*%$*%" $*%B ="% 

A=$&*'() $*%'" "%/#,"&%/ $# "'/N/ %77%&$'G%.B8 P*=+$%" D &#G%"/ 7"=,< 

<%$%&$'#( #G%" $*% A%<',A $# .#() $%"A/8 

 

i  I'),"% H %M&.,<%/ &#,($B &#,(&'./ =/ $*%B <# (#$ +"#G'<% *')*@G#.,A% /%"G'&%/ 

/,&* =/ &#,(&'. $=M8 

 @

 H11

 2:111

 2:H11

 0:111

 0:H11

 D:111

 D:H11

 3:111

C
a

s
e

s

39 councils detected no cases

39 councils 

did not report 

any detected 

cases of non-

benefit fraud in 

2013/14, less 

than half the 

number of the 

previous year

71



 

 

Audit Commission !"#$%&$'() $*% +,-.'& +,"/% 0123 22 
 

4*5+$%" 67 8#()%" $%"9 $"%(:/ '( ;"5,:/ :%$%&$%: 
-< &#,(&'./ 

Trends in detected fraud since 1991 show how councils have 

changed the way they tackle fraud in response to changing 

national policies and incentives. This chapter draws on the 

learning from the Commission’s 25 years’ experience in 

counter-fraud.

35 =*'/ &*5+$%" &#(/':%"/ $"%(:/ '( :%$%&$%: ;"5,: #>%" $*% .5/$ 0? <%5"/@ 

A'$* 9#"% :%$5'.%: '(;#"95$'#( 5-#,$ $*% .5/$ ;'>% <%5"/ ;"#9 011BC21 $# 

0126C23D E$ 5./# *')*.')*$/ *#A $*% 4#99'//'#(F/ 5++"#5&* $# $5&G.'() 

$%(5(&< ;"5,: &#,.: -% 5++.'%: '( #$*%" 5"%5/@ A*%"% "'/G/ 5"% )"#A'()D 

The shift in focus from benefit fraud to non-benefit fraud

36 H%$A%%( 2BB2 5(: 0111@ &#,(&'./ +"'#"'$'/%: :%$%&$'() -%(%;'$ ;"5,:D E( 

2BB2@ #(.< 0 +%" &%($ #; &5/%/ #; :%$%&$%: ;"5,: "%.5$%: $# (#(I-%(%;'$/D 

J*%( $*% PPP /%"'%/ "%/$5"$%: '( 011B@ (%5".< $A# '( ;'>% K6B +%" &%($L #; 5.. 

&5/%/ :%$%&$%: A%"% #; (#(I-%(%;'$ ;"5,:D H< 0126C23@ $*'/ *5: "'/%( $# #>%" 

*5.; K?M +%" &%($L #; 5.. ;"5,:/ :%$%&$%: KN'),"% ML 

In the last 

5 years, the 

focus has 

shifted from 

benefit to non-

benefit fraud  

72



 

 

Audit Commission !"#$%&$'() $*% +,-.'& +,"/% 0123 23 
 

4'),"% 56 The shift from benefit to non-benefit fraud'

7%$%&$%8 &9/%/ 2::2;:0 $# 012<;23 

Source: Audit Commission (2014)

37 =( 2::<> $*% )#?%"(@%($ '($"#8,&%8 A%%B.C D%(%E'$ F9?'()/ GADFH> 

I*'&* &"%9$%8 9( '(&%($'?% E#" &#,(&'./ $# E#&,/ #( -%(%E'$ E"9,8J ADF 

&%9/%8 '( 0110 9(8 '$/ "%+.9&%@%($ K F%&,"'$C L)9'(/$ 4"9,8 9(8 M""#" 

GFL4MH K %(8%8 '( 0115iiJ N*'/ "%@#?%8 9 8'"%&$ E'(9(&'9. '(&%($'?% E#" 

&#,(&'./ $# E#&,/ #( -%(%E'$ E"9,8J 

38 N*% $"9(/'$'#( $# $*% F4=F '( 0125 @%9(/> E"#@ $*9$ C%9"> &#,(&'./ I'.. 

E#&,/ /#.%.C #( (#(O-%(%E'$ E"9,8J F#@% &#,(&'./> +9"$'&,.9".C /@9.. 9(8 

@%8',@O/'P%8 #")9('/9$'#(/> *9?% $"98'$'#(9..C "%.'%8 #( -%(%E'$ E"9,8 

'(?%/$')9$#"/ $# $9&B.% (#(O-%(%E'$ E"9,8/J =$ '/ ,(&.%9" 'E $*%/% &#,(&'./> 9(8 

/#@% #$*%"/> I'.. -% 9-.% $# "%E#&,/ $*%'" %EE#"$/ 9(8 "%/#,"&%/ #( (#(O

-%(%E'$ E"9,8/ #(&% $*% F4=F '/ '( +.9&%J 

39 4"#@ 011:> PPP "%+#"$/ &#($9'(%8 '(E#"@9$'#( 9-#,$ 9 I'8%" "9()% #E 

(#(O-%(%E'$ E"9,8/ $*9( $*% %9".'%" /%"'%/> /,&* 9/ E"9,8 8%$%&$%8 I'$*'( 

+"#&,"%@%($ #" /#&'9. &9"%J N*'/ I9/ $# *%.+ .#&9. )#?%"(@%($ -#8'%/ -%$$%" 

,(8%"/$9(8 $*% %Q$%($ #E $*% "'/B/ $*%C E9&%J 

 

i  79$9 9"% (#$ 9?9'.9-.% E"#@ 2:::;0111 $# 011R;1S -%&9,/% !!! 8'8 (#$ #+%"9$% 

'( $*'/ +%"'#8J 

ii  T(8%" ADF> &#,(&'./ "%&%'?%8 E,(8'()> #" I%"% +%(9.'/%8> 8%+%(8'() ,+#( $*%'" 

9&*'%?'() -9/%.'(% .%?%./ #E 8%$%&$%8 -%(%E'$ E"9,8 /%$ -C $*% )#?%"(@%($J T(8%" 

FL4M> &#,(&'./ "%&%'?%8 988'$'#(9. E,(8'() -9/%8 #( $*% (,@-%" #E +"#/%&,$'#(/ 

9(8 /9(&$'#(/J 

1

U1>111

211>111

2U1>111

011>111

0U1>111

C
a

s
e

s

7%$%&$%8 (#(O-%(%E'$ &9/%/ 7%$%&$%8 -%(%E'$ &9/%/

73



 

 

Audit Commission !"#$%&$'() $*% +,-.'& +,"/% 0123 24 
 

40 45-.% 3 +"#6'7%/ 8,"$*%" '(8#"95$'#( 5-#,$ $*% 9#"% "%&%($ *'/$#": #8 $*% 

7%$%&$%7 &5/%/ 5(7 65.,%/ #8 $*%/% (#(;-%(%8'$ 8"5,7/< =%$>%%( 011?@21 

5(7 012A@23B $*% 95'( 8'(7'()/ 5"% $*5$C 

D &#,(&'./ *56% &#(/'/$%($.: 7%$%&$%7 9#"% &#,(&'. $5E 7'/&#,($ 8"5,7 $*5( 

5(: #$*%" $:+% #8 (#(;-%(%8'$ 8"5,7 F(%5".: G1B111 &5/%/ '( 012A@23HI 

D &#,(&'. $5E 7'/&#,($ 8"5,7/ *56% $*% .#>%/$ 56%"5)% 65.,% #8 5.. (#(;

-%(%8'$ 8"5,7/ FJA30 '( 012A@23HB -,$ $*% /&5.% #8 8"5,7 '( $*'/ 5"%5 

9%5(/ $*%: )%(%"5$% $*% -'))%/$ .#//%/ K J2L<? 9'..'#( '( 012A@23I 

D 7%$%&$%7 M')*$ $# =,: 8"5,7 &5/%/ *56% /,-/$5($'5..: '(&"%5/%7 '( $*% 

.5/$ $># :%5"/ $# 2?A '( 012A@23< =%&5,/% $*%'" 56%"5)% 65.,% '/ #6%" 

JL3B111B $*%: )%(%"5$% /,-/$5($'5. .#//%/ #8 J20<3 9'..'#( '( $*5$ :%5"I 

D $*% (,9-%" #8 7%$%&$%7 &5/%/ #8 /#&'5. &5"% 8"5,7 9#"% $*5( $"%-.%7 #6%" 

$*% +%"'#7 $# 3AN< O'$* 5( 56%"5)% 65.,% '( 012A@23 #8 J23B0?PB $*%: 

5&&#,($ 8#" JL<A 9'..'#( '( .#//%/I 

D $*% (,9-%" #8 7%$%&$%7 -,/'(%// "5$%/ 8"5,7/ *5/ 8.,&$,5$%7B "'/'() 8"#9 

#(.: 0? '( 011?@21 $# A2? '( 0122@20 5(7 $*%( 7%&.'('() $# N3 '( 

012A@23iI 5(7 

D $*% (,9-%" #8 7%$%&$%7 &5/%/ #8 '(/,"5(&% 8"5,7 /'9'.5".: 8.,&$,5$%7 #6%" 

$*% .5/$ 8'6% :%5"/B -,$ '( 012A@23 &#,(&'./ 7%$%&$%7 $*"%% $'9%/ 5/ 95(: 

#8 $*%/% 8"5,7/ 5/ '( 011?@21< 

 

 

i  4*'/ "%&%($ 7%&.'(% '/ ,(%E+%&$%7B %/+%&'5..: )'6%( $*% '9+5&$ #8 $*% &*5()% '( 

8'(5(&'5. '(&%($'6%/ 8"#9 Q+"'. 012A 8#" &#,(&'./ $# $5&R.% $*'/ 8"5,7< 

Right to Buy 

fraud cases

increased in 

number by 

over 400%
between April 

2012 and 

March 2014

74



 

 

Audit Commission !"#$%&$'() $*% +,-.'& +,"/% 0123 25 
 

45-.% 36 Cases and value (adjusted for inflation) of detected non-benefit fraud between 2009/10 and 2013/14

Council tax 

discount

Business 

rates

Right to Buy Procurement Insurance Social care Economic/

third sector

Blue badge

0127823 95/%/ 
3:;30< <3 2:7 20= 00> 37< 7> 3;1?? 

 @5.,% 
A2>;<:?;071 A2;001;<10 A20;7>2;<?< A3;37=;:>? A3;==>;711 A>;0>2;:71 A=32;<>= A0;10=;?11 

 BC%"5)% 
A730 A23;?77 A>3;1?2 A73;:3? A02;273 A23;0:= A01;>1= A?11 

0120827 95/%/ 
?3;1:3 23: 210 017 =3 011 7> 0;:12 

 @5.,% 
A2:;:1?;1?> A=;73<;<1: A?;:?:;303 A2;:21;72= A7;10>;::> A3;131;7?> A2;0::;=1= A2;3=?;?21 

 BC%"5)% 
A7>< A3:;702 A?<;30> A:;321 A31;:1? A01;010 A7>;217 A?1: 

0122820 95/%/ 
>1;<:2 72: 7< 2<= 270 200 3? 3;<1: 

 @5.,% 
A02;77<;7>3 A0;>?2;=0> A2;02:;37: A<;0:=;3:> A0;21=;><1 A0;02>;><2 A2;<1<;0<= A0;3=0;7>> 

 BC%"5)% 
A7?1 A<;727 A70;1:1 A33;7=0 A2?;:>= A2<;2=1 A31;2<3 A?23 

0121822 95/%/ 
?>;2:< 72: 3: 23? 23: 210 ?2 7;11= 

 @5.,% 
A07;?::;=0: A>;121;<13 A2;1:1;?7< A2?;723;=20 A7;:1?;><1 A0;777;70> A2;7>2;1=: A2;?<1;<01 

 BC%"5)% 
A301 A2<;<37 A00;0?> A21?;>2: A0>;027 A00;<=> A0>;><< A?0> 

011:821 95/%/ 
3<;0?7 0: 73 2>? =0 272 3= 3;1:= 

 @5.,% 
A2>;320;<?< A>>1;<:2 A=7:;<<2 A0;:>0;=12 A7;1==;?>0 A2;?73;127 A:><;1== A0;021;2?0 

 BC%"5)% 
A731 A00;=<: A02;=>2 A2=;:?> A30;=33 A22;=21 A01;?:= A?7: 

75



 

 

Audit Commission !"#$%&$'() $*% +,-.'& +,"/% 0123 26 
 

41 4#,(&'./ *56% $# -% 5.%"$ $# -#$* $*% '($%(7%7 5(7 ,('($%(7%7 

&#(/%8,%(&%/ #9 )#6%"(:%($ +#.'&'%/; <#:% 5"% 7'"%&$.= '($%(7%7 $# &*5()% 

.#&5. +"5&$'&%> /,&* 5/ $*% '($"#7,&$'#( #9 $*% <?@<; A$*%"/ &"%5$% (%B 

/%"6'&%/ #" :%5(/ #9 7%.'6%"= $*5$ :5= +"#7,&% ,('($%(7%7 '(&%($'6%/ 5(7 

#++#"$,('$'%/ 9#" 9"5,7/$%"/> /,&* 5/ "5'/'() $*% 7'/&#,($ $*"%/*#.7 9#" C')*$ 

$# D,=;  

42  4%($"5. 5(7 .#&5. )#6%"(:%($ &5( B#"E $#)%$*%" $# 5($'&'+5$% 5(7 

:'$')5$% $*% "'/E/ #9 9"5,7 &"%5$%7 -= (%B +#.'&'%/; F*'/ *%.+/ &#,(&'./ $# 

575+$ $*%'" &#,($%"G9"5,7 5++"#5&* $# :%%$ -#$* '($%(7%7 5(7 ,('($%(7%7 

&#(/%8,%(&%/ #9 )#6%"(:%($ +#.'&'%/; 

43 ?"5,7/ &#::'$$%7 '( /&*##./ 5(7 $*#/% &#::'$$%7 -= /$599 5"% '(&.,7%7 

'( 5.. 9"5,7 &5$%)#"'%/; ?#" $*'/ "%5/#(> B% 7# (#$ '7%($'9= $*%: /%+5"5$%.= '( 

F5-.% 3> -,$ )'6% :#"% '(9#":5$'#( '( $*% 9#..#B'() /%&$'#(/; 

 

76



 

 

Audit Commission !"#$%&$'() $*% +,-.'& +,"/% 0123 27 
 

Internal fraud

44 4'(&% 01156217 &#,(&'./ *89% :%$%&$%: -"#8:.; /'<'.8" (,<-%"/ #= 

'($%"(8. ="8,:7 8.$*#,)* $*%'" 98.,%/ *89% =.,&$,8$%:> ?( 012@6237 &#,(&'./ 

:%$%&$%: (%8".; 27A11 &8/%/ #= $*'/ $;+% #= ="8,:7 )%(%"8$'() BC>3 <'..'#( '( 

.#//%/ DE8-.% AF> 

E8-.% AG Detected cases and values of internal (staff) fraud'

0115621 $# 012@623 

 

Financial year Cases and values 

(and as a % of total 

for each)

012@623 H8/%/ 273I3 D2>3JF 

 K8.,% BC>3< D3>AJF 

 L9%"8)% BA7IA1 

012062@ H8/%/ 27@2A D2>0JF 

 K8.,% B2M>C< D5>@JF 

 L9%"8)% B207IA2 

0122620 H8/%/ 273A5 D2>0JF 

 K8.,% B2A>5< DC>CJF 

 L9%"8)% B21752I 

0121622 H8/%/ 27AC2 D2>@JF 

 K8.,% B01>A< D21>AJF 

 L9%"8)% B2075M5 

0115621 H8/%/ 27MA5 D2>3JF 

 K8.,% BC>M< DA>5JF 

 L9%"8)% BA701I 

Source: Audit Commission (2014)

 

i  E#$8. 8(: 89%"8)% ="8,: 98.,%/ =#" ;%8"/ -%$N%%( 0115621 8(: 012062@ 8"% 

8:O,/$%: =#" '(=.8$'#( ,/'() PQ E"%8/,";R/ ST! T%=.8$#"> E*%/% 98.,%/ N'.. $*,/ 

:'==%" ="#< $*#/% '( +"%9'#,/ PPP "%+#"$/> 

£8.4 

million of 

internal fraud 

detected by 

councils 

77



 

 

Audit Commission !"#$%&$'() $*% +,-.'& +,"/% 0123 28 
 

Fraud in maintained schools

45 4&*##./i &5( -% 6%7"5,6%6 -8 $*#/% 9#":'() '( $*%;< 7#" %=5;+.%< /$577 

9*# %;-%>>.% /&*##. 7,(6/< &#;;'$ +58"#.. 7"5,6< #" 9*# &.5'; 75./% 

%=+%(/%/? @=$%"(5..8< /&*##./ ;58 -% A'&$';/ #7 +"#&,"%;%($ 7"5,6 5(6 

;5(65$% 7"5,6ii< 5;#() #$*%" $8+%/? 

46 B( 012CD23< 9% "%+#"$ 5 $#$5. #7 01E &5/%/ #7 /&*##./ 7"5,6 9#"$* F0?C 

;'..'#(? G*'/ '/ 5( H +%" &%($ '(&"%5/% '( &5/%/ #A%" $*% +"%A'#,/ 8%5"< 5(6 5 

.%// $*5( 2 +%" &%($ '(&"%5/% '( A5.,% IG5-.% EJ? 

G5-.% EK Detected fraud in maintained schools

L*5()% 7"#; 0120D2C $# 021CD23 

Fraud in 

maintained 

schools

2013/14 2012/13 Percentage 

change 

2012/13 to 

2013/14

G#$5. A5.,% F0<CC1<32E F0<C0C<HME N2 

O,;-%" #7 

6%$%&$%6 &5/%/ 

01E 2P2 NH 

QA%"5)% A5.,% 

+%" &5/% 

F22<C2C F20<2ER SR 

Source: Audit Commission (2014)

47 T7 $*%/% 7"5,6/< #A%" *5.7 IM3 +%" &%($J #7 &5/%/ 5(6 (%5".8 $9#S$*'"6/ 

IE0 +%" &%($J #7 $*% A5.,% '(A#.A%6 7"5,6 -8 /$577? G*%/% 5"% /,-/$5($'5..8 

*')*%" +"#+#"$'#(/ $*5( '( #$*%" .#&5. )#A%"(;%($ /%"A'&%/? G*%/% 7'(6'()/ 

5"% /';'.5" $# $*#/% '( PPP 2013, which /,))%/$/ $*5$ /&*##./ ;58 *5A% 

9%5:%" )#A%"(5(&% 5""5()%;%($/ 5(6 .%// %77%&$'A% &#($"#./ $*5( .5")%" 

#")5('/5$'#(/ $# 6%$%&$ 5(6 +"%A%($ 7"5,6? 

48 B$ '/ ';+#"$5($ 7#" ;5'($5'(%6 /&*##./ $# &#($'(,% $# "%+#"$ $*% (,;-%" 

5(6 A5.,% #7 6%$%&$%6 7"5,6 $# :%%+ 7#&,/ #( $*'/ '//,%? G*% L#;;'//'#( 

9#,.6 .':% $# /%% /';'.5" $"5(/+5"%(&8 5&"#// 5.. (#(S;5'($5'(%6 /&*##./ $# 

+"#$%&$ $*% +,-.'& +,"/%? G*% "'/: #7 7"5,6 '( (#(S;5'($5'(%6 /&*##./ '/ 

-%&#;'() ;#"% 5++5"%($ IU%7? MJ? 

49 G*% LB!VQ L%($"% 7#" L#,($%" V"5,6 *5/ "%&%($.8 +,-.'/*%6 )##6 

+"5&$'&% ),'65(&% #( $5&:.'() /&*##./ 7"5,6 IU%7? EJ? 

 

i  B( #," 5((,5. 7"5,6 /,"A%8< 9% #(.8 &#..%&$ 65$5 7"#; ;5'($5'(%6 /&*##./? V"%% 

/&*##./< 7#,(65$'#(/ 5(6 5&56%;'%/ 5"% #,$/'6% $*% L#;;'//'#(W/ "%;'$? 

ii  X5(65$% 7"5,6 '/ 9*%"% 7"5,6/$%"/ 6'A%"$ +58;%($/< -8 6%&%+$'#(< 7"#; $*% -5(: 

5&&#,($ #7 .%)'$';5$% &#;+5('%/ '($# $*% 7"5,6/$%"Y/ #9( -5(: 5&&#,($? 

Councils 

report a rise of 

8% in the value 

of fraud 

detected at 

maintained 

schools 

78



 

 

Audit Commission !"#$%&$'() $*% +,-.'& +,"/% 0123 29 
 

Councils’ response to national policies

50 4*% ,('($%(5%5 &#(/%6,%(&% #7 /#8% &*9()%/ '( )#:%"(8%($ +#.'&; '/ 

$# 89<% /#8% 7"9,5/ 8#"% 9$$"9&$':% $# 7"9,5/$%"/= >( PPP 2012? 7#" 

%@98+.%? A% /,))%/$%5 $*9$ /')('7'&9($ '(&"%9/%/ '( $*% B')*$ $# C,; 

5'/&#,($ '8+.%8%($%5 '( $*9$ ;%9" '/ .'<%.; $# '(&"%9/% $*% 7'(9(&'9. '(&%($':% 

$# &#88'$ 7"9,5 '( $*'/ 9"%9= 

51 49-.% 3 /*#A/ $*9$ &#,(&'./ 5%$%&$%5 (%9".; /'@ $'8%/ 9/ 89(; B')*$ $# 

C,; 7"9,5/ '( 012DE23 9/ '( 011FE21= G"#8 H+"'. 0120? $*% )#:%"(8%($ 

-"#,)*$ '( 8%9/,"%/ $# %(&#,"9)% $%(9($/ $# ,/% $*% B')*$ $# C,; /&*%8%= 

4*%/% '(&.,5%5 "%.9@'() $*% 6,9.'7;'() ",.%/ 9(5 "9'/'() $*% 5'/&#,($ 

$*"%/*#.5? A*'&* A'.. "'/% '( .'(% A'$* '(7.9$'#(= 

52 4*%/% &*9()%/ %(&#,"9)%5 /,-/$9($'9..; 8#"% B')*$ $# C,; 9++.'&9$'#(/= 

4*%; 9./# .%5 $# 8#"% 5%$%&$%5 7"9,5/= C%$A%%( H+"'. 0120 9(5 I9"&* 0123? 

&#,(&'./ 5%$%&$%5 0FJ &9/%/? 9 233 +%" &%($ '(&"%9/% #:%" $*% $*"%% ;%9"/ 

-%7#"%=

53 K#&'9. &9"% +"#:'5%/ 9(#$*%" %@98+.% #7 $*% %77%&$ #7 (9$'#(9. +#.'&'%/= 

K'(&% 011L? $*% )#:%"(8%($ *9/ &#(/'/$%($.; 9'8%5 $# )':% +%#+.% 8#"% 

&*#'&% 9(5 &#($"#. #:%" $*% /#&'9. &9"% $*%; "%&%':%? 9(5 $# %(9-.% $*%8 $# 

.':% '(5%+%(5%($.; 9$ *#8% 7#" 9/ .#() 9/ +#//'-.% MB%7= LN= 

54 4*% +#.'&; #7 8#"% &*#'&% 9(5 .#&9. &#($"#. *9/? *#A%:%"? &*9()%5 $*% 

/&9.% #7 $*% 7"9,5 "'/</ &#,(&'./ 79&%= O9/%/ #7 5%$%&$%5 /#&'9. &9"% 7"9,5 

'(&"%9/%5 7"#8 2D2 '( 011FE21 $# 3DP '( 012DE23= >( 012DE23? *#A%:%"? 9 

89Q#"'$; #7 9.. &#,(&'./ %@&%+$ R#(5#( -#"#,)*/ 5'5 (#$ 5%$%&$ 9 /'().% /#&'9. 

&9"% 7"9,5 M49-.% LN= 

49-.% LS Councils reporting no detected social care fraud in 2013/14

Council type Proportion not reporting any 

detected social care fraud

T('$9"; 9,$*#"'$'%/ U0V 

I%$"#+#.'$9( 5'/$"'&$/ JDV 

O#,($; &#,(&'./ J0V 

R#(5#( -#"#,)*/ DFV 

Source: Audit Commission  (2014)

55 O#,(&'./ 9"% 5%$%&$'() 8#"% &9/%/ #7 5%$%&$%5 7"9,5 '( /#&'9. &9"% M/%% 

49-.% 3N= 4*'/ /,))%/$/ $*9$ $*% "'/</ #7 7"9,5 '( $*'/ /%":'&% 9"% )"#A'()? 

9(5 9./# $*9$ /#8% &#,(&'./ 9"% $9<'() $*'/ "'/< /%"'#,/.;= >7 9.. &#,(&'./ 5'5 

/#? $*% (,8-%" #7 5%$%&$%5 &9/%/ 8')*$ "'/% 7,"$*%"= 

 

Changes in 

government 

policy can 

have 

unintended 

consequences 

79



 

 

Audit Commission !"#$%&$'() $*% +,-.'& +,"/% 0123 30 
 

56 4#"% "%/%5"&* '/ (%%6%6 $# '6%($'78 $*% (5$,"% 5(6 9,5($'78 $*% %:$%($ #7 

7"5,6/ '( %6,&5$'#( 5(6 /#&'5. &5"%; <*'&* $#)%$*%" 5&&#,($ 7#" =0 +%" &%($ 

#7 5.. &#,(&'./ /+%(6'() '( 0120>2? @%:&.,6'() -%(%7'$ +58A%($/B @C%7D E; 

F'),"% 2; +5)% 0BD G'A'.5".8; A#"% "%/%5"&* <#,.6 5./# *%.+ &#,(&'./ $#

9,5($'78 $*% %:$%($ #7 7"5,6 '( -,/'(%// "5$%/; 7#" <*'&* $*%8 &#..%&$%6 H02DI 

-'..'#( '( 0120>2? @C%7D I; !5"5D2BD 

57 J*% '(&"%5/%6 6%$%&$'#( #7 *#,/'() $%(5(&8 7"5,6 +"#K'6%/ 5 )##6 

%:5A+.% #7 $*% -%(%7'$/ )"%5$%" '(7#"A5$'#( 5(6 5$$%($'#( -"'()/D G'(&% 011I; 

$%(5(&8 7"5,6 *5/ -%%( 5 "%),.5" 7#&,/ #7 PPP "%+#"$/D L% -%.'%K% $*5$ 

&#,(&'./ &5( 5++.8 $*% .%5"('() 7"#A #," 5++"#5&* $# $%(5(&8 7"5,6 $# (%< 

5(6 %A%")'() 7"5,6 $*"%5$/D 

Housing tenancy fraud 

58 J%(5(&8 7"5,6 '/ (#< "%&#)('/%6 5/ $*% /%&#(6 .5")%/$ 5"%5 #7 5((,5. 

7"5,6 .#// '( M().'/* .#&5. )#K%"(A%($; K5.,%6 5$ HE3N A'..'#(D J*%"% '/ 5 

7,"$*%" HI2I A'..'#( #7 5((,5. .#// $# *#,/'() 5//#&'5$'#(/ @C%7D 2BD

59 PPP’s 7#&,/ #( $%(5(&8 7"5,6 /*#</ $*% -%(%7'$ #7 "%),.5" "%+#"$'() #( 

"5$%/ #7 6%$%&$%6 7"5,6; &#A-'(%6 <'$* /,++#"$'() "%/%5"&*D J*'/ 5++"#5&* 

*5/ +"#6,&%6 A#"% "%.'5-.% %/$'A5$%/ #7 $*% %:$%($ 5(6 K5.,% #7 $*'/ $8+% #7 

7"5,6D O$ *5/ 5./# &*5..%()%6 A8$*/ 5(6 A'/&#(&%+$'#(/ 5-#,$ $%(5(&8 7"5,6 

5(6 %(&#,"5)%6 #")5('/5$'#(/ $# <#"P $#)%$*%" $# /*5"% '((#K5$'K% 

5++"#5&*%/ $# $5&P.'() '$D G'A'.5" 5&$'#( <#,.6 *%.+ &#,(&'./ $# $5&P.% #$*%" 

$8+%/ #7 7"5,6D 

60 !"'#" $# 011I, $*%"% <5/ (# (5$'#(5. %/$'A5$% #7 $*% /&5.% #7 $%(5(&8 

7"5,6; #" #7 $*% K5.,% #7 5 /#&'5. *#A% "%&#K%"%6 7"#A 5 7"5,6/$%"; 5(6 (# 

"%)'#(5. '(7#"A5$'#( #( 6%$%&$'#(D G#A% /#&'5. *#,/'() +"#K'6%"/ <%"% 

"%.,&$5($ $# "%&#)('/% $*'/ $8+% #7 7"5,6; #( $*% )"#,(6/ $*5$ 5/ .#() 5/ $*% 

7"5,6/$%" #&&,+8'() $*% +"#+%"$8 <5/ +58'() "%($; $*%8 /,77%"%6 (# 7'(5(&'5. 

.#//D 

61 J*'/ %(&#,"5)%6 A5(8 A8$*/ $# -,'.6 ,+; 7#" %:5A+.%; $*5$ $%(5(&8 7"5,6 

<5/ #(.8 5 +"#-.%A '( Q#(6#(D J*'/ .%6 /#A% &#,(&'./ #,$/'6% $*% &5+'$5. $# 

&#(&.,6% $*%8 6'6 (#$ (%%6 $# $5P% 5(8 5&$'#( $# +"%K%($ #" 6%$%&$ '$D 

62 J*% R#AA'//'#( +,-.'/*%6 $*% 7'"/$ "#-,/$ "%/%5"&* '( $*% ST $*5$

&*5..%()%6 /,&* A8$*/D PPP "%+#"$/ &#($5'(%6 )##6 +"5&$'&% %:5A+.%/ #7 

/#&'5. *#,/'() +"#K'6%"/ <'$*'( 5(6 #,$/'6% $*% &5+'$5. $*5$ *56 '(&"%5/%6 

&5/%/ #7 6%$%&$%6 $%(5(&8 7"5,6D 

63 L% +,-.'/*%6 5 &5,$'#,/ %/$'A5$% #7 $*% %:$%($ #7 $%(5(&8 7"5,6 '( PPP

2009 @,+65$%6 '( PPP 2012B; <*'&* '/ <'6%.8 5&&%+$%6 5&"#// M().5(6D U," 

"%/%5"&* <5/ ,/%6 5/ $*% +"'(&'+5. %K'6%(&% -5/% 7#" 5 (%< #77%(&% /+%&'7'& 

$# $%(5(&8 7"5,6; &#($5'(%6 '( $*% !"%K%($'#( #7 G#&'5. V#,/'() F"5,6 W&$ 

012?D 

At £845 million, 

tenancy fraud 

represents the 

second largest 

yearly loss to 

councils from 

fraud

80



 

 

Audit Commission !"#$%&$'() $*% +,-.'& +,"/% 0123 31 
 

64 4-#5% 6..7 8% 8#"9%: '( +6"$(%"/*'+ 8'$* 9%; /$69%*#.:%"/7 /,&* 6/ $*% 

<*6"$%"%: =(/$'$,$% #> ?#,/'() @<=?A7 $*% B6$'#(6. C"6,: 4,$*#"'$; 6(: $*% 

(6$'#(6. D%(6(&; C"6,: C#",E7 $# ':%($'>; 6(: +"#E#$% )##: +"6&$'&% 6(: $# 

%(&#,"6)% &#,(&'./ 6(: *#,/'() 6//#&'6$'#(/ $# 8#"9 $#)%$*%" $# >')*$ >"6,:F

65 G% -%.'%5% $*6$ $*'/ 6++"#6&* *%.+%: $# +,-.'&'/% $*% '//,%/ 6(: 

%(&#,"6)%: /#&'6. *#,/'() +"#5':%"/ $# &#E-6$ $%(6(&; >"6,: E#"% 

%>>%&$'5%.;F H%$8%%( 011IJ21 6(: 012KJ237 $*% $#$6. (,E-%" #> :%$%&$%: 

&6/%/ #> *#,/'() $%(6(&; >"6,: '(&"%6/%: -; I0 +%" &%($F 

66 D*% "6$% #> 'E+"#5%E%($ #,$/':% L#(:#( *6/ -%%( /,-/$6($'6.M '( 

011IJ217 $*%/% &#,(&'./ #(.; "%&#5%"%: 00N +"#+%"$'%/7 -,$ '( 012KJ237 $*'/ 

*6: "'/%( $# 2700K7 6( '(&"%6/% #> 3KO +%" &%($F 

67 H%$8%%( 011IJ21 6(: 012KJ237 8*'.% $*% #5%"6.. $"%(: #> "%&#5%"; 

'(&"%6/%:7 $*% "6$% #> "%&#5%"; 86/ ,(%5%( 6&"#// "%)'#(/ @C'),"% PAF

C'),"% PM Recovered properties as a proportion of council housing 

stock in each region 2009/10 to 2013/14 

 

Source: Audit Commission (2014)

68 L#(:#( *6/ &#(/'/$%($.; :%$%&$%: $*% E#/$ $%(6(&; >"6,:/7 E%6/,"%: 6/ 

6 +"#+#"$'#( #> $#$6. *#,/'() /$#&9F D*% B#"$* G%/$ (#8 :%$%&$/ 

+"#+#"$'#(6$%.; $*% >%8%/$ $%(6(&; >"6,:/7 8*'&* '/ $*% "%/,.$ #> 6 :%&.'(% '( 

$*% .6/$ ;%6"F ?6: &#,(&'./ '( $*'/ "%)'#( E6'($6'(%: $*% /6E% "6$% #> 

:%$%&$'#( 6/ 6 +"#+#"$'#( #> $*%'" *#,/'() /$#&9 6/ '( 0120J2K7 6"#,(: I1 

6::'$'#(6. *#E%/ 8#,.: *65% -%%( 656'.6-.% >#" >6E'.'%/ #( $*% 86'$'() .'/$F

69 => 6.. &#,(&'./ 6//')(%: "%/#,"&%/ $# $6&9.% $%(6(&; >"6,: +"#+#"$'#(6$% $# 

$*%'" $#$6. /$#&97 6(: 6:#+$%: "%&#)('/%: )##: +"6&$'&%7 $*%( "%)'#(6. 

:%$%&$'#( "6$%/ /*#,.: -% -"#6:.; /'E'.6"F D*% >6&$ $*%; 6"% (#$ /,))%/$/ $*6$ 

/#E% &#,(&'./ &6( "6'/% $*%'" +%">#"E6(&%F 

436% 
increase in 

properties 

recovered, 

from housing 

tenancy 

fraudsters, 

outside of 

London in the 

last five years

81



 

 

Audit Commission !"#$%&$'() $*% +,-.'& +,"/% 0123 32 
 

70 4( 01235 $*% 6*7"$%"%8 4(/$'$,$% #9 :#,/'() +,-.'/*%8 ,+87$%8 )##8 

+"7&$'&% #( $7&;.'() $%(7(&< 9"7,8 =>%9? 21@? 

71 A*% 6#BB'//'#( "%+#"$/ 8%$%&$'#( "7$%/ -< &#,(&'./ 7(8 C"BD/ E%()$* 

F7(7)%B%($ G")7('/7$'#(/ #(.<? 4(9#"B7$'#( 9"#B *#,/'() 7//#&'7$'#(/ '/ 

(#$ ,('H%"/7..< 7H7'.7-.%? :#I%H%"5 7/ +"%H'#,/ PPP "%+#"$/ *7H% /*#I(5 

/#B% *#,/'() 7//#&'7$'#( +7"$(%"/*'+/ *7H% B78% )##8 +"#)"%//?

Case study 1 

Tenancy Fraud Forum – partnership working

J A*% K.#,&%/$%"/*'"% A%(7(&< L"7,8 L#",B =KALL@ 

I7/ 9#"B%8 '( 0120 -< /%H%( /#&'7. *#,/'() +"#H'8%"/ 

'( $*% .#&7. 7"%7 =6*%.$%(*7B M#"#,)* :#B%/5 

K.#,&%/$%" 6'$< :#B%/5 N%H%"( O7.% :#,/'() N#&'%$<5 

AI# >'H%"/5 >##9$#+ :#,/'() K"#,+5 N$"#,8 P'/$"'&$ 

6#,(&'. 7(8 K,'((%// :%"B'$7)%@? !"'#" $# 9#"B'() 

KALL5 '(8'H'8,7. B%B-%" #")7('/7$'#(/ 8%$%&$%8 9%I 

$%(7(&< 9"7,8/? 

J L"#B 01205 KALL B%B-%"/ /$7"$%8 /*7"'() )##8 

+"7&$'&%5 &7""<'() #,$ Q#'($ /$799 $"7'('() 7(8 '( 

+7"$'&,.7" ,(8%"$##; 7 .#&7. B%8'7R-7/%8 7I7"%(%// 

"7'/'() &7B+7')(? A*'/ "%/,.$%8 '( 7 .7")% '(&"%7/% '( 

"%+#"$/ #9 /,/+%&$%8 $%(7(&< 9"7,8? 

J L#..#I'() $*% &7B+7')(5 KALL "%&#H%"%8 21S *#B%/ 

9"#B $%(7(&< 9"7,8/$%"/ '( 012TU23? A# -,'.8 7( 

%V,'H7.%($ (,B-%" #9 *#B%/ 9"#B (%I I#,.8 *7H% 

&#/$ $*% +,-.'& +,"/% #H%" W2X B'..'#(i? 

Source: Audit Commission (2014)

72 N#B% '((#H7$'H% *#,/'() +"#H'8%"/ ,/%8 $*% .7,(&* #9 $*% 012T 

!"%H%($'#( #9 N#&'7. :#,/'() L"7,8 C&$ 7/ 7( #++#"$,('$< $# +,-.'&'/% $*%'" 

#I( $%(7(&< 9"7,8 7B(%/$'%/? 

 

 

i  4( !!! 01225 I% &7.&,.7$%8 $*% "%+.7&%B%($ &#/$ #9 7( 7H%"7)% /#&'7. *#,/'() 

,('$ $# -% W2Y15111? 

82



 

 

Audit Commission !"#$%&$'() $*% +,-.'& +,"/% 0123 33 
 

Tenancy fraud amnesties

73 45(%/$6 &7( -% 7 ,/%8,. #+$'#( 8#" /#&'7. *#,/'() +"#9':%"/ $# "%&#9%" 

+"#+%"$'%/ 8"#5 $%(7(&6 8"7,:/$%"/; <*%( '5+.%5%($%: +"#+%".6= $*%6 &7( 

*79% &#(/':%"7-.% '5+7&$ 7$ .#> &#/$; 

74 ?( 012@= $*% A#(:#( B#"#,)* #8 C75:%( #88%"%: 7( 75(%/$6 .7/$'() $># 

5#($*/; ?( $*'/ $'5%= $%(7(&6 8"7,:/$%"/ &#,.: *7(: -7&D $*% D%6/ $# 

+"#+%"$'%/ $*%6 *7: ,(.7>8,..6 #&&,+'%: #" /,-E.%$= >'$*#,$ 8,"$*%" 7&$'#( 

$7D%( #( &7/%/ $*7$ >%"% (#$ -%'() +"#/%&,$%: 8#" #$*%" #88%(&%/; 

F"7,:/$%"/ "%$,"(%: /%9%( +"#+%"$'%/ G>'$* 7 "%+.7&%5%($ 97.,% #8 #9%" H2 

5'..'#(I $# $*% C#,(&'.; J*'/ "%+"%/%($%: 7 )##: "%$,"( #( $*% H0K=111 /+%($ 

#( +,-.'&'/'() $*% 75(%/$6; AB C75:%( "%&#9%"%: 21@ +"#+%"$'%/ /,-L%&$ $# 

$%(7(&6 8"7,: '( $#$7. :,"'() 012@M23; 

75 J*% +,-.'&'$6 *7: >':%" -%(%8'$/; !"'#" $# $*% &75+7')(= $*% C#,(&'. *7: 

"%&%'9%: L,/$ /'N "%8%""7./ 8"#5 $*% +,-.'& $# '$/ $%(7(&6 8"7,: *#$.'(%; ?( $*% 

$># 5#($*/ :,"'() $*% &75+7')(= '$ "%&%'9%: K1 &7../= >'$* 57(6 5#"% '( $*% 

5#($*/ $*7$ 8#..#>%:; J*% C#,(&'. .7,(&*%: 7 (,5-%" #8 '(9%/$')7$'#(/ 7/ 7 

:'"%&$ "%/,.$ #8 $*% '(&"%7/%: *#$.'(% "%8%""7./ 7(: *7/ /# 87" "%&#9%"%: 8#,"

5#"% +"#+%"$'%/ 8"#5 $*%/% "%8%""7./ >'$* 7 8,"$*%" 8#," +%(:'() +"#/%&,$'#(; 

76 J*% !%7-#:6 O#,/'() 4//#&'7$'#( /7> /'5'.7" -%(%8'$/ 8"#5 7( 75(%/$6; 

?( 0120= 31 +"#+%"$'%/ >%"% *7(:%: -7&D $# $*% 4//#&'7$'#(; ?( 012@= '$ *%.: 

7 $>#E5#($* 75(%/$6= :,"'() >*'&* 30 +"#+%"$'%/ >'$* 7 "%+.7&%5%($ 97.,% 

#8 HP;@ 5'..'#( >%"% "%$,"(%:; ?( $*% >*#.% 6%7"= $%(7($/ *7(:%: -7&D 2@1 

+"#+%"$'%/= /,))%/$'() $*% 75(%/$6 +#//'-.6 *7: 7 .#()%" $%"5 %88%&$; 

77 J*% 7++"#7&* $# *#,/'() $%(7(&6 8"7,: '( PPP "%+#"$/ /'(&% 011Q 

'..,/$"7$%/ *#> /#&'7. *#,/'() +"#9':%"/ &7( &*7()% $*%'" 7++"#7&* $# 

8')*$'() #(% $6+% #8 8"7,:= -7/%: #( "#-,/$ '(8#"57$'#( 7(: )"%7$%" 

$"7(/+7"%(&6; 4:#+$'() 7 /'5'.7" 7++"#7&* $# #$*%" 8"7,:/ >#,.: *%.+ $*%5 

8,.8'. $*%'" :,$6 $# +"#$%&$ $*% +,-.'& +,"/%= >*'&* C*7+$%" 3 %N+.#"%/ '( 5#"% 

:%$7'.; 

Tenancy fraud 

amnesties may 

have longer 

term benefits

83



 

 

Audit Commission !"#$%&$'() $*% +,-.'& +,"/% 0123 34 
 

4*5+$%" 36 788%&$'9% /$%:5";/*'+ #8 +,-.'& 8,(;/ 

A corporate approach to tackling fraud in all areas supports 

councils to carry out the core functions of effective counter-

fraud. This helps them fulfil their role as stewards of public 

resources, to the benefit of local and national taxpayers.

78 4#,(&'./ 5"% /$%:5";/ #8 +,-.'& 8,(;/ 5(; *59% 5 ;,$< $# +"#$%&$ $*% 

+,-.'& +,"/% 8"#= 8"5,;> ?%$$%" +%"8#"='() &#,(&'./ 5&@(#:.%;)% $*'/ 

"%/+#(/'-'.'$< 5(; +,$ '( +.5&% $*% &#"% &#=+#(%($/ #8 5( %88%&$'9% &#"+#"5$% 

&#,($%"A8"5,; 5++"#5&*> B*%/% 5"% &#($5'(%; '( 4C!DE ),';5(&% FG%8> 22H 

5(; $*% )#9%"(=%($ D"5,; G%9'%: FG%8> 20H 5(; 5"%6 

I +"%9%($'#( 5(; ;%$%""%(&%J 

I '(9%/$')5$'#( 5(; ;%$%&$'#(J 5(; 

I /5(&$'#( 5(; "%;"%// F"%&#9%"< #8 8,(;/ #" 5//%$/H> 

79 4#,(&'./ 85&% 5 &*5..%()% '( &5""<'() #,$ $*%/% 8,(&$'#(/ 5/ $*%'" 8,(;'() 

;%&.'(%/> B*'/ &*5+$%" &#(/';%"/ %5&* &#=+#(%($ '( =#"% ;%$5'. 5(; 

*')*.')*$/ %K5=+.%/ #8 )##; +"5&$'&% /*#:'() *#: &#,(&'./ &5( ;%9%.#+ 5 

.#()A$%"= 5(; /,/$5'(5-.% 5++"#5&* $# $5&@.'() 8"5,;> 

Prevention and deterrence

80 C(9%/$')5$'() 8"5,; &5( -% %K+%(/'9% 8#" &#,(&'./> B*%< 5./# '(&," &#/$/ 

'( +"#/%&,$'() 8"5,;/$%"/ 5(; '( 5$$%=+$'() $# "%&#9%" =#(%<L :*'&* '/ (#$ 

5.:5</ /,&&%//8,.> C$ '/ ,/,5..< =#"% &#/$A%88%&$'9% $# +"%9%($ 8"5,; $*5( $# 

$5@% 5&$'#( 58$%":5";/> 

81 C( 0123L :% 5/@%; #9%" 011 8"5,; '(9%/$')5$#"/ 5(; 5,;'$#"/ 8"#= 7().'/* 

.#&5. )#9%"(=%($ *#: :%.. $*%'" &#,(&'./L #" $*% &#,(&'./ $*%< 5,;'$L +"%9%($ 

8"5,;> B*%< -%.'%9%; $*5$ $*% /$"#()%/$ 8"5,; +"%9%($'#( 5""5()%=%($/ :%"% 

8#,(; '( *#,/'() -%(%8'$/ 5(; &#,(&'. $5K ;'/&#,($/L 5(; $*% :%5@%/$ '( 

/#&'5. &5"% 5(; /&*##./> 

82 ?%$$%" +%"8#"='() &#,(&'./ .%5"( 8"#= 8"5,; '(9%/$')5$'#(/L 5(; 5;;"%// 

$*% :%5@(%//%/ $*5$ %(5-.%; $*% 8"5,; $# #&&,"> M,&* &#,(&'./ /$"%()$*%( 

8"5,; +"%9%($'#( 5""5()%=%($/ 5/ 5 "%/,.$L '(&.,;'() ;%$%""%(&%> 

 

 

84



 

 

Audit Commission !"#$%&$'() $*% +,-.'& +,"/% 0123 35 
 

83 4#5% &#,(&'./ 567 -% /&%+$'&6. 6-#,$ $*% 86.,% #9 9"6,: +"%8%($'#(; 9#" 

$*'/ "%6/#(< $*% /%&$#" =#,.: -%(%9'$ 9"#5 6( 6)"%%: 5%$*#:#.#)7 $# 

5%6/,"% '$/ &#/$>%99%&$'8%(%//? @*% )#8%"(5%($ /*#,.: &#55'//'#( /,&* 

"%/%6"&*? 

84 A8%( =*%"% &#,(&'./ #-$6'( (# :'"%&$ 9'(6(&'6. -%(%9'$ 9"#5 +"%8%($'() 

9"6,:/< $*%7 /*#,.: /$'.. 9,.9'. $*%'" :,$7 $# +"#$%&$ $*% +,-.'& +,"/% -7 +,"/,'() 

9"6,:/$%"/? 

Case study 2 

Fraud prevention - Right to Buy 

B C( 0123< 46(:=%.. D%$"#+#.'$6( E#"#,)* F#,(&'. 

/,&&%//9,..7 +"#/%&,$%: $=# +%#+.% 9#" 6 9"6,:,.%($ 

G')*$ $# E,7 6++.'&6$'#( =#"$* (%6".7 HI1<111? @*% 

9"6,:/$%"/ '('$'6..7 &.6'5%: $*% G')*$ $# E,7 :'/&#,($ '( 

0122< 56J'() 96./% /$6$%5%($/ 6-#,$ $*%'" %.')'-'.'$7 

'(:'&6$'() $*%7 =%"% /'/$%"/ 6(: /$6$'() $*%7 -#$* .'8%: 

6$ $*% 6::"%//? @*%'" '('$'6. &.6'5 =6/ "%9,/%: #( $*% 

)"#,(:/ #9 96'.'() $# &#5+.7 ='$* "%/':%(&7 

"%K,'"%5%($? 

B C( 0120< $*% 9"6,:/$%"/ 6)6'( &.6'5%: $*% G')*$ $# E,7 

:'/&#,($< 6(: 6)6'( /,++.'%: 96./% '(9#"56$'#( 6-#,$ 

$*%'" "%.6$'#(/*'+? @*% 9"6,: =6/ '('$'6..7 ':%($'9'%: 

$*"#,)* L6$'#(6. M"6,: C('$'6$'8% :6$6 56$&*%/? @*'/ 

%(6-.%: $*% F#,(&'. $# /$#+ $*% G')*$ $# E,7 -%9#"% $*% 

/6.% =6/ +"#&%//%:? 

B 4,-/%K,%($ %(K,'"'%/ -7 $*% F#,(&'. %/$6-.'/*%: $*6$ 

$*% 9"6,:,.%($ $%(6($ =6/ 96./%.7 &.6'5'() -%(%9'$/< 

/$6$'() $*6$ /*% =6/ "%/':%($ 6$ #$*%" 6::"%//%/< =*'.% 

/$'.. &.6'5'() $# -% 6 46(:=%.. "%/':%($? 

B @*% 9"6,:/$%"/ =%"% 9#,(: ),'.$7 ,(:%" $*% M"6,: N&$ 

6(: %6&* )'8%( 6 01 5#($* &,/$#:'6. /%($%(&%? @*'/ '/ 

#(% #9 $*% 9'"/$ /,&&%//9,. +"#/%&,$'#(/ #9 G')*$ $# E,7 

9"6,: #,$/':% O#(:#(? 

Source: Audit Commission (2014)

 

 

 

 

85



 

 

Audit Commission !"#$%&$'() $*% +,-.'& +,"/% 0123 36 
 

85 4#,(&'./ '(&"%5/'().6 ,/% 7')'$5. $%&*(#.#)6 5&"#// /%"8'&%/ 5(7 

9,(&$'#(/: ;*'/ "%7,&%/ &#/$/ 5(7 &5( '<+"#8% /%"8'&% =,5.'$6> -,$ 5./# 

-"'()/ (%? 9"5,7 "'/@/: A5&* 6%5" ?% 575+$ #," 5((,5. 9"5,7 /,"8%6 $# 

)5$*%" (%? '(9#"<5$'#( 5-#,$ %<%")'() 9"5,7 "'/@/: ;*% )#8%"(<%($ /*#,.7 

%(&#,"5)% $*% #")5('/5$'#( &5""6'() #,$ $*% /,"8%6 '( $*% 9,$,"%> 4B!CD> $# 

'(8%/$')5$% $*% %E$%($ $# ?*'&* 9"5,7/$%"/ ,/% 7')'$5. 5(7 #(F.'(% $%&*(#.#)6 

$# 7%9"5,7 .#&5. )#8%"(<%($: 

86  B((#85$'8% &#,(&'./ 5./# ,/% $%&*(#.#)6 $# +"%8%($ 5(7 7%$%&$ 9"5,7G 

Case study 3 

Using technology to prevent fraud

H ;*% I#(7#( J#"#,)* #9 K#,$*?5"@ '(&"%5/%7 8%$$'() 

&*%&@/ 5$ $*% +#'($ #9 5++.'&5$'#( 9#" 5 (,<-%" #9 '$/ 

/%"8'&%/> $# *%.+ +"#$%&$ 85.,5-.% "%/#,"&%/: ;*% 

I#(7#( J#"#,)* #9 K#,$*?5"@ '/ $*% $*'"7 .5")%/$ 

/#&'5. .5(7.#"7 '( $*% LM 5(7 *5/ 5 .5")% $"5(/'%($ 

+#+,.5$'#(: 

H B( 012N> ;*% I#(7#( J#"#,)* #9 K#,$*?5"@ 

'<+.%<%($%7 +5//+#"$ 5(7 '7%($'$6 /&5((%"/ 5&"#// 

$*% &#,(&'. 5$ @%6 &,/$#<%" &#($5&$ +#'($/> '(&.,7'() 

O(% K$#+ K*#+/> P#,/'() O+$'#(/ 5(7 $*% Q%)'/$"5"R/ 

#99'&%: D <#-'.% /&5(('() /6/$%< '/ 5./# ,/%7 -6 ;*% 

I#(7#( J#"#,)* #9 K#,$*?5"@ 5($'F9"5,7 /%"8'&%/ 5(7 

-6 &#,(&'. 7%+5"$<%($/ &#(7,&$'() /+%&'9'& +"#S%&$/: B( 

$#$5.> T>TU1 7#&,<%($ /&5(/ ?%"% &#(7,&$%7 '( 

012NV23> ?'$* 3 +%" &%($ "%=,'"'() 577'$'#(5. &*%&@/ 

5(7 8%"'9'&5$'#( 5/ "%/,.$: 

H ;*% I#(7#( J#"#,)* #9 K#,$*?5"@ '<+.%<%($%7 

577'$'#(5. 8%"'9'&5$'#( &*%&@/ #( $*% &#,(&'.R/ ?5'$'() 

.'/$> '(&.,7'() 8%"5&'$6 #9 5++.'&5$'#( 9#"< '(9#"<5$'#(: 

;*'/ *5/ "%7,&%7 $*% (,<-%" #9 5&&%+$%7 5++.'&5$'#(/ 

-6 01 +%" &%($: D77'$'#(5. 8%"'9'&5$'#( &*%&@/ *58% 5./# 

-%%( &#(7,&$%7 #( +"#/+%&$'8% $%(5($/ -%9#"% $*%6 

&#..%&$ $*% @%6/ $# $*% $%(5(&6: ;*'/ +"%8%($%7 20 +%" 

&%($ #9 5.. /,&* 5..#&5$'#(/ )#'() $# 9"5,7/$%"/: 

Source: Audit Commission (2014)

 

 

 

86



 

 

Audit Commission !"#$%&$'() $*% +,-.'& +,"/% 0123 37 
 

87 4#,(&'./ &5( 6%$%" +%#+.% 7"#8 &#88'$$'() 7"5,6 '7 $*%9 /%$ #,$ &.%5".9 

:*5$ 7"5,6 '/ 5(6 85;% &.%5" '$ '/ .';%.9 7"5,6/$%"/ :'.. -% &5,)*$ 5(6

+,('/*%6< !"#7%//'#(5. 7"5,6 '(=%/$')5$#"/ -%.'%=% $*% +"#/+%&$ #7 6%$%&$'#( 

'/ $*% 8#/$ +#:%"7,. 6%$%""%($ $# &#88'$$'() 7"5,6< >*'/ /,++#"$/ $*% (%%6 

7#" &#,(&'./ $# 85'($5'( 56%?,5$% '(=%/$')5$'=% &5+5&'$9 '( 5 +%"'#6 #7 

7'(5(&'5. "%/$"5'($< 

88 @$ '/ (#$ &,""%($.9 +#//'-.% $# ?,5($'79 5&&,"5$%.9 $*% 7'(5(&'5. -%(%7'$ 7"#8 

6%$%""'() 7"5,6< 4#,(&'./ &5( .##; $# #$*%" '(6'&5$#"/ $*5$ 859 /*#: '$/ 

'8+5&$< >*% (,8-%" #7 *#,/%*#.6/ &.5'8'() /'().% +%"/#( 6'/&#,($ '/ #(% 

%A58+.%B 7'"/$ *')*.')*$%6 '( PPP 2013 CD%7< 3E< 

89 F(%G$*'"6 #7 *#,/%*#.6/ '( H().5(6 &.5'8 /'().% +%"/#( 6'/&#,($< F," 

"%/%5"&* CD%7< 2IE /,))%/$/ $*5$ $9+'&5..9 -%$:%%( 3 +%" &%($ 5(6 J +%" &%($ 

#7 *#,/%*#.6/ &.5'8'() /'().% +%"/#( 6'/&#,($ 6# /# 7"5,6,.%($.9< 

90 K%$:%%( 011L 5(6 012IB $*% (,8-%" #7 &#,(&'./ :*%"% 31 +%" &%($ #" 

8#"% *#,/%*#.6/ &.5'8%6 /'().% +%"/#( 6'/&#,($ "%6,&%6 7"#8 0I $# M< >*% 

&#,(&'. :'$* $*% *')*%/$ +"#+#"$'#( #7 *#,/%*#.6/ &.5'8'() /'().% +%"/#( 

6'/&#,($ %A+%"'%(&%6 5 "%6,&$'#( '( &.5'8/ 7"#8 3L +%" &%($ $# 32 +%" &%($< 

F(% +#//'-.% %A+.5(5$'#( 7#" $*% 6%&.'(% '( /'().% +%"/#( 6'/&#,($ &.5'8/ '/ 

$*% )"%5$%" +,-.'&'$9 7"#8 &#,(&'./ 5-#,$ $*'/ 7"5,6 '( "%&%($ 9%5"/<

Investigation and detection

91 N"5,6 '(=%/$')5$#"/ *5=% .%)5. +#:%"/ $# '(=%/$')5$% 4#,(&'. >5A 

D%6,&$'#( 7"5,6/ 5(6 *#,/'() $%(5(&9 7"5,6/< >*% +#:%"/ 6# (#$ %A$%(6 $# 

#$*%" 7"5,6 $9+%/< >*'/ "%/$"'&$/ $*%'" 5-'.'$9 $# '(=%/$')5$% 5(6 6%$%&$ 7"5,6 

5&"#// 5.. /%"='&%/B '(&.,6'() /#&'5. &5"% 5(6 +"#&,"%8%($< 4#,(&'./ (%%6 

%?,'=5.%($ +#:%"/ 7#" 5.. 7"5,6 $9+%/ $# +"#$%&$ $*% +,-.'& +,"/% %77%&$'=%.9< 

92 F=%" $*% +5/$ 0O 9%5"/B &#,(&'./ *5=% /,-/$5($'5..9 '(&"%5/%6 $*% 

(,8-%" #7 -%(%7'$ 7"5,6 '(=%/$')5$#"/ $*%9 %8+.#9< K%$:%%( 2PP3 5(6 2PPMB 

/$577 (,8-%"/ "#/% 7"#8 011 $# #=%" 0B111 CD%7< 23E< >*% )#=%"(8%($ 

%(&#,"5)%6 &#,(&'./ $# %(*5(&% $*% /;'../ 5(6 $"5'('() #7 $*%/% (%: /$577< @( 

2PPLB $*% QR! .5,(&*%6 $*% !"#7%//'#(5.'/8 '( S%&,"'$9 C!@TSE ?,5.'7'&5$'#( 

5(6 5//#&'5$%6 $"5'('() 7#" -%(%7'$ 7"5,6 '(=%/$')5$#"/< 

93 PPP 2013 CD%7< 3E "%+#"$%6 5 6%&.'(% '( 6%$%&$%6 7"5,6 #=%" $*% +"%='#,/ 

9%5"U $*% 7'"/$ /,&* 75.. /'(&% 011P< >*5$ "%+#"$ /,))%/$%6 7,"$*%" "%/%5"&* $# 

/%% :*%$*%" 75../ '( 6%$%&$'#( :%"% .'(;%6 :'$* &*5()%/ '( &#,(&'./V 

'(=%/$')5$'=% &5+5&'$9< S'(&% 0121B &#,(&'./ *5=% &,$ $#$5. /$577 (,8-%"/ '( 

"%/+#(/% $# "%6,&%6 '(&#8%i CD%7< 2OE< 

  

 

i  W&"#// $*% X('$%6 Y'()6#8B 7,..G$'8% %?,'=5.%($ /$577 (,8-%"/ %8+.#9%6 -9 .#&5. 

)#=%"(8%($ 7%.. 7"#8 0B2J1B111 '( 0121 CZ,5"$%" 2E $# 2BMLMB111 '( 0123 

CZ,5"$%" 2EB 5 75.. #7 02 +%" &%($< 

4%to 6%
of council tax 

single person 

discount 

claims are 

typically 

fraudulent 

87



 

 

Audit Commission !"#$%&$'() $*% +,-.'& +,"/% 0123 38 
 

 

94 4%$5%%( 0116721 8(9 012:723; $*% <%8( 8=%"8)% (,<-%" #> >,..?$'<% 

%@,'=8.%($ ABCDE >"8,9 '(=%/$')8$#"/ %<+.#F%9 -F &#,(&'./ 9%&.'(%9 /$%89'.F 

>"#< GH0 $# 3HI; 8 >8.. #> 21 +%" &%($ AB'),"% JEH 

B'),"% JK Average numbers of FTE fraud investigators, by council 

type 2009/10 to 2013/14 

 

Source: Audit Commission (2014)

95 L#(9#( &#,(&'./ %<+.#F $*% <#/$ '(=%/$')8$#"/ 8(9 *8=% /%%( .'$$.% 

&*8()% 8$ 8"#,(9 22 BCD /$8>> #=%" $*% 5*#.% >'=% F%8"/H M'/$"'&$ &#,(&'./ 

*8=% %<+.#F%9 $*% >%5%/$ >"8,9 '(=%/$')8$#"/; 8(9 *8=% /%%( $*%'" 8=%"8)% 

BCD (,<-%"/ "%9,&% -F 26 +%" &%($; 5'$* ,('$8"F 8,$*#"'$'%/ 8(9 

<%$"#+#.'$8( 9'/$"'&$/ "%9,&'() -F 23 +%" &%($ 8(9 2: +%" &%($ "%/+%&$'=%.FH 

96 N% 58($%9 $# '(=%/$')8$% 5*%$*%" 8((,8. &*8()%/ '( /$8>> (,<-%"/ 8"% 

8//#&'8$%9 5'$* &*8()%/ '( $*% (,<-%"/ #> "%+#"$%9 9%$%&$%9 -%(%>'$ 8(9 

(#(?-%(%>'$ >"8,9 '( %8&* F%8" 5'$*'( $*'/ +%"'#9H 

  

1H1

0H1

3H1

OH1

JH1

21H1

20H1

0116721 0121722 0122720 012072: 012:723

A
v

e
ra

g
e

 F
T

E
 (

b
e

n
e

fi
t 

a
n

d
 n

o
n

-b
e

n
e

fi
t)

M'/$"'&$ P#,(&'. L#(9#( 4#"#,)* P#,(&'. Q%$"#+#.'$8( M'/$"'&$ P#,(&'. R('$8"F S,$*#"'$F T"8(9 C#$8.

88



 

 

Audit Commission !"#$%&$'() $*% +,-.'& +,"/% 0123 39 
 

97 4#$ %(#,)* &#,(&'./ "%+#"$%5 /%+6"6$% /$677 (,8-%"/ 7#" (#(9-%(%7'$ 

7"6,5 /$677 $# %(6-.% 6(6.:/'/ #7 $*'/ $:+% #7 7"6,5; <#" -%(%7'$ 7"6,5= 6.. 

&#,(&'. $:+%/i /6> 6 /,-/$6($'6. "%5,&$'#( '( -#$* <?@ /$677 (,8-%"/ 6(5 

5%$%&$%5 -%(%7'$ 7"6,5 &6/%/ A<'),"% BC; 

<'),"% BD Councils' capacity to detect benefit fraud

E*6()%/ '( 8%5'6( -%(%7'$ 7"6,5 <?@ (,8-%"/ 6(5 5%$%&$%5 -%(%7'$ 

7"6,5 &6/%/ '( 011BF21 6(5 012GF23 

Source: Audit Commission (2014)

98 ?6H'() 6.. &#,(&'./ '( $*% 6(6.:/'/ $#)%$*%"= $*% 8%5'6( +%"&%($6)% 76.. '( 

5%$%&$%5 &6/%/ #7 -%(%7'$ 7"6,5 %I&%%5%5 $*6$ 7#" <?@ -%(%7'$ 7"6,5 

'(J%/$')6$#"/; ?*'/ >6/ $",% '( 6.. &#,(&'./ %I&%+$ ,('$6": 6,$*#"'$'%/= >*%"% 

$*% +%"&%($6)% "%5,&$'#(/ >%"% /'8'.6" '( %6&* &6$%)#":; 

99 K#(5#( -#"#,)*/ /6> $*% .6")%/$ "%5,&$'#(/= .#/'() (%6".: $># '( 7'J% AGL 

+%" &%($C #7 $*%'" -%(%7'$ 7"6,5 '(J%/$')6$'#( /$677= 6(5 (%6".: *6.7 A3M +%" 

&%($C #7 $*%'" 5%$%&$%5 -%(%7'$ 7"6,5 &6/%/ #J%" $*% >*#.% +%"'#5; N$ '/ .'H%.: 

$*6$ /#8% #7 $*'/ 5%&.'(% '/ 5,% $# &#,(&'./ '( $*% &6+'$6. "%7#&,/'() $*%'" 

7"6,5 '(J%/$')6$'#( "%/#,"&%/ #( (#(9-%(%7'$ 7"6,5 '( +"%+6"6$'#( 7#" $*% 

'($"#5,&$'#( #7 $*% O<NO AP%7; 3= !6"6; 3QC; 

100 R$*%" &#,(&'./ 6./# /6> 6 /,-/$6($'6. 5%&.'(% '( $*%'" &6+6&'$: $# 5%$%&$ 

-%(%7'$ 7"6,5 #7 -%$>%%( 01 6(5 G1 +%" &%($ #J%" $*'/ +%"'#5; ?*%: 6./# 

5%$%&$%5 -%$>%%( 0G 6(5 G2 +%" &%($ 7%>%" &6/%/ #7 -%(%7'$ 7"6,5; ?*%/% 

5'77%"%(&%/ 6"% (#$ /$6$'/$'&6..: /')('7'&6($ 6(5 56$6 6"% +6$&*: '( 0121F22 

6(5 0122F20; S#>%J%"= $*%: '(5'&6$% 6 &.%6" 5%&.'(% '( -#$* &#,($%"97"6,5 

&6+6&'$: 6(5 5%$%&$'#( "6$%/ -%$>%%( $*% $># :%6"/; 

 

i  ?*'/ 6(6.:/'/ %I&.,5%/ &#,($: &#,(&'./= >*'&* 5# (#$ 658'('/$%" *#,/'() 6(5 

&#,(&'. $6I -%(%7'$/; 

9M1T

93MT

931T

9GMT

9G1T

90MT

901T

92MT

921T

9MT

1T

U'/$"'&$ E#,(&'./ K#(5#( V#"#,)*/ W%$"#+#.'$6( U'/$"'&$/ X('$6": Y,$*#"'$'%/

T <?@ &*6()% T &6/% &*6()%

Counter fraud 

capacity and 

cases of benefit 

frauds detected 

both fell 

between 

2009/10 and 

2013/14

89



 

 

Audit Commission !"#$%&$'() $*% +,-.'& +,"/% 0123 40 
 

101 4%5%./ #6 "%+#"$%7 7%$%&$%7 6"8,7 &8( #(.9 )'5% 8( '(7'&8$'#( #6 $*% 

%:$%($ #6 6"8,7 &#;;'$$%7 8)8'(/$ &#,(&'./< =( #," %:+%"'%(&%> $*% ;#"% 

&#,(&'./ .##? 6#" 6"8,7> 8(7 6#..#@ )##7 +"8&$'&%> $*% ;#"% $*%9 @'.. 6'(7< 

=(&"%8/'() .%5%./ #6 7%$%&$'#( ;89 $*%"%6#"% -% 8 +#/'$'5% /')( $*8$ &#,(&'./ 

$8?% 6"8,7 /%"'#,/.9> "8$*%" $*8( %5'7%(&% #6 @%8? &#,($%"A6"8,7 &#($"#./<  

102 =$ '/ -%&#;'() '(&"%8/'().9 ,")%($ 6#" &#,(&'./ $# "%&#5%" .#//%/ $# 6"8,7< 

=( 012B> $*% 6,(7'() $# 8'7 &#,(&'./ "%6#&,/ $*%'" 8&$'5'$'%/ #( (#(A-%(%6'$ 

6"8,7/ 7,"'() $*% $"8(/'$'#( $# $*% CD=C @'.. %(7< E'$*#,$ $*'/ ;#(%9> &#,(&'./ 

@'.. (%%7 8.$%"(8$'5% ;%8(/ #6 6'(8(&'() &#,($%"A6"8,7 '(5%/$')8$'#( 8(7 

+"%5%($'#(< F%&#5%"9 #6 .#//%/ #66%"/ #(% @89 $# 7# $*'/< 

Sanction and redress (recovery of losses)

103 G#,(&'./ &8( '(5#?% 8 "8()% #6 &"';'(8. 8(7 &'5'. /8(&$'#(/ 8)8'(/$ 

6"8,7/$%"/< H*%9 &8( ';+#/% 6'(%/ I6#" %:8;+.%> 8 JK1 6'(% 6#" 6"8,7,.%($.9 

&.8';'() /'().% +%"/#( 7'/&#,($L> 8(7 @'$*7"8@ -%(%6'$/> &#($"8&$/ #" 

.'&%(&%/< =( /#;% &8/%/> /$#++'() $*% 7'/&#,($ #" /%"5'&% +"#5'7%7 ;89 -% 

$*% .';'$ #6 $*% 8&$'#( $8?%(< 

104 H*% 58/$ ;8M#"'$9 #6 6"8,7/ &#;;'$$%7 8)8'(/$ .#&8. 8,$*#"'$'%/ 8"% (%5%" 

+,"/,%7 $*"#,)* $*% &"';'(8. &#,"$/< H*%"% 8"% ;8(9 6"8,7/ 8)8'(/$ &#,(&'./ 

I213>2N0 7%$%&$%7 &8/%/ '( 012NO23L< E'$* 6%@%" /$866 8(7 "%/#,"&%/> '$ '/ 

8++"#+"'8$% 6#" &#,(&'./ $# 6#..#@ 7'66%"%($ &#,"/%/ #6 8&$'#(< H*'/ '/ 

&#(/'/$%($ @'$* )##7 /$%@8"7/*'+ #6 +,-.'& 6,(7/< 

105 F%&#5%"'() 6,(7/ .#/$ $# 6"8,7 &8( -% 7'66'&,.$< F%/%8"&* /,))%/$/ $*8$> 

8&"#// 8.. /%&$#"/ #6 8( %&#(#;9> ;#"% $*8( *8.6 #6 8.. 6"8,7 5'&$';/ 7# (#$ 

"%&#5%" 8(9 ;#('%/< D%@%" $*8( #(% '( $%( 8&*'%5%/ 6,.. 6'(8(&'8. "%/$'$,$'#( 

IF%6< 2BL< 

106 G#,(&'./ &8( +,"/,% "%&#5%"9 $*"#,)* $*% &'5'. #" &"';'(8. &#,"$/> -,$ 

$*%9 &8( &#(/'7%" 8.$%"(8$'5% ;%8(/ $# +,('/* 6"8,7/$%"/> 7%$%" +#$%($'8. 

6"8,7/$%"/ 8(7 8./# )%(%"8$% 6,(7/ $# "%'(5%/$ '( $8&?.'() 6"8,7< 

107 =( 0123> $*% 4#&8. P,$*#"'$9 =(5%/$')8$'() Q66'&%"/ R"#,+ I4P=QRL 

+,-.'/*%7 ),'78(&% #( %/$';8$'() +#$%($'8. .#// $# 6"8,7 '( /+%&'6'& 8"%8/ #6 

.#&8. 8,$*#"'$9 8&$'5'$9< G#,(&'./ &8( ,$'.'/% $*'/ ),'78(&% $# %/$';8$% $*%'" 

#@( .#&8. .#//%/ IF%6< 2KL< 

108 P++%(7': N &#($8'(/ &8/% /$,7'%/ $*8$ '..,/$"8$% *#@ &#,(&'./ &8( ,/% 

.%)'/.8$'#(> (#$8-.9 -,$ (#$ /#.%.9 $*% !"#&%%7/ #6 G"';% P&$ 0110 I!QGPL> 

$# "%&#5%" ;#(%9 6"#; 6"8,7/$%"/< 

  

90



 

 

Audit Commission !"#$%&$'() $*% +,-.'& +,"/% 0123 41 
 

109 !456 #77%"/ #(% 8%9(/ #7 "%&#:%"'() 7"9,; .#//%/ $*"#,)* &"'8'(9. .9<= 

6"#,(; $<# '( 7':% >3? +%" &%($@ #7 &#,(&'./ %8+.#AB #" *9:% 9&&%// $#B 

/+%&'9.'/$ !456 7'(9(&'9. '(:%/$')9$#"/ $# "%&#:%" 8#(%A 7"#8 7"9,;/$%"/ 

$*"#,)* $*% &#,"$/ >C'),"% 21@= 

C'),"% 21D Proportion of councils in 2013/14 with access to POCA 

financial investigators, by council type 

 

Source: Audit Commission (2014)

110 E*% +"#+#"$'#( #7 &#,(&'./ '( %9&* )"#,+ <'$* 9&&%// $# 7'(9(&'9. 

'(:%/$')9$#"/ :9"'%/ <';%.A= 6.. -,$ $<# F#(;#( -#"#,)*/ ,/% $*%8 9(; 8#/$ 

%8+.#A $*%'" #<(= G( &#($"9/$B H,/$ #:%" 9 I,9"$%" >0J +%" &%($@ #7 ;'/$"'&$ 

&#,(&'./ ,/%; 9 7'(9(&'9. '(:%/$')9$#"= 

111 C'(9(&'9. '(:%/$')9$#"/ *9:% $A+'&9..A 7#&,/%; #( $"9;'() /$9(;9"; 

#77%(&%/ 9(; -%(%7'$ 7"9,;B -,$ $*%A 9./# %(9-.% &#,(&'./ $# ,/% !456 $# 

"%&#:%" 7,(;/ .#/$ $# #$*%" 7"9,;/= 

112 C#" %K98+.%B '( 0123B $*% 7'(9(&'9. '(:%/$')9$#" 9$ $*% F#(;#( L#"#,)* #7 

F%<'/*98i ,/%; 9 !456 &#(7'/&9$'#( *%9"'() $# %/$9-.'/* $*% .'(M -%$<%%( 

/#&'9. *#,/'() 7"9,; 9(; 9;;'$'#(9. &#/$/ $*% 5#,(&'. *9; '(&,""%; '( *#,/'() 

*#8%.%// +%#+.%= N% *9; +"%:'#,/.A ';%($'7'%; $*'/ .'(M '( PPP "%+#"$/= E*% 

&#,"$ 9)"%%; 9(; /%$ 9 +"%&%;%($ -A 9<9";'() F%<'/*98 O21B111 +%" 

7"9,;,.%($.A /,-P.%$ +"#+%"$A '( $*'/ &9/%= 

 

i E*'/ &9/% <9/ ,(;%"$9M%( -A $*% 7'(9(&'9. '(:%/$')9$#" #( -%*9.7 #7 F%<'/*98 

Q#8%/B $*% 6"8R/ F%()$* S9(9)%8%($ 4")9('/9$'#( >6FS4@ $*9$ 89(9)%/ $*% 

/#&'9. *#,/'() /$#&M 7#" $*% &#,(&'.= 

1T

21T

01T

?1T

31T

U1T

V1T

W1T

J1T

X1T

211T

F#(;#(
L#"#,)*/

S%$"#+#.'$9(
Y'/$"'&$/

5#,($A
5#,(&'./

Z('$9"A
6,$*#"'$'%/

Y'/$"'&$
5#,(&'./

91



 

 

Audit Commission !"#$%&$'() $*% +,-.'& +,"/% 0123 42 
 

113 4*% &#,"$5/ 6,7)%8%($ &"%9$%/ &9/% .9: $*9$ :'.. *%.+ /#&'9. *#,/'() 

+"#;'7%"/ $# +,('/* #<<%(7%"/= "%&#;%" <,(7/ 9(7= %>,9..? '8+#"$9($.?= 7%$%" 

#$*%"/ <"#8 &#88'$$'() /,&* <"9,7/ '( $*% <,$,"%@ 

114 A#&9. 9,$*#"'$'%/ /*#,.7 )';% )"%9$%" &#(/'7%"9$'#( 9/ $# *#: -%/$ $# ,/% 

!BCD <'(9(&'9. '(;%/$')9$#"/= %/+%&'9..? '( &9/%/ :*%"% &#,(&'./ '(&," 

/,-/$9($'9. <'(9(&'9. .#//@ 

CIPFA Code of Practice on Managing the Risk of Fraud and 
Corruption

115 4*% /'E F%? &#8+#(%($/ #< %<<%&$';% /$%:9"7/*'+ #< +,-.'& <,(7/ 

*')*.')*$%7 '( $*'/ &*9+$%" 9"% '(&#"+#"9$%7 :'$*'( $*% (%:.? +,-.'/*%7 

CG!HD C#7% #< !"9&$'&% #( I9(9)'() $*% J'/F #< H"9,7 9(7 C#"",+$'#( KJ%<@ 

2LM@ 4*% C#7% :'.. -% /,++#"$%7 -? 9 /%.<N9//%//8%($ <"98%:#"F@ CG!HD 

9./# '($%(7 $# +,-.'/* )##7 +"9&$'&% ),'79(&%@ O% %(&#,"9)% 9.. +,-.'& 

-#7'%/= '(&.,7'() .#&9. 9,$*#"'$'%/= $# 9//%// $*%8/%.;%/ 9)9'(/$ $*'/ C#7%@ 

92



 

 

Audit Commission !"#$%&$'() $*% +,-.'& +,"/% 0123 43 
 

4*5+$%" 67 8,'.9'() #( PPP’s .%)5&: 

The Commission’s PPP reports have made an important 

contribution to the fight against public sector fraud. The 

CIPFA Counter Fraud Centre is well placed to continue this 

work, and intends to publish future annual PPP reports on 

the extent of detected fraud in local government.

116 ;*"#,)*#,$ '$/ %<'/$%(&%= $*% 4#>>'//'#( *5/ +.5:%9 5( 5&$'?% +5"$ '( 

*%.+'() +,-.'& -#9'%/ $5&@.% A"5,9 %AA%&$'?%.:B C#" %<5>+.%= %5".: PPP 

"%+#"$/ '9%($'A'%9 .#D .%?%./ #A A"5,9 9%$%&$'#( '( $*% EFG= D*'&* .%9 '( +5"$ 

$# $*% &"%5$'#( #A $*% EFG 4#,($%"HC"5,9 G%"?'&% '( 2IIJ K(#D EFG 

!"#$%&$LB M," "%/%5"&* #( $*% /&5.% #A $%(5(&: A"5,9 5(9 &#,(&'. $5< /'().% 

+%"/#( 9'/&#,($ A"5,9 *5/ -%%( D'9%.: ,/%9 $# /,++#"$ '>+"#?%>%($/ '( $*% 

"%/+#(/% $# /,&* A"5,9B 

117 PPP "%+#"$/ ,/% $*% 4#>>'//'#(N/ /$5$,$#": +#D%"/ $# &#..%&$ 5(9 

+,-.'/* 95$5 #( .#&5. &#,($%"HA"5,9 9%$%&$'#(B ;*%: *5?% &*5()%9 $*% D5: 

.#&5. )#?%"(>%($ -#9'%/ 5(9 #$*%" #")5('/5$'#(/ $*'(@ 5-#,$ 5(9 5++"#5&* 

A')*$'() A"5,9= 5(9 5&*'%?%9 5 (,>-%" #A '>+#"$5($ #,$&#>%/B 

PPP reports raise awareness of the importance of fighting fraud

118 O*%( $*% 4#>>'//'#( "%/,>%9 PPP '( 011I= $*%"% D5/ .'$$.% "%/%5"&* 

5?5'.5-.% #( $*% (5$,"% 5(9 %<$%($ #A >#/$ $:+%/ #A (#(H-%(%A'$ A"5,9 

5AA%&$'() .#&5. )#?%"(>%($ -#9'%/B O% 9%?%.#+%9 "#-,/$ %/$'>5$%/= (#D 

D'9%.: ,/%9 -: (5$'#(5. 5(9 .#&5. )#?%"(>%($= #A $*% /&5.% #A -#$* $%(5(&: 

A"5,9 5(9 &#,(&'. $5< /'().% +%"/#( 9'/&#,($ A"5,9B 

119  P5(: #")5('/5$'#(/ 9'9 (#$ 5&@(#D.%9)% $*5$ A"5,9 '/ 5 +"#-.%> #" 

,(9%"/$5(9 '$/ /&5.% 5(9 '>+5&$B PPP "%+#"$/ 5$$"5&$%9 +,-.'&'$: 5(9 '($%"%/$= 

D*'&* *%.+ #AA'&%"/ 5(9 &#,(&'..#"/ $# 5"),% A#" >#"% %AA%&$'?% "%/#,"&%/ $# 

+"#$%&$ $*% +,-.'& +,"/%B 

120 Q5&* PPP "%+#"$ &#($5'( 5 &*%&@.'/$ A#" $*#/% &*5")%9 D'$* )#?%"(5(&% 

$# *%.+ $*%> ,(9%"/$5(9 5(9 5//%// $*%'" "'/@/ 5(9 +%"A#">5(&%B ;*% .5$%/$ 

?%"/'#( '/ '( R++%(9'< 0B 4#,(&'./ /*#,.9 &#($'(,% $# ,/% $*'/ &*%&@.'/$= 

D*'&* '/ ,+95$%9 5((,5..: D'$* %5&* (%D PPP "%+#"$B 

93



 

 

Audit Commission !"#$%&$'() $*% +,-.'& +,"/% 0123 44 
 

PPP reports promote transparency and accountability

121 4*% '(5#"67$'#( '( PPP "%+#"$/8 &#6-'(%9 :'$* '(9';'9,7. 5"7,9 -"'%5'()/ 

</%% +7"7)"7+*/ 20= $# 20>?8 *%.+ $# &"%7$% )"%7$%" $"7(/+7"%(&@ 7(9 

7&&#,($7-'.'$@ '( .#&7. +,-.'& /%";'&%/A PPP "%+#"$/ *7;% -%%( :'9%.@ ,/%9 

-@ 7,9'$ &#66'$$%%/A 

PPP reports improve data about fraud

122 !"'#" $# 011>8 $*%"% :7/ (# /%&$#"B:'9% 9%5'('$'#(8 #" /,-B&7$%)#"'/7$'#(8 

#5 5"7,9 755%&$'() .#&7. )#;%"(6%($A 4*% 7((,7. 5"7,9 /,";%@ 5#" PPP "%+#"$/ 

5#/$%" 7 &#66#( ,(9%"/$7(9'() #5 5"7,9 7&"#// .#&7. )#;%"(6%($8 7(9 

"%C,'"% .#&7. )#;%"(6%($ -#9'%/ $# "%&#"9 $*% (,6-%"/ 7(9 ;7.,%/ #5 7.. $*% 

5"7,9/ $*%@ 9%$%&$%9A 

PPP reports enable local government bodies to benchmark their 

performance in detecting fraud

123 PPP "%+#"$/ &#($7'( "%)'#(7. 7(9 (7$'#(7. 97$7 #( 9%$%&$'#( "7$%/ 7(9 

;7.,%/ 5#" 7.. $@+%/ #5 -%(%5'$ 7(9 (#(B-%(%5'$ 5"7,9/A 4*'/ 7..#:/ D().'/* 

&#,(&'./ $# &#6+7"% $*%'" +%"5#"67(&% 7)7'(/$ (7$'#(7.8 "%)'#(7. 7(9 .#&7. 

(#"6/A E(9%"/$7(9'() 5"7,9 9%$%&$'#( +%"5#"67(&% *%.+/ .#&7. )#;%"(6%($ 

-#9'%/ $# 79#+$ 7 +"#+#"$'#(7$% 7(9 %55%&$';% 7++"#7&* $# 5')*$'() 5"7,9A 

PPP reports promote good practice in fighting fraud

124 D7&* PPP "%+#"$ &#($7'(/ &7/% /$,9'%/ $*7$ '..,/$"7$% $*% 7&$'#(/ .#&7. 

)#;%"(6%($ -#9'%/8 #5$%( '( +7"$(%"/*'+8 $7F% 7(9 $*% #,$&#6%/ $*%@ 

7&*'%;% '( 5')*$'() 5"7,9A D;%"@ @%7"8 :% :#"F :'$* &#,(&'./ $# +"#6#$% )##9 

+"7&$'&% 7&"#// $*% /%&$#"A 

125 G.. $*%/% -%(%5'$/ :%"% +#//'-.% -%&7,/% $*% H#66'//'#( &#,.9 67(97$% 

&#,(&'./ $# &#6+.%$% 7(9 "%$,"( $*% 7((,7. C,%/$'#((7'"% 5#" $*% 5"7,9 7(9 

&#"",+$'#( /,";%@A I#'() 5#":7"98 ,(.%// $*% /,";%@ '/ 67(97$%9 -@ JHKI8 

"%/+#(/% "7$%/ :'.. +"#-7-.@ 57..A 4*'/ :#,.9 "%9,&% $*% "%.'7-'.'$@ #5 $*% 

/,";%@ "%/,.$/A 

 

94



 

 

Audit Commission !"#$%&$'() $*% +,-.'& +,"/% 0123 45 
 

Fraud briefings

126 4( 01256 7% +,-.'/*%8 9#" $*% 9'"/$ $':% '(8';'8,<..= $<'.#"%8 9"<,8 -"'%9'()/ 

$# /,++#"$ %>$%"(<. <,8'$#"/? &#::,('&<$'#( 7'$* $*#/% "%/+#(/'-.% 9#" 

)#;%"(<(&% <$ %<&* &#,(&'.6 +"'(&'+<..= .#&<..= %.%&$%8 &#,(&'..#"/ #( <,8'$ 

&#::'$$%%/@ A*% -"'%9'()/ &#($<'(%8 &#:+<"<$';% -%(&*:<"B '(9#":<$'#( #( 

%<&* &#,(&'.?/ 8%$%&$'#( "%/,.$/@ C>$%"(<. <,8'$#"/ &#,.8 +"#;'8% $*%/% 

-"'%9'()/ #( "%D,%/$ <(8 #( < &#(9'8%($'<. -</'/6 $# %(/,"% $*<$ $*% 

'(9#":<$'#( $*%= &#($<'(%8 7</ (#$ <;<'.<-.% $# 9"<,8/$%"/i@ 

127 E.. 5F5 C().'/* .#&<. <,$*#"'$'%/ 7%"% <-.% $# "%&%';% $*%'" 9"<,8 -"'%9'()6 

7'$*#,$ &*<")%6 $*"#,)* < +"%/%($<$'#( 9"#: $*%'" %>$%"(<. <,8'$#" '( .<$% 

0125 <(8 %<".= 0123@ E"#,(8 $*"%% '( 9';% &#,(&'./ GH0 +%" &%($I "%&%';%8 < 

-"'%9'() <(8 +"%/%($<$'#(6 -,$ '$ '/ 8'/<++#'($'() $*<$ :<(= &#,(&'./ 8'8 (#$@ 

128 J% -%.'%;% $*%/% -"'%9'()/ :<B% <( ':+#"$<($ &#($"'-,$'#( $# ':+"#;'() 

$"<(/+<"%(&= <(8 <&&#,($<-'.'$= '( .#&<. 9"<,8 8%$%&$'#( +%"9#":<(&%@ K#:% 

&#,(&'./ <"% "%.,&$<($ $# 8'/&,// 9"<,86 #" ,(7'..'() $# <&&%+$ '$ #&&,"/6 7*'&* 

:<= *%.+ $# %>+.<'( 7*= (#$ <.. &#,(&'./ #+$%8 $# "%&%';% $*%'" 9"<,8 -"'%9'()@ 

129 4( L#;%:-%" 01236 7% 7'.. <)<'( :<B% 9"<,8 -"'%9'()/ <;<'.<-.% 9"%% $# 

<.. &#,(&'./6 ;'< $*%'" %>$%"(<. <,8'$#"@ J% %(&#,"<)% <.. .#&<. <,$*#"'$'%/ $# 

,/% $*%/% 9"<,8 -"'%9'()/ $# '(9#": $*%'" .#&<. &#,($%"M9"<,8 +"'#"'$'%/ <(8 

/$"<$%)'%/@ 

CIPFA Centre for Counter Fraud

130 N"<,8 "'/B/ <"% &#(/$<($.= &*<()'()@ L%7 7<=/ #9 8%.';%"'() +,-.'& 

/%";'&%/6 '( +<"$'&,.<" $*"#,)* 8')'$<. $%&*(#.#)=6 -"'() (%7 $*"%<$/@ O#&<. 

)#;%"(:%($?/ &#,($%"M9"<,8 <++"#<&* (%%8/ $# <8<+$ <(8 %;#.;% $# :%%$ 

$*%/% (%7 &*<..%()%/@ E B%= "%D,'"%:%($ 9#" .#&<. -#8'%/ '/ $# ':+"#;% $*%'" 

&#,($%"M9"<,8 &<+<-'.'$=@ 

  

 

i  4( 01206 $*% E,8'$ P#::'//'#( &'$%8 <( %>%:+$'#( ,(8%" /%&$'#( 52G2IG<I #9 $*% 

N"%%8#: #9 4(9#":<$'#( GNQ4I E&$ G$*<$ 8'/&.#/,"% 7#,.8 -% .'B%.= $# +"%R,8'&% $*% 

+"%;%($'#( #" 8%$%&$'#( #9 &"':%I $# "%9,/% <( NQ4 "%D,%/$ 9#" &#,(&'.M/+%&'9'& 

<((,<. 8%$%&$%8 9"<,8 /,";%= "%/,.$/@ Q," &#(&%"( 7</ $*<$ 8'/&.#/,"% #9 $*% 

8<$< &#,.8 +"%R,8'&% $*% <-'.'$= $# +"%;%($ #" 8%$%&$ 9"<,8 '9 <(= +<"$'&,.<" 

<,$*#"'$=?/ $"<&B "%&#"8 '( $*'/ "%)<"8 7%"% $# -%&#:% +,-.'&@ A*% 4(9#":<$'#( 

P#::'//'#(%"?/ Q99'&% ,+*%.8 $*'/ %>%:+$'#(@ 4$ '/ 9#" '(8';'8,<. #")<('/<$'#(/ $# 

/%%B $*%'" #7( <8;'&% <(8 8%$%":'(% $*%'" "%/+#(/% $# <(= NQ4 "%D,%/$/@ 

62% of 

councils 

compared their 

detection levels 

with their 

peers, using 

our tailored 

fraud briefings

95



 

 

Audit Commission !"#$%&$'() $*% +,-.'& +,"/% 0123 46 
 

131 4,5'$#"/ 6(5 7"6,5 '(8%/$')6$#"/ 6."%659 *68% :6(9 #7 $*% /;'../ "%<,'"%5 

$# +"#8'5% 6( %77%&$'8% &#,($%"=7"6,5 /%"8'&%> 4.$*#,)* /#:% &#,(&'./ ,/% 

/,&* "%/#,"&%/ %77%&$'8%.9? $*'/ '/ 76" 7"#: ,('8%"/6.> 

132 @"#: 4+"'. 012A? $*% 4,5'$ B#::'//'#(C/ /$"6$%)'& &#,($%"=7"6,5 

6&$'8'$'%/ 6(5 $%6: D'.. $"6(/7%" $# BE!@4C/ B#,($%" @"6,5 B%($"%> F*% 

B%($"% '/ 6 /#,"&% #7 %G+%"$'/% 6(5 .%65%"/*'+ 7#" .#&6. )#8%"(:%($ 6(5 $*% 

D'5%" +,-.'& /%&$#" $# *%.+ #")6('/6$'#(/ :%%$ &*6..%()%/ '( $*% 7,$,"%> 

133 H'$* $*% /,++#"$ #7 $*% (%D B#,($%" @"6,5 B%($"%? $*% /%&$#" &6( 

%(*6(&% '(8%/$')6$'8% &6+6-'.'$9? %8%( D'$* 7%D%" /$677> F*% B%($"% &6( 

/,++#"$ :%6/,"%/ $# ':+"#8% '( /%8%"6. ':+#"$6($ 6"%6/I 

J Continuing to publish PPP. F*% B%($"% '($%(5 $# +,-.'/* 6 /':'.6" PPP 

"%+#"$ -6/%5 #( 6( 6((,6. /,"8%9 #7 5%$%&$%5 7"6,5 6(5 &#"",+$'#( '( 

K().'/* .#&6. 6,$*#"'$'%/> 

J Benchmarking performance> L%(&*:6";'() '/ &"'$'&6. $# ,(5%"/$6(5'() 

*#D D%.. 6( #")6('/6$'#( +%"7#":/> F*% B%($"% 7#" B#,($%" @"6,5 '($%(5 

$# &#($'(,% $# +,-.'/* '(5'8'5,6. 7"6,5 -"'%7'()/> E$ D'.. 6./# 5"6D #( 

BE!@4C/ %G+%"$'/% '( &#:+6"'() 56$6> 

J Professional training. F*% B%($"% D'.. 5%8%.#+ 6(5 #77%" +"#7%//'#(6. 

6&&"%5'$%5 $"6'('() 7#" $*% +,-.'& /%&$#" D'$* /+%&'7'& -%/+#;% 7#&,/ 7#" 

.#&6. )#8%"(:%($ '(8%/$')6$#"/> 

J Tools and other services. F*% B%($"% D'.. #77%" %=.%6"('() '( 6($'=

&#"",+$'#( 6(5 D*'/$.%-.#D'()? /,++#"$%5 -9 &#,($%"=7"6,5 /+%&'6.'/$/> 

M$*%" /%"8'&%/ D'.. '(&.,5% +"#7%//'#(6. (%$D#";/? $*#,)*$ .%65%"/*'+ 6(5 

7"6,5 6.%"$/> 

134 BE!@4 5#%/ (#$ *68% $*% /6:% -"%65$* #7 +#D%"/ $*6$ $*% 4,5'$ 

B#::'//'#( *6/ -%%( 6-.% $# 5%+.#9 $# /,++#"$ .#&6. )#8%"(:%($? '(&.,5'() 

+#D%"/ $# :6(56$% /,-:'//'#( #7 '(7#":6$'#( #( 7"6,5 5%$%&$'#( "%/,.$/> 

F*'/ &#,.5 D%6;%( $*% &#:+6"6$'8% 56$6 ,/%5 '( 7"6,5 -"'%7'()/>  

135  H% %(&#,"6)% 6.. &#,(&'./ 6(5 #$*%" +,-.'& -#5'%/ $# :6G':'/% $*% 

+#$%($'6. -%(%7'$/ #7 +6"$'&'+6$'#( D'$* $*% BE!@4 B#,($%" @"6,5 B%($"%> 

136 F*% 4,5'$ B#::'//'#( .%68%/ 6 /$"#() .%)6&9 '( &#,($%"=7"6,5> BE!@4 '/ 

D%.. +.6&%5 $# &#($'(,% $*'/ D#"; 6(5 *%.+ .#&6. )#8%"(:%($ '( '$/ 7')*$ 

6)6'(/$ 7"6,5> 

96



 

 

Audit Commission !"#$%&$'() $*% +,-.'& +,"/% 0123 47 
 

4++%(5'6 27 89$9 $9-.%/ #: 5%$%&$%5 :"9,5/ 9(5 
.#//%/ -; "%)'#( 

<9-.% =7 Detected frauds and losses 2013/14 by region compared to 

regional spend by councils

Region Council 

spending by 

region as 

percentage of 

total council 

spending in 

2012/13i 

Regional 

percentage of 

the total value 

of all detected 

frauds in 

2013/14 

Regional 

percentage of 

the number of 

all cases of 

detected frauds

in 2013/14 

><?<4@A >B222CD -'..'#(A >B2==CE F'..'#(A >213G2E0A 

H9/$ #: H().9(5 21CE ICI 21CE

H9/$ J'5.9(5/ DCD KC3 =CK

@#(5#( 2=C0 0DC2 01C=

L#"$*MH9/$ NC3 3C2 KCN

L#"$*MO%/$ 2ECK 21CI =CE

P#,$* H9/$ 2NC1 23CN 2NCD

P#,$*MO%/$ IC2 IC1 ICK

O%/$ J'5.9(5/ 21C= IC= 20CN

Q#"R/*'"% 9(5 

S,F-%" 21C2 =CE DCD

Source: Audit Commission (2014)  

 

i  T%)'#(9. /+%(5'() 59$9 :#" 012EU23 9"% (#$ ;%$ 9V9'.9-.%C S#W%V%"G $*% 

+"#+#"$'#(/ #: /+%(5'() '( %9&* "%)'#( 5# (#$ &*9()% F,&* :"#F ;%9" $# ;%9"C 

X#" $*'/ "%9/#(G <9-.% = '(&.,5%/ 0120U2E /+%(5 59$9 9/ 9 -%(&*F9"R 9)9'(/$ 

:"9,5 .#//%/ 9(5 5%$%&$%5 &9/%/ '( 012EU23C 

97



 

 

Audit Commission !"#$%&$'() $*% +,-.'& +,"/% 0123 48 
 

4++%(5'6 07 8*%&9.'/$ :#" &#,(&'..#"/ ;(5 #$*%"/ 
"%/+#(/'-.% :#" )#<%"(;(&% 

I. General Yes No Previous action 2014 Update

2= ># ?% *;<% ; @%"# $#.%";(&% +#.'&A 
$#?;"5/ :";,5B 

    

0= ># ?% *;<% $*% "')*$ ;++"#;&*C ;(5 
%::%&$'<% &#,($%"D:";,5 /$";$%)'%/C 
+#.'&'%/ ;(5 +.;(/B E;<% ?% ;.')(%5 
#," /$";$%)A ?'$* Fighting Fraud LocallyB 

    

F= ># ?% *;<% 5%5'&;$%5 &#,($%"D:";,5 
/$;::B 

    

3= ># &#,($%"D:";,5 /$;:: "%<'%? ;.. $*% 
?#"9 #: #," #");('/;$'#(B 

    

G= >#%/ ; &#,(&'..#" *;<% +#"$:#.'# 
"%/+#(/'-'.'$A :#" :')*$'() :";,5 ;&"#// 
$*% &#,(&'.B 

    

H= ># ?% "%&%'<% "%),.;" "%+#"$/ #( 
*#? ?%.. ?% ;"% $;&9.'() :";,5 "'/9/C 
&;""A'() #,$ +.;(/ ;(5 5%.'<%"'() 
#,$&#I%/B 

    

J= E;<% ?% "%&%'<%5 $*% .;$%/$ 4,5'$ 
8#II'//'#( :";,5 -"'%:'() +"%/%($;$'#( 
:"#I #," %6$%"(;. ;,5'$#"B 

    

K= E;<% ?% ;//%//%5 #," I;(;)%I%($ 
#: &#,($%"D:";,5 ?#"9 ;);'(/$ )##5 
+";&$'&%B 

    

L= ># ?% ";'/% ;?;"%(%// #: :";,5 "'/9/ 
?'$*7 

    

M (%? /$;:: N'(&.,5'() ;)%(&A /$;::OP     

M %6'/$'() /$;::P     

M %.%&$%5 I%I-%"/P ;(5     

M #," &#($";&$#"/B     

98



 

 

Audit Commission !"#$%&$'() $*% +,-.'& +,"/% 0123 49 
 

I. General Yes No Previous action 2014 Update

214 5# 6% 6#"7 6%.. 6'$* (8$'#(8.9 
"%)'#(8. 8(: .#&8. (%$6#"7/ 8(: 
+8"$(%"/*'+/ $# %(/,"% 6% 7(#6 8-#,$ 
&,""%($ ;"8,: "'/7/ 8(: '//,%/< 

    

224 5# 6% 6#"7 6%.. 6'$* #$*%" 
#")8('/8$'#(/ $# %(/,"% 6% %;;%&$'=%.> 
/*8"% 7(#6.%:)% 8(: :8$8 8-#,$ ;"8,: 
8(: ;"8,:/$%"/< 

    

204 5# 6% ':%($';> 8"%8/ 6*%"% #," 
'($%"(8. &#($"#./ ?8> (#$ -% +%";#"?'() 
8/ 6%.. 8/ '($%(:%:< @#6 A,'&7.> :# 
6% $*%( $87% 8&$'#(< 

    

2B4 5# 6% ?8C'?'/% $*% -%(%;'$ #; #," 
+8"$'&'+8$'#( '( $*% D,:'$ E#??'//'#( 
F8$'#(8. G"8,: H('$'8$'=% 8(: "%&%'=% 
"%+#"$/ #( #," #,$&#?%/< 

    

234 5# 6% *8=% 8""8()%?%($/ '( +.8&% 
$*8$ %(&#,"8)% #," /$8;; $# "8'/% $*%'" 
&#(&%"(/ 8-#,$ ?#(%> .8,(:%"'()< 

    

2I4 5# 6% *8=% %;;%&$'=% 8""8()%?%($/ 
;#"J 

    

K "%+#"$'() ;"8,:<     

K "%&#":'() ;"8,:<     

2L4 5# 6% *8=% %;;%&$'=%  
6*'/$.%M-.#6'() 8""8()%?%($/4  
H( +8"$'&,.8" 8"% /$8;;J 

    

K 868"% #; #," 6*'/$.%M-.#6'() 
8""8()%?%($/< 

    

K *8=% &#(;':%(&% '( $*% 
&#(;':%($'8.'$> #; $*#/% 
8""8()%?%($/< 

    

K &#(;':%($ $*8$ 8(> &#(&%"(/ 
"8'/%: 6'.. -% 8::"%//%:< 

    

2N4 5# 6% *8=% %;;%&$'=% ;':%.'$> 
'(/,"8(&% 8""8()%?%($/< 

    

 

 

99



 

 

Audit Commission !"#$%&$'() $*% +,-.'& +,"/% 0123 50 
 

445 Fighting fraud with reduced 
resources 

Yes No Previous action 2014 Update

265 7"% 8% &#(9':%($ $*;$ 8% *;<% 
/,99'&'%($ &#,($%"=9";,: &;+;&'$> ;(: 
&;+;-'.'$> $# :%$%&$ ;(: +"%<%($ 9";,:? 
#(&% @A4@ *;/ -%%( 9,..> 
'B+.%B%($%:C 

    

2D5 E': 8% ;++.> 9#" ; /*;"% #9 $*%  
F2G B'..'#( &*;..%()% 9,(:'() 9"#B 
EHIJ $# /,++#"$ &#,(&'./ '( $;&K.'() 
(#(=-%(%9'$ 9";,:/ ;9$%" $*% @A4@ '/ '( 
+.;&%C 

    

015 49 /,&&%//9,.? ;"% 8% ,/'() $*% 
B#(%> %99%&$'<%.>C 

    

III. Current risks and issues Yes No Previous action 2014 Update 

Housing tenancy

025 E# 8% $;K% +"#+%" ;&$'#( $# 
%(/,"% $*;$ 8% #(.> ;..#&;$% /#&';. 
*#,/'() $# $*#/% 8*# ;"% %.')'-.%C 

    

005 E# 8% $;K% +"#+%" ;&$'#( $# 
%(/,"% $*;$ /#&';. *#,/'() '/ #&&,+'%: 
-> $*#/% $# 8*#B '$ '/ ;..#&;$%:C 

    

Procurement

0L5 7"% 8% /;$'/9'%: #," +"#&,"%B%($ 
&#($"#./ ;"% 8#"K'() ;/ '($%(:%:C 

    

035 M;<% 8% "%<'%8%: #," &#($";&$ 
.%$$'() +"#&%:,"%/ '( .'(% 8'$* -%/$ 
+";&$'&%C 

    

Recruitment     

0N5 7"% 8% /;$'/9'%: #," "%&",'$B%($ 
+"#&%:,"%/ 

    

O +"%<%($ ,/ %B+.#>'() +%#+.% 
8#"K'() ,(:%" 9;./% ':%($'$'%/P 

    

O &#(9'"B %B+.#>B%($ 
"%9%"%(&%/ %99%&$'<%.>P 

    

O %(/,"% ;++.'&;($/ ;"% %.')'-.% 
$# 8#"K '( $*% QRP ;(: 

    

O "%S,'"% ;)%(&'%/ /,++.>'() ,/ 
8'$* /$;99 $# ,(:%"$;K% $*% 
&*%&K/ $*;$ 8% "%S,'"%C 

    

100



 

 

Audit Commission !"#$%&$'() $*% +,-.'& +,"/% 0123 51 
 

III. Current risks and issues

(continued)
Yes No Previous action 2014 Update

Personal budgets

045 6*%"% 7% 8"% %9+8(:'() $*% ,/% 
#; +%"/#(8. -,:)%$/ ;#" 8:,.$ /#&'8. 
&8"%< '( +8"$'&,.8" :'"%&$ +8=>%($/< 
*8?% 7% '($"#:,&%: +"#+%" 
/8;%),8":'() +"#+#"$'#(8$% $# "'/@ 8(: 
'( .'(% 7'$* "%&#>>%(:%: )##: 
+"8&$'&%A 

    

0B5 C8?% 7% ,+:8$%: #," 7*'/$.%D
-.#7'() 8""8()%>%($/< ;#" -#$* /$8;; 
8(: &'$'E%(/< /# $*8$ $*%= >8= "8'/% 
&#(&%"(/ 8-#,$ $*% ;'(8(&'8. 8-,/% #; 
+%"/#(8. -,:)%$/A 

   

Council tax discount    

0F5 G# 7% $8@% +"#+%" 8&$'#( $# 
%(/,"% $*8$ 7% #(.= 878": :'/&#,($/ 
8(: 8..#78(&%/ $# $*#/% 7*# 8"% 
%.')'-.%A 

    

Housing benefit

0H5 6*%( 7% $8&@.% *#,/'() -%(%;'$ 
;"8,: :# 7% >8@% ;,.. ,/% #;I 

    

J K8$'#(8. L"8,: M('$'8$'?%N     

J G%+8"$>%($ ;#" 6#"@ 8(: 
!%(/'#(/ C#,/'() O%(%;'$ 
>8$&*'() /%"?'&%N  

    

J '($%"(8. :8$8 >8$&*'()N 8(:     

J +"'?8$% /%&$#" :8$8 >8$&*'()A     

IV. Other fraud risks Yes No Previous 

action

2014 Update

P15 G# 7% *8?% 8++"#+"'8$% 8(: 
+"#+#"$'#(8$% :%;%(&%/ 8)8'(/$ $*% 
;#..#7'() ;"8,: "'/@/I 

    

J -,/'(%// "8$%/N     

J Q')*$ $# O,=     

J &#,(&'. $89 "%:,&$'#(N     

J /&*##./N 8(:     

J )"8($/A     

101



 

 

Audit Commission !"#$%&$'() $*% +,-.'& +,"/% 0123 52 
 

 

 

102



 

 

Audit Commission !"#$%&$'() $*% +,-.'& +,"/% 0123 53 
 

4++%(5'6 78 9:/% /$,5'%/8 $:")%$'() ;":,5/$%"/< 
;'(:(&':. "%&#=%"> ?'( +:"$'&,.:" ,/% #; !@94A 

Case study 4 

Recruitment payroll fraud -  pension pot
recovered (total value £414,415)

B C( D,.> 0120< : &#,(&'. /,&&%//;,..> +"#/%&,$%5 $*% 

E%:5 #; $*%'" F#,$* @;;%(5'() $%:G :(5 /%=%":. &#H

&#(/+'":$#"/ ;#" +:>"#.. ;":,5I C( &#..,/'#( J'$* 

%G+.#>%%/ :$ : "%&",'$G%($ :)%(&>< $*% %G+.#>%% 

:,$*#"'/%5 +:>G%($/ ;#" /%=%":. (#(H%6'/$%($ 

$%G+#":"> :)%(&> /$:;;I K*% ;":,5 J:/ ;'"/$ -"#,)*$ $# 

$*% :$$%($'#( #; $*% &#,(&'. -> : J*'/$.%-.#J%"I 

B K*% %G+.#>%% J:/ ;#,(5 ),'.$> #; &#(/+'":&> $# 

5%;":,5 $*% &#,(&'. :(5 /%($%(&%5 $# ;'=% >%:"/ :(5 

/'6 G#($*/ '( +"'/#(I K*% &#H&#(/+'":$#"/ J%"% :./# 

;#,(5 ),'.$> :(5 /%($%(&%5 $# ;#," >%:"/< $J# >%:"/< 

:(5 2L G#($*/ "%/+%&$'=%.>I 

B C( 0123< $*% &#,(&'. J:/ :J:"5%5 : $#$:. #; M323<32N 

'( ;'(:(&':. "%/$'$,$'#( ;"#G $*% ;":,5/$%"/< '( +:"$ 

$*"#,)* /,&&%//;,. !@94 O,5)%G%($/I K*'/ '(&.,5%5 

M0LP<32N "%&#=%"%5 ;"#G $*% ;":,5/$%"/Q +%(/'#( 

,(5%" +"#='/'#(/ J'$*'( $*% R#&:. S#=%"(G%($ !%(/'#( 

T&*%G%I  

Source: Audit Commission (2014)

 

 

103



 

 

Audit Commission !"#$%&$'() $*% +,-.'& +,"/% 0123 54 
 

Case study 5 

Prevention of Social Housing Fraud Act - 
unlawful profit order of £31,000  

4 5( %6".7 01238 6 +"%9#:'(6($.7 ;#(9#(<-6/%9 *#,/'() 

6//#&'6$'#( =6/ #(% #> $*% >'"/$ /#&'6. *#,/'() 

+"#?'9%"/ $# )6'( 6( @(.6=>,. !"#>'$ A"9%" ,(9%" $*% 

!"%?%($'#( #> B#&'6. C#,/'() D"6,9 E&$F G*'/ 6..#=/ 

/#&'6. .6(9.#"9/ $# /%%H 6 :#(%7 I,9)%:%($ 6)6'(/$ 

$*%'" $%(6($ =*%"% '..%)6. /,-<.%$$'() *6/ #&&,""%9F 

4 A( 6 "#,$'(% ?'/'$8 6 *#,/'() #>>'&%" -%&6:% /,/+'&'#,/ 

6-#,$ '..%)6. /,-<.%$$'() 6>$%" /%%'() 6( ,(>6:'.'6" 

+%"/#( '( 6 +"#+%"$7F G*% #>>'&%" 9'/&#?%"%9 $*6$ $*% 

#>>'&'6. $%(6($ *69 .'?%9 6(9 =#"H%9 '( B+6'( >#" 6$ 

.%6/$ $*% .6/$ $=# 6(9 6 *6.> 7%6"/F 

4 G*% &#,"$ #"9%"%9 $*% $%(6($ $# +67 $*% *#,/'() 

6//#&'6$'#( JK281118 +.,/ &#/$/F G*% +"#+%"$7 =6/ 

"%&#?%"%9 6(9 '::%9'6$%.7 "%<.%$F 

Source: Audit Commission (2014)

 

104



 

 

Audit Commission !"#$%&$'() $*% +,-.'& +,"/% 0123 55 
 

Case study 6 

Procurement fraud and POCA

4 5( 01236 7 &#,(&'. /,&&%//8,..9 #-$7'(%: 7 &#(8'/&7$'#( 

#":%" ,(:%" $*% !"#&%%:/ #8 ;"'<% =&$ 8#" >?@6111A 

B*'/ "%.7$%: $# $*% 7<#,($ 7( %<+.#9%% *7: -%%( 

'..%)7..9 +7': $# +"#C':% &#(8':%($'7. &#($"7&$ 

'(8#"<7$'#(A 

4 B*% %<+.#9%%D/ "%/+#(/'-'.'$'%/ '(&.,:%: 7E7":'() 

&#,(&'. &#($"7&$/ 8#" 5;B %F,'+<%($A 5( $*'/ "#.%6 $*% 

%<+.#9%% '($"#:,&%: $E# (%E /,++.'%"/ $# $*% 

&#,(&'.D/ 7++"#C%: $%(:%" .'/$6 /,-/%F,%($.9 7:C'/'() 

$*%< #8 $%(:%" /,-<'//'#(/ -9 &#<+%$'() &#<+7('%/A 

B*'/ %(7-.%: $*% $E# &#<+7('%/ &#(&%"(%: $# 

,(:%"-': &#<+%$'$'C% "'C7./ $# /%&,"% $*% &#($"7&$/A 

4 B*% 8"7,: E7/ ':%($'8'%: 7/ 7 "%/,.$ #8 '(8#"<7$'#( 

+"#C':%: -9 7( 7(#(9<#,/ '(8#"<7($A 

4 B*% %<+.#9%% E7/ :'/<'//%:6 /,-/%F,%($.9 8#,(: 

),'.$9 ,(:%" $*% G"7,: =&$ 7(: /%($%(&%: $# $E# 9%7"/ 

'<+"'/#(<%($A  

Source: Audit Commission (2014)

 

105



 

 

Audit Commission !"#$%&$'() $*% +,-.'& +,"/% 0123 56 
 

Case study 7 

Benefit fraud (£43,000), POCA award of nearly 
£1.2 million

4 56%" 7 8#,"9:%7" +%"'#; 7 *,/-7(; 7(; <'8% =7;% 

87./% /$7$%=%($/ 7/ $# $*%'" "%.7$'#(/*'+ 7(; /$#.% 

/#=%-#;: %./%>/ ';%($'$: ?$# &"%7$% 7 (#(9%@'/$%($ 

.7(;.#";AB $# 8"7,;,.%($.: &.7'= *#,/'() -%(%8'$ <#"$* 

C3DB111 8"#= 7 &#,(&'.E 

4 F*% =#(%: &.7'=%; <7/ ,/%; $# 8'(7(&% 7( 

%@$"767)7($ .'8%/$:.%B '(&.,;'() +,"&*7/%/ #8 $<# /+#"$/ 

&7"/B %@+%(/'6% <7$&*%/ 7(; (%7".: C211B111 #8 

=,/'&7. %G,'+=%($E H,-/%G,%($ %(G,'"'%/ -: $*% 

&#,(&'.>/ 8'(7(&'7. '(6%/$')7$#" %/$7-.'/*%; $*7$ $*% 

*,/-7(; #<(%; 7 +"#+%"$: 7-"#7; <#"$* '( %@&%// #8 

C2 ='..'#(B *7; 8,"$*%" .7(; *#.;'()/ 7(; /%6%"7. 

-,/'(%//%/ '( $*% IJ 7(; 7-"#7;B '(&.,;'() $<# 

=#(%: $"7(/8%" &#=+7('%/E K% 7./# *7; /%6%"7. 

-,/'(%// 7(; -7(L 7&&#,($/E 

4 F*% 8"7,;/$%"/ +.%7;%; ),'.$: $# 2M N"7,; O&$B F*%8$ 

O&$B +%"P,": 7(; '==')"7$'#( #88%(&%/E F*% 8"7,;/$%"/ 

<%"% /%($%(&%; $# D1 =#($*/ '( +"'/#( 7(; 20 =#($*/> 

/,/+%(;%; /%($%(&% "%/+%&$'6%.:E 

4 I/'() $*% 8'(;'()/ #8 $*% 8'(7(&'7. '(6%/$')7$#">/ 

%(G,'"'%/ '($# $*% 8'(7(&'7. *'/$#": #8 $*% 8"7,;/$%"/B 7 

/,-/%G,%($ !5QO *%7"'() 7<7";%; C2B2MRB111 '( 7 

&#(8'/&7$'#( #";%"B $# -% +7'; -: $*% *,/-7(;E F*% 

&#,(&'. '/ ;,% C3MRB111 #8 $*'/ 7<7";E 

4 F*% 8"7,;/$%" *,/-7(; /,-/%G,%($.: +7'; C22BS3M #8 

$*% 7=#,($ 7<7";%;E T( .7$% 012DB *% .%8$ $*% IJ 7(; 

'/ (#< "%/';%($ 7-"#7;E O( 7""%/$ <7""7($ *7/ -%%( 

'//,%;E 

Source: Audit Commission (2014)

 

106



 

 

Audit Commission !"#$%&$'() $*% +,-.'& +,"/% 0123 57 
 

Case study 8 

Recovery of 23 council houses from 
fraudsters

4 5( 01226 7 &#,(&'.8/ 9"7,: $%7; ,(&#<%"%: #(% #9 $*% 

&#,($"=8/ -'))%/$ %<%" $%(7(&= 9"7,: &7/%/> ?<%" 7 

$*"%% =%7" +%"'#:6 7 &#,(&'. %;+.#=%% :%7.'() @'$* 

*#;%.%// +%#+.% *7: #+%"7$%: 7 /&*%;% $# +"#&%// 

-#),/ *#,/'() 7++.'&7$'#(/ $# 9"7,:,.%($.= #-$7'( 

&#,(&'. *#;%/> !"#+%"$'%/ @%"% /,-/%A,%($.= 

7..#&7$%: $# $*% 9"7,:/$%"8/ 97;'.=6 &.#/% 7//#&'7$%/ 

7(: .7$%" $*#/% @'..'() $# +7=> B*% 9"7,:/$%" ,/%: 97C% 

':%($'$'%/6 97./% +%"/#(7. :7$7 7(: 9"7,:,.%($.= 

7:D,/$%: *#,/'() 7++.'&7$'#( 9#";/ $# ;7C% $*% &#E

:%9%(:7($/ F*')* +"'#"'$=G 9#" *#,/'()> 

4 B*% 9"7,: @7/ 9'"/$ ':%($'9'%: $*"#,)* H7$'#(7. I"7,: 

5('$'7$'<% :7$7 J?+%"7$'#( K;-%"*'..8 ;7$&*%/> 

L,-/%A,%($ '(<%/$')7$'#(/ 9#,(: 7 +7$$%"( #9 97./% 

:#&,;%($7$'#( -%'() ,/%: $# #-$7'( /#&'7. *#,/'()> 

M(A,'"'%/ @'$* $*% NO P#":%"/ K)%(&= 7(: QRST 

%/$7-.'/*%: $*7$ /%<%( #9 $*% +"#+%"$'%/ @%"% 7..#&7$%: 

$# +%#+.% (#$ .%)7..= 7..#@%: $# -% '( $*% NO>  

4 T#,(&'. '(<%/$')7$#"/ 9#,(: 7 +7$$%"( @*%"% /')('9'&7($ 

#(%E#99 +7=;%($/ @#,.: -% ;7:% $# $*% 9"7,:/$%"8/ 

-7(C 7&&#,($> K 9%@ :7=/ .7$%" 7 +"#+%"$= @#,.: -% 

7..#&7$%: $# $*% '(:'<':,7. ;7C'() $*% +7=;%($> 

4 5( $#$7.6 0U +"#+%"$'%/ @%"% 9"7,:,.%($.= 7..#&7$%:6 ;#/$ 

#9 @*'&* *7<% 7."%7:= -%%( "%&#<%"%: -= $*% &#,(&'.>  

4 B*% 9"7,:/$%" +.%7:%: ),'.$= $# $"7(/9%""'() &"';'(7. 

+"#+%"$= 7(: '( V7(,7"= 0123 *% @7/ /%($%(&%: $# 

9#," =%7"/ '( +"'/#(> B*% &#E:%9%(:7($/6 @*# '(&.,:%: 

$*% ;#$*%" 7(: 7 9#";%" @'9% #9 $*% &,.+"'$6 "%&%'<%: 

/,/+%(:%: /%($%(&%/ "7()'() 9"#; /'W $# %')*$ 

;#($*/6 7(: #$*%" +%(7.$'%/ '(&.,:'() &,"9%@/ 7(: 

&#;;,('$= /%"<'&%> 

Source: Audit Commission (2014)

 

107



 

 

Audit Commission !"#$%&$'() $*% +,-.'& +,"/% 0123 58 
 

Case study 9 

Benefit fraudster with over 30 bank accounts – 
POCA confiscation order of £150,000

4 5( 01226 7 &#,(&'. '('$'7..8 '9%($':'%9 $*"#,)* 97$7 

;7$&*'() $*7$ 7 -%(%:'$ &.7';7($ *79 $<# ,(9%&.7"%9 

-7(= 7&&#,($/> ?,"$*%" %(@,'"'%/ %/$7-.'/*%9 $*% 

&.7';7($ *79 #A%" B1 /,&* ,(9%&.7"%9 -7(= 7&&#,($/ 

'( #+%"7$'#( #A%" 7 $%( 8%7" +%"'#9> C,"'() $*7$ $';% 

$*% &.7';7($ *79 "%&%'A%9 #A%" D3B6111 '( -%(%:'$/> E 

"%/$"7'($ #"9%" <7/ +.7&%9 #( $*%/% -7(= 7&&#,($/ 

,(9%" $*% !"#&%%9/ #: F"';% E&$6 $# +"%A%($ $*%; 

-%'() ,/%9> 

4 G*% '(9'A'9,7. <7/ /,-/%@,%($.8 :#,(9 ),'.$8 #: $<# 

&#,($/ #: -%(%:'$ :"7,9 ,(9%" $*% H#&'7. H%&,"'$8 

E9;'('/$"7$'#( E&$ 7(9 "%&%'A%9 7 /'I ;#($* &,/$#9'7. 

/%($%(&%>  

4 5( 01236 7 !JFE &#(:'/&7$'#( #"9%" #: D2K16111 <7/ 

;79% 7)7'(/$ $*% :"7,9/$%"6 #: <*'&* #A%" D3B6111 

"%.7$%9 $# $*% &#,(&'. :#" $*% :"7,9,.%($ *#,/'() -%(%:'$ 

+78;%($/> G*%/% ;#('%/ *7A% (#< -%%( +7'9 -7&= -8 

$*% :"7,9/$%">  

H#,"&%L E,9'$ F#;;'//'#( M0123N 

 

108



 

 

Audit Commission !"#$%&$'() $*% +,-.'& +,"/% 0123 59 
 

Case study 10

Right to Buy fraud and benefit fraud  

4 5( 01216 7 &#,+.% 7++.'%8 $# +,"&*7/% $*%'" &#,(&'. 

*#9% ,(8%" :')*$ $# ;,< =#" >2?@61116 A'$* 7 8'/&#,($ 

#= >B?6111C D*% +,"&*7/% A7/ (#$ &#(/'/$%($ A'$* $*%'" 

='(7(&'7. &'"&,9/$7(&%/6 7/ $*%< A%"% .#() $%"9 -%(%='$ 

&.7'97($/ #( .#A '(&#9%C E/ +7"$ #= $*% &#,(&'.F/ 7($'G

9#(%< .7,(8%"'() +#.'&<6 %(H,'"'%/ A%"% $*%( 978% $# 

%/$7-.'/* *#A $*% +"#+%"$< +,"&*7/% A#,.8 -% 

='(7(&%8C 

4 I(H,'"'%/ "%J%7.%8 $*% &#,+.% *78 /7J'()/ '( %K&%// 

#= >B161116 A*'&* *78 (#$ -%%( 8%&.7"%8 '( $*% &#,"/% 

#= &.7'9'() -%(%='$/C D*% 9#"$)7)% $# =,(8 $*% 

+,"&*7/% A7/ $# -% >23L6111C D# #-$7'( $*% 9#"$)7)%6 

#(% 8%=%(87($ '(=.7$%8 *'/ '(&#9% 7(8 7 &#9+.%$%.< 

=7./% '(&#9% A7/ 8%&.7"%8 =#" $*% #$*%"6 A*# *78 (#$ 

A#"M%8 =#" #J%" 2@ <%7"/C 

4 5( N7"&* 01206 $*% 8%=%(87($/ +.%78%8 ),'.$< $# 

-%(%='$ ="7,8 #==%(&%/ 7(8 9#(%< .7,(8%"'() $#$7..'() 

#J%" >216111C D*%< "%&%'J%8 7 20 9#($* O#99,('$< 

P"8%"6 2@1 *#,"/ ,(+7'8 A#"M6 7( %J%('() &,"=%A 7(8 

%.%&$"#('& $7))'()C  

4 E$ 7 /,-/%H,%($ &#(='/&7$'#( *%7"'()6 $*% &#,(&'. A%"% 

7A7"8%8 #J%" >316111 '( "%.7$'#( $# -#$* $*% :')*$ $# 

;,< 7(8 -%(%='$ ="7,8/6 A*'&* *7/ -%%( "%+7'8 '( =,..C 

Source: Audit Commission (2014)

 

109



 

 

Audit Commission !"#$%&$'() $*% +,-.'& +,"/% 0123 60 
 

Case study 11

Housing officer fraudulently sub-letting 
council house

4 5( 01216 7 &#,(&'. *#,/'() #88'&%" &"%7$%9 87./% 

9#&,:%($/6 8#")%9 /')(7$,"%/ 7(9 &#+'%9 &#(8'9%($'7. 

&#,(&'.;*%.9 '(8#":7$'#( $# &"%7$% $*% 87./% ':+"%//'#( 

#8 7 <#.,($7"= $%(7(&= %>&*7()% 8#" $?# &#,(&'. 

*#:%/@ 5(/$%796 $*% *#,/'() #88'&%" ,/%9 $*% 

/,-/%A,%($ &#($"#. #<%" #(% +"#+%"$= B$*7$ *79 

/,++#/%9.= -%%( $"7(/8%""%9 $# 7 (%? $%(7($C6 $# 

8"7,9,.%($.= /,-;.%$ $*7$ +"#+%"$= 8#" DE11 +%" :#($*@ 

4 F*% 8"7,9 &7:% $# $*% 7$$%($'#( #8 $*% .#&7. 7,$*#"'$= 

7/ 7 "%/,.$ #8 7( ,("%.7$%9 %(A,'"= -= $*% $%(7($ #8 $*% 

8"7,9/$%" $# $*% &#,(&'.@ 

4 F*% #"')'(7. $%(7($ *79 "%$,"(%9 $*% G%=/ #8 $*% 

+"#+%"$= $# $*% &#,(&'. '( 0121 7(9 ?7/ (#? .'<'() 

7-"#79@ H% *79 (# G(#?.%9)% #8 $*% $%(7(&= 

%>&*7()%6 7(9 *'/ /')(7$,"% *79 -%%( 87./'8'%9 #( 

$"7(/8%" 9#&,:%($/@ 

4 F*% *#,/'() #88'&%" ?7/ 9'/:'//%9 8#" )"#// 

:'/&#(9,&$6 +.%79%9 ),'.$= $# $?# #88%(&%/ #8 8"7,9 -= 

7-,/% #8 +#/'$'#( 7(9 :7G'() 7(9 /,++.='() 7"$'&.%/ 

8#" ,/% '( 8"7,9@ F*% 8"7,9/$%" ?7/ /%($%(&%9 $# $?# 

=%7"/ 7(9 $%( :#($*/I ':+"'/#(:%($@ 

4 5( 01236 7 !JKL &#(8'/&7$'#( *%7"'() 8#,(9 $*% 

8"7,9/$%" *79 #-$7'(%9 7 .'8%/$=.% -%(%8'$ #8 #<%" 

DMM6111@ L/ 7 "%/,.$6 $*% &#,(&'. ?7/ 7?7"9%9 

D2N6NO26 "%+"%/%($'() *7.8 #8 $*% %A,'$= 7<7'.7-.% #( 

$*% 8"7,9/$%"I/ #?( +"#+%"$=6 ?*'&* *% P#'($.= #?(%9 

?'$* *'/ ?'8%@ 

Source: Audit Commission (2014)

 

110



 

 

Audit Commission !"#$%&$'() $*% +,-.'& +,"/% 0123 61 
 

4%5%"%(&%/ 

 
2  67$'#(7. 8"7,9 :,$*#"'$;< :((,7. 8"7,9 =(9'&7$#" 012>< 67$'#(7. 8"7,9 

:,$*#"'$;< 012> 

0  67$'#(7. ?"'@% :)%(&;< A")7('/%9 &"'@% )"#,+/< 6?:< 0123 B$7C%( 5"#@ 

6?: D%-/'$%E *$$+EFFDDDG(7$'#(7.&"'@%7)%(&;G)#HG,CF&"'@%I

$*"%7$/F#")7('/%9I&"'@%I)"#,+/J 

>  67$'#(7. ?"'@% :)%(&;< K%"'#,/ 7(9 A")7('/%9 ?"'@% K$"7$%); 0123< 

6?:< 0123 

3  :,9'$ ?#@@'//'#(< !"#$%&$'() $*% +,-.'& +,"/% 012>< :,9'$ ?#@@'//'#(< 

012> 

L  67$'#(7. :,9'$ A55'&%< 6:A ?#@@,('&7$'#( D'$* &#@+#(%($ 7,9'$#"/ 

0123 I M%+7"$@%($ 5#" N9,&7$'#(E ?#(/#.'97$'#( #5 :&79%@'%/< 6:A< 

0123 

O  8')*$'() 8"7,9 P#&7..;< K&*##./ 8"7,9 Q%7.$* ?*%&C< ?=!8:< 0123 

R  QS T#H%"(@%($< !,$$'() !%#+.% 8'"/$E 7 K*7"%9 U'/'#( 7(9 ?#@@'$@%($ 

$# $*% V"7(/5#"@7$'#( #5 :9,.$ K#&'7. ?7"%< QS T#H%"(@%($< 011R 

W  :,9'$ ?#@@'//'#(< P#&7. 7,$*#"'$; D7/$% @7(7)%@%($E ,/'() 97$7 5"#@ 

$*% H7.,% 5#" @#(%; +"#5'.%/< :,9'$ ?#@@'//'#(< 0123 

X  :,9'$ ?#@@'//'#(< Y,/'(%// "7$%/E ,/'() 97$7 5"#@ $*% H7.,% 5#" @#(%; 

+"#5'.%/< :,9'$ ?#@@'//'#(< 012> 

21  ?*7"$%"%9 =(/$'$,$% #5 Q#,/'()< 6%D 7++"#7&*%/ '( $7&C.'() $%(7(&; 

5"7,9< ?*7"$%"%9 =(/$'$,$% #5 Q#,/'()< 0123 

22 ?*7"$%"%9 =(/$'$,$% #5 !,-.'& 8'(7(&% 7(9 :&&#,($7(&;< ?=!8: ?#9% #5 

!"7&$'&% #( S7(7)'() $*% 4'/C #5 8"7,9 7(9 ?#"",+$'#(< ?=!8:< 011OG 

20 :$$#"(%; T%(%"7.Z/ A55'&%< 8"7,9 4%H'%D [ 8'(7. 4%+#"$< :$$#"(%;I

T%(%"7.Z/ A55'&%< 011OG  

2>  :,9'$ ?#@@'//'#(< !"#$%&$'() $*% +,-.'& +,"/% 0121< :,9'$ ?#@@'//'#(< 

0121 

23  \7"@'()$#(< M< !%"/+%&$'H%/ #5 D*# &#@@'$/ *#,/'() -%(%5'$ 5"7,9< 

]('H%"/'$; #5 !#"$/@#,$*< 011R 

 

2L  A55'&% 5#" 67$'#(7. K$7$'/$'&/< !,-.'& K%&$#" N@+.#;@%($ ^2 0123 V7-.% >< 

A6K< 0123 B$7C%( 5"#@< A6K D%-/'$%E 

*$$+EFFDDDG#(/G)#HG,CF#(/F97$7/%$/I7(9I

111



 

 

Audit Commission !"#$%&$'() $*% +,-.'& +,"/% 0123 62 
 

                                                                                                                           

 

 

$4-.%/5'(6%78*$9.:+4)%;'<%=>1?/#"$@A=(#(%?/#"$B'"%&$'#(=(#(%?(%CD

,%"A=.#&4.E)#F%"(9%($E%().4(6E/$4GGH 

2I J//#&'4$'#( #G K%"$'G'%6 L"4,6 M749'(%"/N O%+#"$ $# $*% P4$'#(N JKLMN 

0123 

2Q  R#&4. J,$*#"'$A S(F%/$')4$'() TGG'&%"/ U"#,+N L')*$'() L"4,6 '( $*% L,$,"%N 

RJSTUN 0123 

2V  K*4"$%"%6 S(/$'$,$% #G !,-.'& L'(4(&% ? J&&#,($4(&AN K#6% #G L"4,6 O'/W 

X4(4)%9%($N KS!LJN 0123 

112



 

REPORT FOR: 

 

GOVERNANCE, AUDIT, 

RISK MANAGEMENT  

AND STANDARDS 

COMMITTEE 

Date of Meeting: 1 December 2014 

 

Subject: 

 

 

INFORMATION REPORT – 

Internal Audit Mid-Year Report 

2014/15 

 

Responsible Officer: 

 
Simon George – Director of Finance & 
Assurance  

 

Exempt: 

 

 
No 

Enclosures: 

 

Appendix 1 – Internal Audit Mid Year 
Report 2014/15 
Appendix 2 - Suspected Financial 
Irregularities  
Appendix 3 – Follow-up of High Risk 
Recommendations Part Implemented/In 
Progress/Planned or Not Implemented  

 

Section 1 – Summary 
 
 
This report sets out progress against the 2014/15 Internal Audit plan and key 
issues arising from work undertaken. 
FOR INFORMATION  

Agenda Item 11
Pages 113 to 128

113



 

 

Section 2 – Report 
 
2.1. Annually the GARMS Committee considers a mid and full year Internal 

Audit Report covering progress against the Internal Audit plan.  This is 
the mid year report for 2014/15 (Appendix 1). It includes a report on 
Suspected Financial Irregularities (Appendix 2) and a report on the 
follow-up of high risk recommendations that are part implemented/in 
progress/planned or not implemented (Appendix 3).   

 
2.2 Overall 48% of the plan has been completed at mid year exceeding the 

45% target.  This includes 100% of the planned work on the Authority’s 
core financial systems; the 2013/14 annual review of governance and 
preparation of the Annual Governance Statement along with the 2013/14 
management assurance exercise; review and co-ordination of the 
Corporate Risk Register for quarters 1 and 2; investigation of suspected 
financial irregularities; provision of professional advice on control and 
risk management and follow-ups.  All assurance ratings at follow-up 
have been re-assessed as green showing improvement in the control 
environment as a result of internal audit work. 

 
 
2.3 In the first quarter of every financial year the work of the Internal Audit 

team concentrates on the authority’s core financial systems.  The 
systems are reviewed on a 3 year risk based cycle.  Three of the 9 
systems were reviewed in the first quarter of 2014/15 and control self-
assessments were completed for the other 6 systems.  In addition, to 
satisfy the requirements of the External Auditors, managers were asked 
to review and update systems documentation and Internal Audit 
undertook walkthrough tests to confirm the actual system in operation for 
all core financial systems.   Out of a total of 32 controls reviewed, 21 
(66%) were fully operating, 6 (19%) were substantially operating and 5 
(15%) were partially operating.  

         
2.4 Overall 6 (86%) of the Internal Audit performance targets have been met 

or exceeded. Four (57%) of the performance targets have been 
exceeded, 2 (29%) have been fully met and 1 target has not been met. 
Performance indicator 4 (target met for issue of draft report after the end 
of fieldwork) missed the target by 3% as 2 reports did not meet the target 
due Auditors being diverted to undertake an investigation which caused 
a delay in the issue of the reports. 

 
2.5 2 of the 3 Corporate Audit Indicators have not been met although both 

show considerable improvement since last reported.    
 

Section 3 – Further Information 
 
3.1  The next report on the performance of the Internal Audit team will be the 

2014/15 Year-End Report to be submitted to GARM Committee in July 
2015. 

 

114



 

Section 4 – Financial Implications 

 
4.1 There are no financial implications to this report. 
 

Section 5 - Equalities implications 
 
5.1 There are no equalities implications. 
 

Section 6 – Corporate Priorities  
 
6.1 Internal Audit contributes to all the corporate priorities by enhancing the 

robustness of the control environment and governance mechanisms 
that directly or indirectly support these priorities. 

 
 
 
 
 
 

   
 

Name: Simon George √  Chief Financial Officer 
  
Date: 10/11/14 

   

 
 

Section 7 - Contact Details and Background 

Papers 
 
Contact:  Susan Dixson, Head of Internal Audit, Tel: 0208 424 1420 
 
 
Background Papers:  None 

 

115



116

This page is intentionally left blank



2
0
1
4
/1

5
 I
N

T
E

R
N

A
L

 A
U

D
IT

 M
ID

-Y
E

A
R

 R
E

P
O

R
T

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

A
P

P
E

N
D

IX
 1

 
 

 1
. 

T
a
b
le

 1
 b

e
lo

w
 d

e
ta

ils
  

th
e
 f

o
llo

w
 u

p
s
 c

o
m

p
le

te
d
 i

n
 Q

1
/Q

2
 o

f 
2
0
1

4
/1

5
 w

it
h
 t

h
e
 o

ri
g
in

a
l 

a
s
s
u
ra

n
c
e
 r

a
ti
n
g
 a

n
d
 t

h
e

 r
e
-a

s
s
e
s
s
e

d
 

a
s
s
u
ra

n
c
e
 r

a
ti
n
g
. 

A
ll 

a
s
s
u

ra
n
c
e
 r

a
ti
n
g
s
 a

t 
fo

llo
w

-u
p

 h
a
v
e
 b

e
e
n

 r
e
-a

s
s
e
s
s
e
d
 a

s
 g

re
e
n
 s

h
o

w
in

g
 i

m
p
ro

v
e
m

e
n

t 
in

 t
h
e

 c
o

n
tr

o
l 

e
n
v
ir

o
n
m

e
n
t 
a
s
 a

 r
e
s
u
lt
 o

f 
in

te
rn

a
l 
a
u
d
it
 w

o
rk

. 
  T

a
b

le
 1

 –
 F

o
ll

o
w

 U
p

s
 c

o
m

p
le

te
d

 i
n

 Q
1
&

2
 o

f 
2
0
1

4
/1

5
 

  
 R

e
v
ie

w
 (

2
0

1
3
/1

4
 P

la
n

) 
A

u
d

it
 C

o
v
e
ra

g
e
 

O
ri

g
in

a
l 

A
s
s
u

ra
n

c
e
 

R
a
ti

n
g

 
R

e
-a

s
s
e
s
s
e

d
 

A
s

s
u

ra
n

c
e
 R

a
ti

n
g

 
 

C
o
rp

o
ra

te
 A

c
c
o
u
n
ts

 P
a

y
a
b
le

 
R

e
v
ie

w
 o

f 
k
e
y
 c

o
n
tr

o
ls

 
A

M
B

E
R

 
G

R
E

E
N

 
G

R
E

E
N

 

S
t 
J
o
h
n
 F

is
h
e
r 

G
o
v
e
rn

a
n
c
e
 &

 
F

in
a
n
c
ia

l 
C

o
n
tr

o
ls

 
C

o
v
e
ri

n
g
 t
h

e
 a

d
e
q

u
a
c
y
, 
a

p
p
lic

a
ti
o
n
 a

n
d
 

e
ff

e
c
ti
v
e
n
e
s
s
 o

f 
fi
n
a
n
c
ia

l 
c
o
n
tr

o
ls

 a
n
d
 g

o
v
e
rn

a
n
c
e
 

p
ro

c
e

d
u

re
s
 i
n
 p

la
c
e
 

A
M

B
E

R
 

G
R

E
E

N
 

G
R

E
E

N
 

H
ill

v
ie

w
 N

u
rs

e
ry

 G
o
v
e
rn

a
n
c
e
 &

 
F

in
a
n
c
ia

l 
C

o
n
tr

o
ls

 
C

o
v
e
ri

n
g
 t
h

e
 a

d
e
q

u
a
c
y
, 
a

p
p
lic

a
ti
o
n
 a

n
d
 

e
ff

e
c
ti
v
e
n
e
s
s
 o

f 
fi
n
a
n
c
ia

l 
c
o
n
tr

o
ls

 a
n
d
 g

o
v
e
rn

a
n
c
e
 

p
ro

c
e

d
u

re
s
 i
n
 p

la
c
e
 

R
E

D
 

G
R

E
E

N
 

D
is

a
b
le

d
 A

d
a
p
ta

ti
o
n
s
 

R
e
v
ie

w
 o

f 
g
o
v
e
rn

a
n
c
e
 a

rr
a
n
g

e
m

e
n
ts

 
A

M
B

E
R

 
G

R
E

E
N

 
G

R
E

E
N

 

R
e
tr

E
a
t 

R
e
v
ie

w
 t
h

e
 c

a
s
h
 h

a
n

d
lin

g
 p

ro
c
e
s
s
 o

f 
th

e
 C

o
u

n
c
il 

R
e
tr

E
a
t 

C
a
fé

 a
n
d
 t
h

e
 t

ro
lle

y
 s

e
rv

ic
e
 

R
E

D
 

G
R

E
E

N
 

A
rb

o
ri
c
u
lt
u
ra

l 
S

e
rv

ic
e
s
 

R
e
v
ie

w
 t
h

a
t 

th
e
re

 a
re

 a
p
p
ro

p
ri

a
te

 p
ro

c
e
s
s
e
s
 i
n
 

p
la

c
e
 t

o
 m

a
n
a

g
e
 t

h
e
 w

o
rk

s
 u

n
d
e
rt

a
k
e
n
 o

n
 t
h

e
 

b
o
ro

u
g
h
s
 t

re
e
s
 

R
E

D
 

A
M

B
E

R
 

G
R

E
E

N
 

B
e
lm

o
n
t 

P
ri
m

a
ry

 G
o
v
e

rn
a
n
c
e
 &

 
F

in
a
n
c
ia

l 
C

o
n
tr

o
ls

 
C

o
v
e
ri

n
g
 t
h

e
 a

d
e
q

u
a
c
y
, 
a

p
p
lic

a
ti
o
n
 a

n
d
 

e
ff

e
c
ti
v
e
n
e
s
s
 o

f 
fi
n
a
n
c
ia

l 
c
o
n
tr

o
ls

 a
n
d
 g

o
v
e
rn

a
n
c
e
 

p
ro

c
e

d
u

re
s
 i
n
 p

la
c
e
 

A
M

B
E

R
 

G
R

E
E

N
 

G
R

E
E

N
 

K
e
n
m

o
re

 P
a
rk

 I
n
fa

n
t 
&

 N
u
rs

e
ry

 
G

o
v
e
rn

a
n
c
e
 &

 F
in

a
n
c
ia

l 
C

o
n
tr

o
ls

 

C
o
v
e
ri

n
g
 t
h

e
 a

d
e
q

u
a
c
y
, 
a

p
p
lic

a
ti
o
n
 a

n
d
 

e
ff

e
c
ti
v
e
n
e
s
s
 o

f 
fi
n
a
n
c
ia

l 
c
o
n
tr

o
ls

 a
n
d
 g

o
v
e
rn

a
n
c
e
 

p
ro

c
e

d
u

re
s
 i
n
 p

la
c
e
 

A
M

B
E

R
 

G
R

E
E

N
 

G
R

E
E

N
 

S
h
a
ft

e
s
b
u
ry

 G
o
v
e
rn

a
n

c
e
 &

 
F

in
a
n
c
ia

l 
C

o
n
tr

o
ls

 
C

o
v
e
ri

n
g
 t
h

e
 a

d
e
q

u
a
c
y
, 
a

p
p
lic

a
ti
o
n
 a

n
d
 

e
ff

e
c
ti
v
e
n
e
s
s
 o

f 
fi
n
a
n
c
ia

l 
c
o
n
tr

o
ls

 a
n
d
 g

o
v
e
rn

a
n
c
e
 

p
ro

c
e

d
u

re
s
 i
n
 p

la
c
e
 

A
M

B
E

R
 

G
R

E
E

N
 

G
R

E
E

N
 

117



2
0
1
4
/1

5
 I
N

T
E

R
N

A
L

 A
U

D
IT

 M
ID

-Y
E

A
R

 R
E

P
O

R
T

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

A
P

P
E

N
D

IX
 1

 
 

R
e
v
ie

w
 (

2
0

1
3
/1

4
 P

la
n

) 
A

u
d

it
 C

o
v
e
ra

g
e
 

O
ri

g
in

a
l 

A
s
s
u

ra
n

c
e
 

R
a
ti

n
g

 
R

e
-a

s
s
e
s
s
e

d
 

A
s

s
u

ra
n

c
e
 R

a
ti

n
g

 
 

S
t 
G

e
o
rg

e
s
 G

o
v
e
rn

a
n
c
e
 &

 
F

in
a
n
c
ia

l 
C

o
n
tr

o
ls

 
C

o
v
e
ri

n
g
 t
h

e
 a

d
e
q

u
a
c
y
, 
a

p
p
lic

a
ti
o
n
 a

n
d
 

e
ff

e
c
ti
v
e
n
e
s
s
 o

f 
fi
n
a
n
c
ia

l 
c
o
n
tr

o
ls

 a
n
d
 g

o
v
e
rn

a
n
c
e
 

p
ro

c
e

d
u

re
s
 i
n
 p

la
c
e
 

A
M

B
E

R
 

G
R

E
E

N
 

G
R

E
E

N
 

S
t 
J
o
h
n
s
 C

 o
f 

E
 G

o
v
e
rn

a
n
c
e
 &

 
F

in
a
n
c
ia

l 
C

o
n
tr

o
ls

 
C

o
v
e
ri

n
g
 t
h

e
 a

d
e
q

u
a
c
y
, 
a

p
p
lic

a
ti
o
n
 a

n
d
 

e
ff

e
c
ti
v
e
n
e
s
s
 o

f 
fi
n
a
n
c
ia

l 
c
o
n
tr

o
ls

 a
n
d
 g

o
v
e
rn

a
n
c
e
 

p
ro

c
e

d
u

re
s
 i
n
 p

la
c
e
 

A
M

B
E

R
 

G
R

E
E

N
 

W
e
lld

o
n
 P

a
rk

 I
n
fa

n
t 
&

 N
u
rs

e
ry

 
G

o
v
e
rn

a
n
c
e
 &

 F
in

a
n
c
ia

l 
C

o
n
tr

o
ls

 

C
o
v
e
ri

n
g
 t
h

e
 a

d
e
q

u
a
c
y
, 
a

p
p
lic

a
ti
o
n
 a

n
d
 

e
ff

e
c
ti
v
e
n
e
s
s
 o

f 
fi
n
a
n
c
ia

l 
c
o
n
tr

o
ls

 a
n
d
 g

o
v
e
rn

a
n
c
e
 

p
ro

c
e

d
u

re
s
 i
n
 p

la
c
e
 

A
M

B
E

R
 

G
R

E
E

N
 

E
m

e
rg

e
n
c
y
 R

e
lie

f 
S

c
h
e
m

e
 

R
is

k
 b

a
s
e

d
 s

y
s
te

m
 r

e
v
ie

w
 t
o

 i
n
c
lu

d
e
 f

ra
u
d
 r

is
k
 

A
M

B
E

R
 

G
R

E
E

N
 

P
a
rk

in
g
 E

n
fo

rc
e
m

e
n
t 

–
 

C
a
n
c
e
lla

ti
o
n
 o

f 
P

C
N

’s
 

R
is

k
 b

a
s
e

d
 s

y
s
te

m
 r

e
v
ie

w
 t
o
 i
n
c
lu

d
e
 f

ra
u
d
 r

is
k
 

R
E

D
 

G
R

E
E

N
 

  2
. 

T
a
b
le

 2
 b

e
lo

w
 d

e
ta

ils
 a

ll 
th

e
 f

in
a
l 

re
p
o

rt
s
 i

s
s
u

e
d
 i

n
 Q

1
/Q

2
 o

f 
2
0
1
4
/1

5
 f

ro
m

 t
h
e
 2

0
1
3
/1

4
 a

u
d
it
 p

la
n
 w

it
h
 t

h
e
 r

e
p

o
rt

 a
s
s
u
ra

n
c
e

 
ra

ti
n
g
. 

  T
a

b
le

 2
 –

 2
0
1
3
/1

4
 P

la
n

 F
in

a
l 

R
e
p

o
rt

s
 I
s

s
u

e
d

 i
n

 Q
1
&

2
 o

f 
2
0

1
4
/1

5
 

 R
e
v
ie

w
 

A
u

d
it

 C
o

v
e

ra
g

e
 

A
s
s

u
ra

n
c
e
 R

a
ti

n
g

 
F

o
ll
o

w
-u

p
 D

u
e
 

 

D
a
ta

 S
e
c
u
ri

ty
 B

re
a
c
h
e

s
 

T
o
 a

s
s
e
s
s
 a

c
ti
o
n
 t

a
k
e
n

 a
ft

e
r 

b
re

a
c
h

e
s
 i
d
e
n
ti
fi
e
d
 

to
 c

lo
s
e
 g

a
p
s
 a

n
d
 i
m

p
ro

v
e
 p

ro
c
e
s
s
e
s
 

A
M

B
E

R
 

G
R

E
E

N
 

J
a
n

u
a

ry
 2

0
1
5
 

H
o
u
s
in

g
 B

e
n
e
fi
t 

A
 r

e
v
ie

w
 o

f 
c
o
n
tr

o
ls

 i
n
 p

la
c
e
 t
o
 p

re
v
e
n
t 
fr

a
u
d
 

in
c
lu

d
in

g
 r

e
s
p
o
n
s
e
 t
o
 C

A
F

T
 r

e
p
o
rt

s
 

A
M

B
E

R
 

N
o
v
e
m

b
e
r 

2
0
1

4
 

H
o
u
s
in

g
 A

s
s
e
s
s
m

e
n
ts

 
R

e
v
ie

w
 o

f 
th

e
 r

o
b
u
s
tn

e
s
s
 o

f 
th

e
 a

s
s
e
s
s
m

e
n
ts

 
p
ro

c
e
s
s
 t
o
 m

it
ig

a
te

 t
h
e
 r

is
k
 o

f 
fr

a
u
d
 

A
M

B
E

R
 

J
a
n

u
a

ry
 2

0
1
5
 

D
a
ta

 Q
u

a
lit

y
 

R
e
v
ie

w
in

g
 a

 s
a
m

p
le

 o
f 

a
re

a
s
 w

h
e

re
 d

a
ta

 q
u
a
lit

y
 

is
 i
m

p
o
rt

a
n
t 
to

 e
s
ta

b
lis

h
 c

o
m

p
lia

n
c
e
 w

it
h
 

s
ta

n
d
a

rd
s
 

R
E

D
 

F
o
llo

w
 u

p
 i
n
 p

ro
g
re

s
s
 

118



2
0
1
4
/1

5
 I
N

T
E

R
N

A
L

 A
U

D
IT

 M
ID

-Y
E

A
R

 R
E

P
O

R
T

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

A
P

P
E

N
D

IX
 1

 
 

R
e
v
ie

w
 

A
u

d
it

 C
o

v
e

ra
g

e
 

A
s
s

u
ra

n
c
e
 R

a
ti

n
g

 
F

o
ll
o

w
-u

p
 D

u
e
 

 

C
a
s
h
ie

rs
 

IT
 S

y
s
te

m
, 
p
e
tt

y
 c

a
s
h
, 

in
c
o
m

e
 a

n
d
 b

a
n
k
in

g
, 

s
e
p

a
ra

ti
o
n
 o

f 
d
u
ti
e
s
, 
re

fu
n
d
s
 

A
M

B
E

R
 

G
R

E
E

N
 

M
a
rc

h
 2

0
1
5
 

F
in

a
n
c
e
 R

e
s
tr

u
c
tu

re
 

M
a
in

te
n
a

n
c
e
 o

f 
K

e
y
 C

o
n
tr

o
ls

 (
a
ft

e
r 

re
s
tr

u
c
tu

re
) 

A
M

B
E

R
 

G
R

E
E

N
 

J
a
n

u
a

ry
 2

0
1
5
 

P
e
n
s
io

n
s
 

R
is

k
 b

a
s
e
d
 s

y
s
te

m
 r

e
v
ie

w
 t

o
 i
n
c
lu

d
e
 f

ra
u

d
 r

is
k
 

G
R

E
E

N
 

F
o
llo

w
 u

p
 n

o
t 

re
q
u
ir
e

d
 

P
ro

p
e
rt

y
 M

a
in

te
n
a

n
c
e
 –

 C
y
c
lic

a
l 

M
a
in

te
n
a

n
c
e
 

R
e
v
ie

w
 f

re
q

u
e

n
c
y
 a

n
d
 q

u
a
lit

y
 o

f 
c
y
c
lic

a
l 

m
a
in

te
n
a

n
c
e
 a

n
d
 a

s
s
e
s
s
 i
m

p
lic

a
ti
o
n
s
 f

o
r 

H
e
a
lt
h
 

a
n

d
 S

a
fe

ty
. 

A
M

B
E

R
 

F
e
b
ru

a
ry

 2
0
1
5
 

 3
. 

T
a
b
le

 3
 b

e
lo

w
 d

e
ta

ils
 t

h
e
 c

o
m

p
le

te
d
 a

s
s
u
ra

n
c
e
 r

e
p
o
rt

 r
e
v
ie

w
s
 i

s
s
u
e

d
 i

n
 Q

1
/Q

2
 o

f 
2
0

1
4

/1
5
 f

ro
m

 t
h
e
 2

0
1
4
/1

5
 P

la
n
 a

n
d
 t

h
e
 

a
s
s
u
ra

n
c
e
 r

a
ti
n
g
. 

  T
a

b
le

 3
 –

 2
0
1
4
/1

5
 P

la
n

 C
o

m
p

le
te

d
 A

s
s
u

ra
n

c
e
 R

e
p

o
rt

 R
e

v
ie

w
s
 i
n

 Q
1
/Q

2
 o

f 
2

0
1

4
/1

5
 

 P
la

n
 1

4
/1

5
 A

s
s

u
ra

n
c

e
 R

e
v
ie

w
s
 

A
u

d
it

 C
o

v
e

ra
g

e
 

A
S

S
U

R
A

N
C

E
 R

A
T

IN
G

 
C

o
m

m
e
n

t 
 

B
u
s
in

e
s
s
 R

a
te

s
 

K
e

y
 C

o
n
tr

o
l 
R

e
v
ie

w
, 

s
y
s
te

m
s
 n

o
te

s
 

G
R

E
E

N
 

F
o
llo

w
 u

p
 n

o
t 

re
q
u
ir
e

d
 

H
o
u
s
in

g
 B

e
n
e
fi
t 

K
e

y
 C

o
n
tr

o
l 
R

e
v
ie

w
, 

s
y
s
te

m
s
 n

o
te

s
 

G
R

E
E

N
 

F
o
llo

w
 u

p
 n

o
t 

re
q
u
ir
e

d
 

C
a
p
it
a
l 
E

x
p
e
n
d
it
u
re

 
K

e
y
 C

o
n
tr

o
l 
R

e
v
ie

w
, 

s
y
s
te

m
s
 n

o
te

s
 

A
M

B
E

R
 

F
o
llo

w
 u

p
 n

o
t 

y
e
t 

d
u

e
 

In
s
u
ra

n
c
e
 c

la
im

s
 

C
o
n
tr

o
ls

 i
n
 p

la
c
e
 t

o
 p

re
v
e

n
t 

fr
a
u
d

/u
s
e
 o

f 
c
la

im
s
 

h
a

n
d
le

rs
 

A
M

B
E

R
 

G
R

E
E

N
 

R
e
p

o
rt

 i
n
 d

ra
ft

 

 

119



2
0
1
4
/1

5
 I
N

T
E

R
N

A
L

 A
U

D
IT

 M
ID

-Y
E

A
R

 R
E

P
O

R
T

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

A
P

P
E

N
D

IX
 1

 
 

 4
. 

T
a
b
le

 4
 b

e
lo

w
 d

e
ta

ils
 t
h
e
 c

o
m

p
le

te
d
 a

s
s
u

ra
n

c
e
 n

o
n
 r

e
p
o

rt
 r

e
v
ie

w
s
 u

n
d
e

rt
a
k
e
n
 i
n
 Q

1
/Q

2
 o

f 
2
0
1
4
/1

5
 f

ro
m

 t
h
e
 2

0
1

4
1

5
 P

la
n
. 

  T
a

b
le

 4
 –

 2
0
1
4
/1

5
 P

la
n

 C
o

m
p

le
te

d
 A

s
s
u

ra
n

c
e
 N

o
n

 R
e
p

o
rt

 R
e

v
ie

w
s
 i
n

 Q
1
/Q

2
 o

f 
2
0
1

4
/1

5
 

 R
e
v
ie

w
 

 
A

u
d

it
 C

o
v
e
ra

g
e
 

C
o

m
m

e
n

ts
 

P
a
y
ro

ll 
S

y
s
te

m
 n

o
te

s
, 

w
a
lk

th
ro

u
g
h
. 

C
R

S
A

 
C

o
m

p
le

te
 

T
re

a
s
u
ry

 
S

y
s
te

m
 n

o
te

s
, 

w
a
lk

th
ro

u
g
h
. 

C
R

S
A

 
C

o
m

p
le

te
 

C
o
u

n
c
il 

T
a
x
 

S
y
s
te

m
 n

o
te

s
, 

w
a
lk

th
ro

u
g
h
. 

C
R

S
A

 
C

o
m

p
le

te
 

H
o
u
s
in

g
 R

e
n
ts

 
S

y
s
te

m
 n

o
te

s
, 

w
a
lk

th
ro

u
g
h
. 

C
R

S
A

 
C

o
m

p
le

te
 

C
o
rp

o
ra

te
 A

c
c
o
u
n
ts

 P
a

y
a
b
le

 
S

y
s
te

m
 n

o
te

s
, 

w
a
lk

th
ro

u
g

h
. 

C
R

S
A

 
C

o
m

p
le

te
 

C
o
rp

o
ra

te
 A

c
c
o
u
n
ts

 R
e
c
e
iv

a
b
le

 
S

y
s
te

m
 n

o
te

s
, 

w
a
lk

th
ro

u
g
h
. 

C
R

S
A

 
C

o
m

p
le

te
 

C
o
rp

o
ra

te
 G

o
v
e
rn

a
n
c
e
 

A
n
n
u
a
l 
g
o
v
e
rn

a
n
c
e
 r

e
v
ie

w
, 
d

ra
ft

in
g
 A

G
S

, 
A

G
S

 A
c
ti
o
n
 P

la
n
 

C
o
m

p
le

te
 t
o
 e

n
d
 o

f 
Q

2
 

M
a

n
a

g
e
m

e
n
t 
A

s
s
u
ra

n
c
e
 

C
o
m

p
le

ti
o
n
 o

f 
2
0
1
3
/1

4
 e

x
e
rc

is
e

 &
 d

e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 
o
f 

2
0
1
4
/1

5
 

e
x
e

rc
is

e
 

C
o
m

p
le

te
 t
o
 e

n
d
 o

f 
Q

2
 

R
is

k
 M

a
n
a

g
e
m

e
n
t 

M
a
in

te
n
a
n
c
e
 a

n
d
 u

p
d

a
te

 o
f 

C
o
rp

o
ra

te
 R

is
k
 R

e
g
is

te
rs

  
C

o
m

p
le

te
 t
o
 e

n
d
 o

f 
Q

2
 

In
fo

rm
a
ti
o
n
 G

o
v
e
rn

a
n
c
e
 B

o
a
rd

 (
IG

B
) 

 
T

o
 e

n
s
u

re
 t

h
a
t 
th

e
 C

o
u

n
c
il 

h
a
s
 e

ff
e
c
ti
v
e
 p

o
lic

e
s
 &

 
m

a
n
a

g
e
m

e
n
t 

a
rr

a
n

g
e

m
e
n
ts

 c
o
v
e
ri

n
g
 I
n
fo

rm
a
ti
o
n
 g

o
v
e
rn

a
n
c
e
 

C
o
m

p
le

te
 t
o
 e

n
d
 o

f 
Q

2
 

F
in

a
n
c
ia

l 
R

e
g
u
la

ti
o
n
s
 r

e
v
ie

w
/u

p
d
a
te

 (
n
o
t 

in
 

d
ra

ft
) 

T
o
 f

e
e
d
 i
n
to

 t
h
e
 c

u
rr

e
n
t 

re
v
ie

w
 o

f 
F

in
a
n
c
ia

l 
R

e
g
u
la

ti
o
n
s
 

C
o
m

p
le

te
 

  

C
o
n
tr

a
c
t 

P
ro

c
e

d
u

re
 R

u
le

s
 r

e
v
ie

w
/u

p
d
a
te

 
(n

o
t 
in

 d
ra

ft
) 

 
T

o
 f

e
e
d
 i
n
to

 t
h
e
 c

u
rr

e
n
t 

re
v
ie

w
 o

f 
C

o
n
tr

a
c
t 

P
ro

c
e

d
u

re
 R

u
le

s
 

C
o
m

p
le

te
 

F
a
m

ili
e
s
 F

ir
s
t 

(T
ro

u
b
le

d
 F

a
m

ili
e
s
 G

ra
n
t)

 
G

ra
n
t 

c
e
rt

if
ic

a
ti
o
n
 

C
o
m

p
le

te
 

C
a
rb

o
n
 R

e
d
u
c
ti
o
n
 C

o
m

m
it
m

e
n
t 

A
u
d
it
 r

e
v
ie

w
 a

n
d
 s

ig
n
-o

ff
 o

f 
C

R
C

 A
n
n
u

a
l 
R

e
p

o
rt

 
C

o
m

p
le

te
 

S
u
s
p
e
c
te

d
 F

in
a

n
c
ia

l 
Ir

re
g
u
la

ri
ti
e
s
 +

 C
o
n
tr

o
l 

R
e
v
ie

w
s
 

G
u
id

a
n
c
e
 t
o
 m

a
n
a
g
e
rs

 o
n
 i
n
v
e
s
ti
g

a
ti
o
n
s
 a

n
d
 t

h
e
 u

n
d

e
rt

a
k
in

g
 

o
f 
in

v
e
s
ti
g
a
ti
o
n
s
 

C
o
m

p
le

te
 t
o
 e

n
d
 o

f 
Q

2
 

P
ro

fe
s
s
io

n
a
l 
A

d
v
ic

e
 

A
d
v
ic

e
 o

n
 r

is
k
 m

it
ig

a
ti
o
n
 &

 c
o
n

tr
o
l 

C
o
m

p
le

te
 t
o
 e

n
d
 o

f 
Q

2
 

F
o
llo

w
-u

p
 

R
e
d
, 

R
e
d
/A

m
b

e
r 

&
 A

m
b
e
r 

re
p
o
rt

s
 f

o
llo

w
e
d

-u
p

 
C

o
m

p
le

te
 t
o
 e

n
d
 o

f 
Q

2
 

L
ia

is
o
n
 w

it
h
 E

x
te

rn
a
l 
A

u
d
it
 

O
n

-g
o
in

g
 l
ia

is
o
n
 t

h
ro

u
g

h
o
u
t 

th
e
 y

e
a
r 

C
o
m

p
le

te
 t
o
 e

n
d
 o

f 
Q

2
 

A
u
d
it
 M

a
n
a

g
e
m

e
n
t 
 

e
.g

. 
p
la

n
n
in

g
, 
G

A
R

M
 r

e
p

o
rt

in
g
 

C
o
m

p
le

te
 t
o
 e

n
d
 o

f 
Q

2
 

 

120



2
0
1
4
/1

5
 I
N

T
E

R
N

A
L

 A
U

D
IT

 M
ID

-Y
E

A
R

 R
E

P
O

R
T

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

A
P

P
E

N
D

IX
 1

 
 

 5
. 

T
a
b
le

 5
 b

e
lo

w
 d

e
ta

ils
 t
h
e
 r

e
v
ie

w
s
 c

u
rr

e
n
tl
y
 i
n
 p

ro
g
re

s
s
 f

o
r 

2
0
1

4
/1

5
 f

ro
m

 t
h
e
 2

0
1

4
/1

5
 P

la
n
. 

  T
a

b
le

 5
 –

 2
0
1
4

1
/1

5
 P

la
n

 A
s

s
u

ra
n

c
e
 R

e
v
ie

w
s
 i

n
 p

ro
g

re
s
s
 i
n

 Q
1
/Q

2
 o

f 
2

0
1

4
/1

5
 

 R
e
v
ie

w
 

 
A

u
d

it
 C

o
v
e

ra
g

e
 

C
o
m

p
lia

n
c
e
 T

e
s
ti
n
g
 

R
e
g
is

te
r 

o
f 

in
te

re
s
ts

 a
n
d
 F

e
e
s
 &

 C
h

a
rg

e
s
; 

 

A
c
c
e
s
s
 C

o
n
tr

o
l 
–
 

N
e
tw

o
rk

/S
A

P
/E

M
S

/S
IM

S
/C

IT
R

IX
 

R
e
m

o
te

 A
c
c
e
s
s
  

S
e
t 
u
p
 a

n
d
 r

e
m

o
v
a
l,
 p

a
ra

m
e
te

rs
, 
p

a
s
s
w

o
rd

 c
o
n
fi
g
u
ra

ti
o
n
, 
re

s
e
t 

fr
e
q
u
e
n
c
y
. 

P
u
b
lic

 H
e
a
lt
h
 I
T

 C
o
m

p
lia

n
c
e
 

D
ra

ft
 P

la
n
  

E
n
s
u
ri
n

g
 c

o
m

p
lia

n
c
e
 w

it
h
 I
T

 r
e
q
u
ir

e
m

e
n
ts

 

F
ig

h
ti
n
g
 F

ra
u

d
 C

h
e
c
k
lis

t 
fo

r 
G

o
v
e
rn

a
n
c
e
 

C
o
m

p
le

ti
o
n
 a

n
d
 a

n
a
ly

s
is

 o
f 

c
h
e
c
k
lis

t 
to

 f
e
e
d
 i
n
to

 A
n

n
u
a
l 
G

o
v
e
rn

a
n
c
e
 r

e
v
ie

w
 

P
ro

c
u

re
m

e
n
t 

A
s
s
e
s
s
in

g
 r

is
k
 o

f 
p
ro

c
u
re

m
e
n
t 
fr

a
u

d
 a

n
d
 p

re
v
e
n
ta

ti
v
e
 c

o
n
tr

o
ls

 i
n
 p

la
c
e
. 

R
ig

h
t 

to
 B

u
y
 

A
 r

e
v
ie

w
 o

f 
c
o
n
tr

o
ls

 i
n
 p

la
c
e
 t
o
 p

re
v
e

n
t 
fr

a
u
d
 

C
o
u

n
c
il 

T
a
x
 D

is
c
o
u
n
ts

 
A

 r
e
v
ie

w
 o

f 
c
o
n
tr

o
ls

 i
n
 p

la
c
e

 t
o
 p

re
v
e
n
t 
fr

a
u
d
 

B
u
s
in

e
s
s
 C

o
n
ti
n
u
it
y
/I

T
 D

is
a
s
te

r 
R

e
c
o
v
e
ry

 (
c
/f

 2
0
1
3
/1

4
) 

C
o
v
e

ri
n
g
 a

d
e
q

u
a
c
y
 a

n
d
 e

ff
e
c
ti
v
e
n
e
s
s
 o

f 
c
o
n
tr

o
ls

 o
v
e
r 

th
e
 a

rr
a

n
g

e
m

e
n
ts

 t
h

a
t 

a
re

 i
n
 p

la
c
e
 f

o
r 

th
e
 

p
re

v
e
n
ti
o
n
 o

f 
s
y
s
te

m
 d

o
w

n
ti
m

e
 t

h
ro

u
g
h
 a

d
e
q

u
a
te

 r
e
s
ili

e
n
c
e
 

E
E

 R
e
s
tr

u
c
tu

re
 –

 m
a
in

te
n

a
n
c
e
 

o
f 

k
e

y
 c

o
n
tr

o
ls

 (
c
/f

 2
0
1

3
/1

4
) 

M
a
in

te
n
a

n
c
e
 o

f 
k
e
y
 c

o
n
tr

o
ls

 w
it
h
in

 D
ir

e
c
to

ra
te

 a
n
d
 t

o
 e

n
s
u
re

 a
p

p
ro

p
ri

a
te

 c
o
n
tr

o
ls

 i
n
 p

la
c
e
 f

o
r 

L
ic

e
n
s
in

g
 

S
c
h
o
o
l 
H

R
 P

o
lic

ie
s
 

C
h
e
c
k
 t

h
a
t 
a

p
p
ro

p
ri

a
te

 H
R

 P
o
lic

ie
s
 a

re
 a

d
o
p
te

d
  

b
y
 s

c
h
o

o
ls

 

P
u
b
lic

 H
e
a
lt
h
 V

is
it
in

g
 T

ra
n
s
fe

r 
 

T
o
 p

ro
v
id

e
 p

ro
fe

s
s
io

n
a

l 
a
d
v
ic

e
 o

n
 c

o
n
tr

o
l 
a
n

d
 r

is
k
 m

it
ig

a
ti
o
n
 

 

121



2
0
1
4
/1

5
 I
N

T
E

R
N

A
L

 A
U

D
IT

 M
ID

-Y
E

A
R

 R
E

P
O

R
T

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

A
P

P
E

N
D

IX
 1

 
 

  6
. 

T
a
b
le

 6
 b

e
lo

w
 d

e
ta

ils
 t
h
e
 a

s
s
u

ra
n
c
e
 r

e
v
ie

w
s
 w

h
ic

h
 a

re
 y

e
t 
to

 b
e
 s

ta
rt

e
d
 f

o
r 

2
0
1
4
/1

5
 f

ro
m

 t
h
e
 2

0
1
4
/1

5
 P

la
n
. 

  T
a

b
le

 6
 –

 2
0
1
4
/1

5
 P

la
n

 A
s
s
u

ra
n

c
e
 R

e
v
ie

w
s
 y

e
t 

to
 b

e
 s

ta
rt

e
d

 
 R

e
v
ie

w
 

 
A

u
d

it
 C

o
v
e

ra
g

e
 

C
o

m
m

e
n

ts
/P

la
n

n
e
d

  

P
ro

c
u

re
 t

o
 P

a
y
 

T
o
 p

ro
v
id

e
 o

n
g
o
in

g
 r

is
k
 a

n
d
 c

o
n
tr

o
l 
a

d
v
ic

e
 

N
o
 l
o
n

g
e

r 
re

q
u
ir
e
d
 

E
-i
n
v
o
ic

in
g
 

T
o
 p

ro
v
id

e
 p

ro
fe

s
s
io

n
a

l 
a
d
v
ic

e
 o

n
 c

o
n
tr

o
l 
a
n

d
 r

is
k
 m

it
ig

a
ti
o
n
 

Q
3
/Q

4
 

L
e

g
a
l 
S

e
rv

ic
e
s
 C

o
m

p
a

n
y
 

T
o
 p

ro
v
id

e
 p

ro
fe

s
s
io

n
a

l 
a
d
v
ic

e
 o

n
 c

o
n
tr

o
l 
a
n

d
 r

is
k
 m

it
ig

a
ti
o
n
 

Q
3
/Q

4
 

IW
o
rl
d
/N

o
rt

h
g
a
te

 H
o
u
s
in

g
 B

e
n
e
fi
t 

–
 O

p
e
ra

ti
n

g
 S

y
s
te

m
 R

e
v
ie

w
 (

c
/f

 
2
0

1
3
/1

4
) 

T
o
 a

s
s
e
s
s
 t
h

e
 c

o
n
tr

o
l 
p
ro

c
e
s
s
 b

u
ilt

 w
it
h
in

 N
o
rt

h
g
a
te

 H
o

u
s
in

g
 B

e
n
e
fi
ts

 
S

y
s
te

m
 i
n
c
lu

d
in

g
 t
h

e
 l
o
c
a
lis

e
d
 C

T
 B

e
n
e
fi
t 
m

o
d

u
le

 a
n

d
 t

h
e
 c

lo
u
d
 b

a
s
e
d
 

H
a
rr

o
w

 E
m

e
rg

e
n
c
y
 S

c
h
e
m

e
 

Q
3
 

IT
 D

a
ta

 C
e
n
tr

e
  
- 

L
a
n
d
lo

rd
 R

is
k
s
 

(c
/f

 2
0
1
3
/1

4
) 

C
o
v
e

ri
n
g
 e

n
v
ir

o
n
m

e
n
ta

l 
c
o
n
tr

o
ls

 a
n
d
 s

e
c
u
ri

ty
 

Q
3
 

IT
 C

h
a
n
g

e
 M

a
n
a

g
e
m

e
n
t 

(c
/f

 
2
0

1
3
/1

4
) 

R
e
v
ie

w
 o

f 
s
y
s
te

m
 i
n
 p

la
c
e
 t

o
 m

a
n
a

g
e
 I
T

 c
h
a

n
g
e
 

Q
3
 

F
re

e
d

o
m

 o
f 

In
fo

rm
a
ti
o
n
 

R
e
v
ie

w
 o

f 
th

e
 p

o
lic

y
 a

n
d
 p

ro
c
e
s
s
 e

m
p
lo

y
e
d
 b

y
 t

h
e
 C

o
u
n
c
il 

fo
r 

d
e
a
lin

g
 

w
it
h
 F

O
I 
re

q
u

e
s
ts

 t
o
 e

n
s
u
re

 a
p
p
ro

p
ri

a
te

 a
n
d
 p

ro
p

o
rt

io
n

a
te

. 
 P

o
s
s
ib

le
 

jo
in

t 
re

v
ie

w
 w

it
h
 L

e
a
n
 T

e
a
m

. 

Q
3
 

L
e

a
s
e
h

o
ld

e
r 

C
h

a
rg

e
s
 

R
is

k
 b

a
s
e
d
 s

y
s
te

m
 r

e
v
ie

w
 

Q
4
 

M
y
 C

o
m

m
u
n
it
y
 E

 P
u
rs

e
 

H
e
a
lt
h
 c

h
e
c
k
 r

e
q

u
e
s
te

d
 b

y
 m

a
n
a

g
e
m

e
n
t 

Q
4
 

S
c
h
o
o
ls

 E
x
p
a
n
s
io

n
 P

ro
g
ra

m
m

e
 

P
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
 M

a
n
a

g
e
m

e
n
t/

P
ro

c
u
re

m
e

n
t 

Q
3
 

H
ig

h
w

a
y
s
 C

o
n
tr

a
c
t 

C
o
n
tr

a
c
t 
M

a
n

a
g
e
m

e
n
t 

re
v
ie

w
 

Q
4
 

F
in

a
n
c
ia

l 
C

o
n
tr

o
l 
&

 G
o

v
e
rn

a
n
c
e
 

R
e
v
ie

w
s
 

A
 f

o
u
r 

y
e
a
r 

p
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
 o

f 
s
c
h
o
o
l 
re

v
ie

w
s
 c

o
v
e
ri
n
g
 t

h
e
 a

d
e
q
u

a
c
y
, 

a
p

p
lic

a
ti
o
n
 a

n
d
 e

ff
e
c
ti
v
e
n

e
s
s
 o

f 
fi
n
a
n
c
ia

l 
c
o
n
tr

o
ls

 a
n
d
 g

o
v
e
rn

a
n
c
e
 

p
ro

c
e
d
u
re

s
 i
n
 p

la
c
e
 

Q
3
/Q

4
 

S
c
h
o
o
l 
G

o
v
e
rn

o
r 

G
o
v
e
rn

a
n
c
e
 

T
ra

in
in

g
 

T
ra

in
in

g
 s

e
s
s
io

n
 t

o
 b

e
 p

re
s
e
n
te

d
 a

t 
th

e
 C

&
F

 H
e
a
d
s
 &

 D
ir

e
c
to

rs
 m

e
e
ti
n
g
 

+
 e

v
e
n
in

g
 G

o
v
e
rn

o
r 

tr
a
in

in
g
 s

e
s
s
io

n
 

Q
3
 

S
IM

S
 P

e
rs

o
n

n
e
l 

R
e
v
ie

w
 o

f 
c
o
n
tr

o
ls

 t
o
 e

n
s
u

re
 r

o
b

u
s
t 

Q
4
 

 

122



2
0
1
4
/1

5
 I
N

T
E

R
N

A
L

 A
U

D
IT

 M
ID

-Y
E

A
R

 R
E

P
O

R
T

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

A
P

P
E

N
D

IX
 1

 
 

 P
e
rf

o
rm

a
n

c
e
 I

n
d

ic
a

to
rs

 
 7
. 

T
a
b
le

 
7
 

b
e
lo

w
 

o
u
tl
in

e
s
 

th
e
 

s
e
v
e
n
 

In
te

rn
a
l 

A
u
d
it
 

in
d
ic

a
to

rs
 

a
g
re

e
d
 

fo
r 

th
e
 

y
e
a
r,

 
in

c
lu

d
in

g
 

th
e
 

k
e
y
 

in
d
ic

a
to

r 
c
o
v
e
ri
n

g
 

a
c
h
ie

v
e
m

e
n
t 

o
f 

th
e
 I

A
 a

n
n
u

a
l 
p
la

n
 a

n
d
 t

a
b
le

 8
 t

h
e
 t

h
re

e
 c

o
rp

o
ra

te
 a

u
d
it
 i
n
d
ic

a
to

rs
 a

n
d
 t

h
e
 r

e
s
u
lt
s
 a

c
h

ie
v
e

d
. 

 T
h
e
s
e
 i
n
d
ic

a
to

rs
 

c
o
v
e
r 

p
e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 o

n
 p

ro
je

c
ts

 f
ro

m
 t

h
e

 2
0

1
3
/1

4
 p

la
n

 a
n

d
 t

h
e
 2

0
1

4
/1

5
 p

la
n
 i

s
s
u
e

d
 i

n
 t

h
e
 f

ir
s
t 

h
a
lf
 o

f 
th

e
 y

e
a

r 
(i
.e

. 
u
p

 t
o
 

3
0
/0

9
/1

4
).

  
 

 T
a

b
le

 7
 –

 I
n

te
rn

a
l 

A
u

d
it

 P
e
rf

o
rm

a
n

c
e
 I

n
d

ic
a
to

r 
R

e
s
u

lt
s
  

 
P

e
rf

o
rm

a
n

c
e
 I

n
d

ic
a

to
r 

T
a

rg
e
t 

M
id

 
Y

e
a
r 

R
e
s
u

lt
 

1
 

R
e
c
o
m

m
e
n

d
a
ti
o
n
s
 a

g
re

e
d
 f

o
r 

im
p
le

m
e
n
ta

ti
o
n

 
9
5

%
 

9
9
%

 

2
 

F
in

a
l 
re

p
o
rt

s
 i
s
s
u
e

d
 o

n
 /
 a

h
e

a
d
 o

f 
ti
m

e
 

8
5

%
 

9
1
%

 

3
 

P
ro

je
c
ts

 c
o
m

p
le

te
d
 w

it
h
in

 b
u

d
g
e
te

d
 t
im

e
 a

llo
w

a
n
c
e
 

8
5

%
 

8
9
%

 

4
 

T
a
rg

e
t 
m

e
t 

fo
r 

is
s
u
e
 o

f 
d
ra

ft
 r

e
p
o
rt

 a
ft

e
r 

e
n
d
 o

f 
fi
e
ld

w
o
rk

 
8
5

%
 

8
2
%

 

5
 

F
o
llo

w
 u

p
 u

n
d
e

rt
a
k
e
n
 

1
0

0
%

 
1
0
0

%
 

6
 

P
la

n
 a

c
h
ie

v
e
d
 f

o
r 

k
e
y
 c

o
n
tr

o
l 
re

v
ie

w
s
 

1
0

0
%

 
1
0
0

%
 

7
 

P
la

n
 a

c
h
ie

v
e
d
 o

v
e

ra
ll 

(k
e

y
 i
n

d
ic

a
to

r)
 

4
5

%
 

4
8
%

 

 A
n

a
ly

s
is

 o
f 

R
e
s
u

lt
s
 

 8
. 

O
v
e

ra
ll 

6
 (

8
6

%
) 

o
f 

th
e

 p
e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 t

a
rg

e
ts

 h
a
v
e
 b

e
e
n
 m

e
t 

o
r 

e
x
c
e
e
d
e
d
. 

F
o

u
r 

(5
7
%

) 
o
f 

th
e
 p

e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 t

a
rg

e
ts

 h
a
v
e
 b

e
e

n
 

e
x
c
e
e
d
e

d
, 

2
 (

2
9
%

) 
h

a
v
e
 b

e
e

n
 f

u
lly

 m
e
t 

a
n

d
 1

 t
a
rg

e
t 

h
a
s
 n

o
t 

b
e
e

n
 m

e
t.
 P

e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 i

n
d
ic

a
to

r 
4
 (

ta
rg

e
t 

m
e
t 

fo
r 

is
s
u
e
 o

f 
d
ra

ft
 

re
p
o
rt

 a
ft

e
r 

th
e
 e

n
d
 o

f 
fi
e
ld

w
o
rk

) 
m

is
s
e
d
 t

h
e
 t

a
rg

e
t 

b
y
 3

%
 a

s
 2

 r
e

p
o

rt
s
 d

id
 n

o
t 

m
e
e
t 

th
e
 t

a
rg

e
t 

d
u

e
 A

u
d
it
o
rs

 b
e
in

g
 d

iv
e
rt

e
d
 t

o
 

u
n

d
e

rt
a
k
e
 a

n
 i
n
v
e
s
ti
g
a

ti
o
n
 w

h
ic

h
 c

a
u
s
e
d
 a

 d
e

la
y
 i
n
 t

h
e
 i
s
s
u

e
 o

f 
th

e
 r

e
p
o
rt

s
. 

123



2
0
1
4
/1

5
 I
N

T
E

R
N

A
L

 A
U

D
IT

 M
ID

-Y
E

A
R

 R
E

P
O

R
T

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

A
P

P
E

N
D

IX
 1

 
 

  T
a

b
le

 8
 –

 C
o

rp
o

ra
te

 A
u

d
it

 I
n

d
ic

a
to

rs
 R

e
s
u

lt
s
 

  
P

e
rf

o
rm

a
n

c
e
 I

n
d

ic
a

to
r 

T
a

rg
e
t 

M
id

 Y
e
a
r 

R
e

s
u

lt
 

1
 

Im
p
le

m
e
n
ta

ti
o
n
 o

f 
re

c
o
m

m
e
n
d
a
ti
o
n
s
 

9
0

%
 

6
4
%

 (
e
x
p

e
c
te

d
 t

o
 b

e
 9

3
%

) 

2
 

A
u
d
it
e
e
 r

e
s
p
o
n
s
e
 t
im

e
s
 t
o
 d

ra
ft

 r
e
p
o
rt

 w
it
h
in

 4
 

w
e
e
k
s
 

8
0

%
  

7
3
%

 

3
 

A
u
d
it
e
e
 r

e
s
p
o
n
s
e
 t
im

e
s
 t
o
 f

o
llo

w
 u

p
s
 w

it
h
in

 4
 w

e
e

k
s
 

8
0

%
  

7
8
%

 

 A
n

a
ly

s
is

 o
f 

R
e
s
u

lt
s
 

9
. 

T
h
e
 r

e
s
u
lt
 f

o
r 

p
e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 i

n
d
ic

a
to

r 
1
 s

h
o
w

s
 t

h
a
t 

w
h
ils

t 
o
n
ly

 6
4
%

 o
f 

re
c
o
m

m
e
n
d
a
ti
o
n
s
 h

a
d
 b

e
e

n
 i

m
p
le

m
e
n
te

d
 a

t 
th

e
 t

im
e
 o

f 
fo

llo
w

-u
p
 a

 f
u
rt

h
e

r 
2

9
%

 w
e
re

 p
la

n
n

e
d
 f

o
r 

im
p
le

m
e
n
ta

ti
o
n
 g

iv
in

g
 a

n
 e

x
p

e
c
te

d
 i

m
p
le

m
e
n
ta

ti
o
n
 r

a
te

 o
f 

9
3

%
 e

x
c
e

e
d
in

g
 t

h
e
 9

0
%

 
ta

rg
e
t.
 

 1
0
. 

T
h
e
 r

e
s
u
lt
 r

e
p
o
rt

e
d
 i
n
 t

h
e

 2
0
1

3
/1

4
 y

e
a
r 

e
n

d
 r

e
p

o
rt

 f
o
r 

a
u

d
it
e
e

 r
e
s
p
o

n
s
e
 t

im
e
s
 t

o
 d

ra
ft

 r
e
p
o

rt
s
 w

a
s
 5

3
%

; 
th

e
re

fo
re

 t
h
e

 m
id

 y
e
a
r 

re
s
u
lt
 f

o
r 

2
0

1
4
/1

5
 (

w
h
ils

t 
n
o
t 

m
e
e
ti
n
g
 t

h
e
 t
a
rg

e
t)

 h
a
s
 s

h
o
w

n
 a

n
 i
m

p
ro

v
e
m

e
n
t 
o
f 

2
0
%

. 
 

 1
1
. 

F
o
r 

th
e
 a

u
d
it
e
e
 r

e
s
p
o

n
s
e
 t

im
e
 t

o
 f

o
llo

w
 u

p
s
 i

n
d

ic
a
to

r,
 t

h
e
 r

e
s
u
lt
 r

e
p
o
rt

e
d
 i

n
 t

h
e

 2
0

1
3
/1

4
 y

e
a
r 

e
n
d

 r
e
p
o

rt
 w

a
s
 6

2
%

; 
th

e
re

fo
re

 
th

e
 m

id
 y

e
a
r 

re
s
u
lt
 f
o
r 

2
0
1
4
/1

5
 h

a
s
 s

h
o
w

n
 a

n
 i
n
c
re

a
s
e
 o

f 
1
6

%
. 
 

  S
u
s
a

n
 D

ix
s
o
n
 

H
e
a

d
 o

f 
In

te
rn

a
l 
A

u
d
it
 

0
7
/1

1
/1

4
 

124



APPENDIX 2 
 

IRREGULARITY INVESTIGATIONS REPORT 2014/15 
 
1. During the first 6 months of the year, 4 cases of potential irregularity were 

reported to Internal Audit; only one of these is considered significant and is 
outlined in paragraph 2. There are a further 2 significant irregularities from 
2013/14 which are outlined in paragraph 3. 
 

Significant SFI’s 
 
2. 15 Overpayments of Salary £34,733.46: These overpayments were not 

fraudulent in nature and the majority can be attributed to a lack of 
communication between management, HR and Payroll regarding changes in 
hours, staff leaving; overtime keyed incorrectly; incorrect sick pay; payments to 
incorrect employee or inputting errors.  The overpayments were identified either 
by payroll staff, the employee concerned or management.  Wherever possible 
these overpayments have been or will be recovered via the payroll system.  It is 
anticipated that the majority of overpayments will be recovered. The percentage 
of overpayments recovered as at October 2014 was 24%.  As there were 24 
similar overpayments (£38,930.25) up until the end of September 2013 this 
represents an decrease in the number and value of overpayments in the first half 
of the year.   
 

3. Schools: Following whistleblowing allegations an audit investigation was 
undertaken into 2 schools highlighting finance and governance irregularities. 
Both schools were issued with red assurance reports and action has been 
concluded against one Headteacher under the disciplinary procedure and is in 
progress against the other Headteacher.  

 
 
 
 
Susan Dixson 
Head of Internal Audit 
7th November 2014  

125



126

This page is intentionally left blank



A
P

P
E

N
D

IX
 3

 
 

F
O

L
L

O
W

 U
P

 o
f 

H
IG

H
 R

IS
K

 R
E

C
O

M
M

E
N

D
A

T
IO

N
S

 P
A

R
T

 I
M

P
L

E
M

E
N

T
E

D
/I

N
 P

R
O

G
R

E
S

S
/P

L
A

N
N

E
D

 O
R

 N
O

T
 I

M
P

L
E

M
E

N
T

E
D

 
 R

e
v
ie

w
 

R
e
c
o

m
m

e
n

d
a
ti

o
n

 
A

g
re

e
d

 A
c
ti

o
n

 
R

e
le

v
a
n

t 
D

a
te

s
 

F
o

ll
o

w
 u

p
 R

e
s
p

o
n

s
e
 

D
e
ta

il
s
 

S
t 

G
e
o
rg

e
s
 

S
c
h
o
o
l 

G
o
v
e
rn

a
n
c
e
 

&
 

F
in

a
n
c
e
 

If
 

th
e
 

F
in

a
n
c
e
 

C
o
m

m
it
te

e
 

is
 

to
 

c
o
n
ti
n
u
e
 t

o
 o

p
e
ra

te
 i
t 

n
e
e
d
s
 t

o
 w

o
rk

 
w

it
h
 t

h
e
 H

e
a
d
 T

e
a
c
h
e
r 

to
: 

• 
F

o
rm

 a
n
 

a
n
n
u
a
l 

b
u
d
g

e
t 

a
n
d
 t

h
re

e
 y

e
a
r 

fi
s
c
a
l 

p
la

n
 
fo

r 
a
p
p
ro

v
a
l 

o
f 

th
e
 
G

o
v
e
rn

in
g
 

B
o
d
y
. 

M
o
n
it
o
r 

th
e
 

b
u
d
g

e
t 

a
n
d
 

a
u
th

o
ri
s
e
 

v
ir
e
m

e
n
ts

. 
R

e
v
ie

w
 

a
ll 

m
a
jo

r 
c
o
n
tr

a
c
ts

. 
• 

A
d
v
is

e
 

th
e
 

G
o
v
e
rn

in
g

 
B

o
d
y
 

o
n
 

th
e
 

fi
n
a
n
c
ia

l 
im

p
lic

a
ti
o
n
s
 i
n
 

a
c
c
o
rd

a
n
c
e
 

w
it
h
 

th
e
 

C
o
m

m
it
te

e
’s

 
T

e
rm

s
 o

f 
R

e
fe

re
n
c
e
. 

  
T

h
e
 F

in
a
n
c
e
 

C
o
m

m
it
te

e
 s

h
o
u
ld

 c
o
n
ti
n
u
e
 t

o
 m

e
e
t 

e
v
e
ry

 t
e
rm

 i
n
 o

rd
e
r 

to
 f

u
lf
il 

th
e
ir
 j

o
b
 

re
s
p
o
n
s
ib

ili
ti
e
s
.H

o
w

e
v
e
r 

if
 

th
e
 

F
in

a
n
c
e
 C

o
m

m
it
te

e
 i
s
 n

o
t 

to
 o

p
e
ra

te
 

th
e
n
 

th
e
 

G
o
v
e
rn

in
g

 
B

o
d
y
 

s
h
o
u
ld

 
c
a
rr

y
 

o
u
t 

a
ll 

th
e
 

re
le

v
a
n
t 

F
in

a
n
c
e
 

C
o
m

m
it
te

e
 

d
u
ti
e
s
. 

A
ll 

m
e
e
ti
n
g

s
 

s
h
o
u
ld

 b
e
 f

u
lly

 m
in

u
te

d
. 

T
h
e
 

G
o
v
e
rn

in
g

 
B

o
d
y
 

w
ill

 
c
o
n
ti
n
u
e
 

to
 

d
e
le

g
a
te

 
th

e
 

g
e
n
e
ra

l 
d
e
c
is

io
n
 m

a
k
in

g
 t

o
 

th
e
 

F
in

a
n
c
e
 

C
o
m

m
it
te

e
. 

T
h
e
 

m
e
m

b
e
rs

h
ip

 
o
f 

th
e
 

F
in

a
n
c
e
 C

o
m

m
it
te

e
 w

ill
 b

e
 

in
c
re

a
s
e
d
 
to

 
7
 
G

o
v
e
rn

o
rs

 
(i
n
c
lu

d
in

g
 t

h
e
 H

e
a
d
te

a
c
h
e
r 

a
n
d
 

C
h
a
ir
 

o
f 

G
o
v
e
rn

o
rs

).
 

T
h
e
 

F
in

a
n
c
e
 

C
o
m

m
it
te

e
 

w
ill

 
m

e
e
t 

a
 

m
in

im
u
m

 
o
f 

o
n
c
e
 

e
a
c
h
 

te
rm

 
(3

 
m

e
e
ti
n
g

s
 a

 y
e
a
r)

. 

Im
p

le
m

e
n

ta
ti

o
n

 
D

a
te

: 
1
1
 
M

a
rc

h
 

2
0
1
4
 

 F
o

ll
o

w
 

u
p

: 
S

e
p
te

m
b
e
r 

2
0
1
4
 

F
in

a
n
c
e
 

c
o
m

m
it
te

e
 

T
e
rm

s
 

o
f 

R
e
fe

re
n
c
e
 
a
n
d
 
a
p
p
o
in

tm
e
n
ts

 
w

ill
 

b
e
 a

g
re

e
d
 a

t 
fi
rs

t 
F

G
B

 m
e
e
ti
n
g

 o
f 

th
e
 a

c
a
d
e
m

ic
 y

e
a
r 

to
 b

e
 h

e
ld

 2
5
 

S
e
p
t 

2
0
1
4
. 

F
u
rt

h
e
r 

fo
llo

w
 

u
p

 
d
u
e
 

D
e
c
e
m

b
e
r 

2
0
1
4
. 

S
t 

G
e
o
rg

e
s
 

S
c
h
o
o
l 

G
o
v
e
rn

a
n
c
e
 

&
 

F
in

a
n
c
e
 

A
 

T
e
rm

s
 

o
f 

R
e
fe

re
n
c
e
 

s
h
o
u
ld

 
b
e
 

c
re

a
te

d
 
d
e
fi
n
in

g
 
th

e
 
re

s
p
o
n
s
ib

ili
ti
e
s
 

o
f 

th
e
 

G
o
v
e
rn

in
g

 
B

o
d
y
. 

O
n
c
e
 

d
o
c
u
m

e
n
te

d
, 

a
p
p
ro

v
a
l 

s
h
o
u
ld

 
b
e
 

c
le

a
rl
y
 

s
h
o

w
n
 

in
 

m
in

u
te

s
 

a
n
d
 

th
e
 

d
o
c
u
m

e
n
t 

s
h
o
u
ld

 
b
e
 

u
p
d
a
te

d
 

a
n
d
 

re
v
ie

w
e
d
 a

n
n
u
a
lly

. 

W
h
ils

t 
it
 i

s
 n

o
t 

a
 s

ta
tu

to
ry

 
o
b
lig

a
ti
o
n
 

th
e
 

G
o
v
e
rn

in
g
 

B
o
d
y
 

w
ill

 
d
ra

ft
 

a
n
d
 

e
s
ta

b
lis

h
 
T

O
R

 
fo

r 
th

e
 
fu

ll 
G

B
. 

Im
p

le
m

e
n

ta
ti

o
n

 
D

a
te

: 
1
1
 
M

a
rc

h
 

2
0
1
4
 

 F
o

ll
o

w
 

u
p

: 
S

e
p
te

m
b
e
r 

2
0
1
4
 

T
o
 

b
e
 

a
g

re
e
d
 

a
t 

F
G

B
 

M
e
e
ti
n
g

 
s
c
h
e
d
u
le

d
 

fo
r 

2
5
 

S
e
p
te

m
b
e
r 

2
0
1
4
. 

F
u
rt

h
e
r 

fo
llo

w
 

u
p

 
d
u
e
 

D
e
c
e
m

b
e
r 

2
0
1
4
. 

S
t 

J
o
h
n
’s

 
S

c
h
o
o
l 

G
o
v
e
rn

a
n
c
e
 

&
 

F
in

a
n
c
e
 

W
h
e
n
 

e
x
is

ti
n
g
 

d
e
le

g
a
ti
o
n
s
 

a
re

 
u
p
d
a
te

d
 t

h
e
y
 s

h
o
u
ld

 i
n
c
lu

d
e
 c

o
rr

e
c
t 

ti
tl
e
s
 

a
n
d
 

a
u
th

o
ri
s
in

g
 

v
a
lu

e
s
 

in
c
lu

d
in

g
 

th
e
 

a
u
th

o
ri
s
in

g
 

o
f 

p
u
rc

h
a
s
e
 c

a
rd

 p
a
y
m

e
n
ts

 a
n
d
 B

A
C

S
 

fi
le

s
 

D
e
le

g
a
ti
o
n
s
 

to
 

b
e
 

fu
rt

h
e
r 

u
p
d
a
te

d
 r

e
 p

u
rc

h
a
s
e
 c

a
rd

 
a
n
d
 B

A
C

S
. 
  

Im
p

le
m

e
n

ta
ti

o
n

 
D

a
te

: 
3
 

M
a
rc

h
 

2
0
1
4
 

 F
o

ll
o

w
 

u
p

: 
S

e
p
te

m
b
e
r 

2
0
1
4
 

D
e
le

g
a
ti
o
n
s
 
a
m

e
n
d
e
d
 
a
n
d
 
to

 
b
e
 

a
g
re

e
d
 

a
t 

G
B

 
m

e
e
ti
n
g

 
2
3
 

S
e
p
te

m
b
e
r 

2
0
1
4
 

F
u
rt

h
e
r 

fo
llo

w
 

u
p

 
d
u
e
 J

a
n
u
a
ry

 2
0
1
5
. 

127



A
P

P
E

N
D

IX
 3

 
R

e
v
ie

w
 

R
e
c
o

m
m

e
n

d
a
ti

o
n

 
A

g
re

e
d

 A
c
ti

o
n

 
R

e
le

v
a
n

t 
D

a
te

s
 

F
o

ll
o

w
 u

p
 R

e
s
p

o
n

s
e
 

D
e
ta

il
s
 

S
t 

J
o
h
n
’s

 
S

c
h
o
o
l 

G
o
v
e
rn

a
n
c
e
 

&
 

F
in

a
n
c
e
 

T
h
e
 

s
c
h
o
o
l 

s
h
o
u
ld

 
e
n
s
u
re

 
th

a
t 

b
e
fo

re
 

th
e
y
 

p
a
y
 

a
n
 

in
d
iv

id
u
a
l 

fo
r 

w
o
rk

 c
a
rr

ie
d
 o

u
t 

a
t 

th
e
 s

c
h
o
o
l,
 t

h
e
y
 

s
h
o
u
ld

 c
h
e
c
k
 w

h
e
th

e
r 

th
e
 e

m
p
lo

y
e
e

 
s
h
o
u
ld

 b
e
 p

a
id

 d
ir
e
c
tl
y
 t

h
ro

u
g

h
 t

h
e
 

p
a
y
ro

ll 
(t

h
is

 
c
a
n
 

b
e
 

d
o
n
e
 

b
y
 

c
o
n
ta

c
ti
n
g

 
th

e
 

s
c
h
o
o
l’s

 
p
a

y
ro

ll 
d
e
p
a
rt

m
e
n
t)

, 
if
 

p
a
y
m

e
n
t 

b
y
 

a
n
 

in
v
o

ic
e
 

is
 

a
p
p
ro

p
ri
a
te

, 
it
 

s
h
o
u
ld

 
c
o
n
ta

in
 

th
e
 

fo
llo

w
in

g
 

in
fo

rm
a
ti
o
n
 

• 
T

h
e
 s

c
h
o
o
l 
a
d
d
re

s
s
 •

 A
n
 a

p
p
ro

p
ri
a
te

 
ta

x
 

re
fe

re
n
c
e
 

n
u
m

b
e
r 

to
 

d
e
m

o
n
s
tr

a
te

 s
e
lf
 e

m
p
lo

y
m

e
n
t 

• 
T

h
e
 

N
a
ti
o
n
a
l 

In
s
u
ra

n
c
e
 

n
u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 

th
e
 

in
d
iv

id
u
a
l 
• 

A
 p

ri
n
te

d
 p

a
y
e
e
 a

d
d
re

s
s
 

A
ll 

in
d

iv
id

u
a
ls

 
w

h
o
 

c
a
rr

y
 

o
u
t 

w
o
rk

 
in

 
s
c
h
o
o
l 

to
 

p
ro

v
id

e
 

:-
 

• 
T

h
e
 

s
c
h
o
o
l 

a
d
d
re

s
s
,•

 
A

n
 

a
p
p
ro

p
ri
a
te

 
ta

x
 

re
fe

re
n
c
e
 

n
u
m

b
e
r 

to
 

d
e
m

o
n
s
tr

a
te

 
s
e
lf
 

e
m

p
lo

y
m

e
n
t,

 
• 

T
h
e
 

N
a
ti
o
n
a
l 

In
s
u
ra

n
c
e
 

,n
u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 

th
e
 i

n
d
iv

id
u
a

l 
• 

A
 p

ri
n
te

d
 p

a
y
e
e
 a

d
d
re

s
s
 

 o
n
 a

ll 
in

v
o

ic
e
s
. 

If
 n

o
t 

to
 b

e
 

p
a
id

 t
h
ro

u
g

h
 p

a
y
ro

ll 

Im
p

le
m

e
n

ta
ti

o
n

 
D

a
te

: 
3
 

M
a
rc

h
 

2
0
1
4
 

 F
o

ll
o

w
 

u
p

: 
S

e
p
te

m
b
e
r 

2
0
1
4
 

A
ll 

in
d
iv

id
u
a

ls
 w

h
o
 c

a
rr

y
 o

u
r 

w
o
rk

 
in

 s
c
h
o
o
l 
p
ro

v
id

e
 a

ll 
th

e
 d

e
ta

ils
 a

s
 

s
ta

te
d
 a

s
id

e
. 

  

O
f 

th
e
 

e
x
a
m

p
le

s
 

p
ro

v
id

e
d
 

to
 

In
te

rn
a
l 

A
u
d
it
, 

o
n
e
 

o
f 

th
e
 i

n
v
o
ic

e
s
 d

id
 

n
o
t 

h
a
v
e
 

a
 

ta
x
 

n
u
m

b
e
r 

o
r 

a
 

n
a
ti
o
n
a
l 

in
s
u
ra

n
c
e
 

n
u
m

b
e
r.

 
 F

u
rt

h
e
r 

fo
llo

w
 

u
p

 
d
u
e
 J

a
n
u
a
ry

 2
0
1
5
. 

W
e
lld

o
n
 

P
a
rk

 
In

fa
n
t 

&
 

N
u
rs

e
ry

 
G

o
v
e
rn

a
n
c
e
 

&
 

F
in

a
n
c
e
 

S
c
h
o
o
l 

s
ta

ff
 

s
h
o
u
ld

 
m

o
n
it
o
r 

th
e
 

p
re

d
ic

te
d
 
y
e
a
r-

e
n
d
 
o
u
tt
u
rn

 
p
o
s
it
io

n
 

a
g

a
in

s
t 

th
e
 

b
u
d
g

e
te

d
 

y
e
a
r-

e
n
d
 

p
ro

je
c
ti
o
n
 s

o
 t

h
a
t 

v
a
ri
a
n
c
e
s
 c

a
n
 b

e
 

re
p
o
rt

e
d
 

to
 

th
e
 

G
o
v
e
rn

in
g

 
B

o
d
y
. 
 

T
h
e
 

s
c
h
o
o
l 

s
h
o
u
ld

 
in

fo
rm

 
th

e
 

G
o
v
e
rn

in
g

 
B

o
d
y
 

o
f 

th
e
 

p
re

d
ic

te
d
 

o
u
tt

u
rn

 f
ig

u
re

 c
a
lc

u
la

te
d
 b

y
 t

h
e
 F

M
S

 
te

a
m

 
a
s
 

th
is

 
w

o
u
ld

 
g

iv
e
 

th
e
 

G
o
v
e
rn

in
g

 B
o
d
y
 t

im
e
 t

o
 c

o
n
s
id

e
r 

th
e
 

re
a
s
o
n
s
 

th
is

 
h
a
s
 

v
a
ri
e
d
 

fr
o
m

 
th

e
 

b
u
d
g

e
t 

p
ro

je
c
ti
o
n
 

fi
g

u
re

 
a
n
d
 

th
e
 

o
p
ti
o
n
s
 o

f 
h
o
w

 t
h
e
s
e
 b

a
la

n
c
e
s
 c

a
n
 

b
e
s
t 

b
e
 u

s
e
d
. 

W
e
 w

ill
 e

n
s
u
re

 t
h
a
t 

th
is

 i
s
 

s
h
o
w

n
 

to
 

a
n
d
 

d
is

c
u
s
s
e
d
 

w
it
h
 t

h
e
 G

B
. 

Im
p

le
m

e
n

ta
ti

o
n

 
D

a
te

: 
F

e
b
ru

a
ry

 
2
0
1
4
 

 F
o

ll
o

w
 

u
p

: 
S

e
p
te

m
b
e
r 

2
0
1
4
 

T
h
e
 n

e
x
t 

v
is

it
 f

ro
m

 F
M

S
 t

h
a
t 

w
ill

 
g

iv
e
 u

s
 p

ro
je

c
te

d
 c

a
rr

y
 f

o
rw

a
rd

 i
s
 

a
n
ti
c
ip

a
te

d
 

to
 

b
e
 

in
 

N
o
v
e
m

b
e
r.

 
T

h
is

 w
ill

 b
e
 t

a
k
e
n
 t

o
 t

h
e
 n

e
x
t 

G
B

 
m

e
e
ti
n
g

. 

F
u
rt

h
e
r 

fo
llo

w
 

u
p

 
d
u
e
 J

a
n
u
a
ry

 2
0
1
5
. 

   N
o

te
: 

A
ll 

h
ig

h
 r

is
k
 r

e
c
o
m

m
e

n
d

a
ti
o
n

 m
a

d
e

 d
u

ri
n

g
 t

h
e

 f
ir
s
t 
h

a
lf
 o

f 
th

e
 y

e
a

r 
w

e
re

 a
g
re

e
d

. 

128


	Agenda
	3 Minutes
	8 Information Report - Treasury Management Strategy Statement and Annual Investment Strategy: Mid-Year Review 2014-15
	9 Information Report - Annual Audit Letter
	Annual Audit Letter

	10 Information Report - Corporate Anti-Fraud Team (CAFT) Mid Year Report 2014-15
	CIPFA Code of Practice
	Protecting the Public Purse 2014

	11 Information Report - Internal Audit Mid-Year Report 2014/15
	Appendix 1 - 14-15 Mid Year Report
	Appendix 2 - SFIs 2014-15
	Appendix 3 - Recommendations not agreed and Follow ups


